# LINDENWOOD COLLEGE BULLETIN

1948-1949

**一题工作打工** 



ST. CHARLES, MISSOURI

Published in Three Parts PART I LINDENWOOD COLLEGE BULLETIN

Vol. 121 December, 1947

No .4

A Monthly Paper Published By LINDENWOOD COLLEGE St. CHARLES, Mo.

Entered at the St. Charles Post Office as Second Class Matter

## LINDENWOOD COLLEGE BULLETIN

ST. CHARLES, MISSOURI



THE ANNUAL CATALOG 1948-1949

> ANNOUNCEMENTS 1948-1949

# LINESVILLETIN BULLEGE

THE CHANGE MESOCEN



POLYTED LIUWINA BUT

THE PARTY OF THE P

## Table of Contents

010

|   | Page |
|---|------|
| College Calendar  | vi   |
| Lindenwood College  | 7    |
| Location  | 7    |
| Accrediting   | 7    |
| History   | 8    |
| Endowment   | 8    |
| The Purposes of Lindenwood  | 9    |
| The Curriculum in a Changing World                                    | 10   |
| Personnel Work and Guidance   | 12   |
| Buildings, Grounds and Equipment                                      | 12   |
| Expenses for the Year   | 20   |
| Items of Expense  | 20   |
| Terms of Payment  | 20   |
| Incidental Fees   | 21   |
| Withdrawal Terms.   | 21   |
| Scholarships and Awards   | 22   |
| Student Life and Organizations  | 24   |
| Student Supplies  | 27   |
| Admission   | 28   |
| Sources of Acceptable Credits   | 28   |
| Requirements for Admission.   | 29   |
| Registration  | 31   |
| Courses of Instruction—   |      |
| General Information   | 32   |
| Requirements for the Senior College Degree and for the Junior College |      |
| Certificate   | 34   |
| Degrees, Diplomas and Certificates                                    | 36   |
| Courses in the College of Arts and Science—                           |      |
| Art   | 37   |
| Biblical Literature and History                                       | 37   |
| Biological Science  | 39   |
| Classical Languages and Literature                                    | 43   |
| Economics   | 45   |
| English   | 48   |
| Geography   | 52   |
| History and Government  | 52   |
| Journalism  | 56   |
| Library Science   | 56   |
| Mathematics   | 56   |
| Modern Languages:   |      |
| French  | 58   |
| German  | 60   |
| Spanish   | 61   |
| Philosophy  | 62   |

|      | Physical Science:  | Page |
|------|--|------|
|      | Chemistry  | 64   |
|      | Physics  | 66   |
|      | Psychology   | 67   |
|      | Sociology  | 70   |
|      | Theory of Music  | 74   |
| Rep  | oresentative Senior College Curricula—                               |      |
|      | Suggested Course for the American Contemporary Life Curriculum       |      |
|      | Leading to the A.B. Degree   | 77   |
|      | Suggested Course for a Curriculum in Religious Education Leading to  |      |
|      | A.B. and B.S. Degrees  | 78   |
|      | Curricula for Students Specializing in Biological Science            | 79   |
|      | Suggested Course for Pre-Medical Students                            | 80   |
|      | Suggested Curriculum in History and Government Leading to the A.B.   |      |
|      | Degree   | 81   |
|      | Suggested Curriculum in Pre-Professional Social Work Leading to the  |      |
|      | A.B. Degree  | 83   |
|      | Suggested Course in Community Leadership Leading to the B.S. Degree. | 84   |
|      | Suggested Course in Economics Leading to the B.S. Degree             | 85   |
| Dep  | partment of Vocations  | 86   |
|      | Education  | 87   |
|      | State Certificates   | 87   |
|      | Requirements for Elementary School Teachers                          | 87   |
|      | Suggested Curricula Leading to Elementary Certificates               | 89   |
|      | Requirements for High School Teachers                                | 91   |
|      | Suggested Curriculum Leading to Five-Year High School Certificates   | 93   |
|      | Description of Courses   | 94   |
|      | Home Economics   | 97   |
|      | Description of Courses   | 97   |
|      | Curriculum-Required of Freshmen Students who plan to take a          |      |
|      | Degree in Home Economics   | 100  |
|      | Curriculum in Foods and Nutrition                                    | 100  |
|      | Curriculum in Textiles and Clothing                                  | 101  |
|      | Physical Education   | 102  |
|      | Equipment  | 103  |
|      | Recreation   | 103  |
|      | Organizations Sponsored by the Department                            | 103  |
|      | Activity Courses   | 104  |
|      | Description of Courses   | 105  |
|      | Suggested Courses of Study for Majors in Physical Education          | 108  |
|      | Secretarial Science  | 110  |
|      | Description of Courses   | 110  |
|      | Four-Year Curriculum   | 111  |
|      | Curriculum for Two-Year Course Leading to Certificate in Secre-      |      |
| 220. | tarial Science   | 113  |
| Dep  | partment of the Fine Arts  | 115  |
|      | Music  | 115  |
|      | Requirements for Bachelor's Degree in Music                          | 115  |
|      | Diploma in Music   | 116  |

|  | Page  |
|--|-------|
| Certificate in Public School Music                               | 116   |
| Entrance Credit  | 116   |
| Advanced Standing  | 117   |
| Auditions  | 117   |
| Practice   | 117   |
| Orchestra  | 117   |
| Orchestral Instruments   | 117   |
| Choir.   | 117   |
| Recitals.  | 117   |
| Record Library   | 117   |
|  |       |
| Concerts and Operas  | 118   |
| Mu Phi Epsilon   | 118   |
| Delta Phi Delta  | 118   |
| National Association of Schools of Music                         | 118   |
| Description of Courses.  | 118   |
| Ensemble Courses   | 120   |
| Piano  | 121   |
| Organ  | 122   |
| Voice  | 123   |
| Violin   | 123   |
| Four-Year Course Leading to Degree of B.M. (Piano)               | 125   |
| Four-Year Course Leading to Degree of B.M. (Organ)               | 127   |
| Four-Year Course Leading to Degree of B.M. (Voice)               | 129   |
| Four-Year Course Leading to Degree of B.M. (Violin or 'Cello)    | 131   |
| Four-Year Course Leading to Degree of B.M. (Public School Music) | 133   |
| Art  | 135   |
| Requirements for Certificates.                                   | 136   |
| Studio Courses   | 137   |
| Four-Year Course Leading to B.A. Degree                          | 140   |
| Four-Year Course in Public School Art                            | 141   |
|  | 142   |
| Interior Decoration  |       |
|  | : 143 |
| Speech and Dramatics   | 144   |
| The Little Theatre   | 144   |
| Radio  | 144   |
| Recitals   | 144   |
| Requirements for Certificates in Speech and Dramatics            | 144   |
| Alpha Psi Omega  | 145   |
| Description of Courses   | 145   |
| Suggested Curriculum Leading to A.B. Degree in Speech            | 148   |
| Suggested Curriculum Leading to A.B. Degree in English and       |       |
| Certificate in Speech and Dramatics                              | 150   |
| Prizes, Honors, and Awards—1947                                  | 151   |
| Board of Directors   | 157   |
| Administration and Faculty                                       | 159   |
| Alumnae Organizations  | 172   |
| Student Roster—1947-1948   | 165   |
|  |       |

9 1948 ve

| SMTWTFS                                      | SMTWTFS  | SMTWTFS                          | SMTWTFS  |
|--|--|----------------------------------|--|
| JAN  | FEB  | MAR                              | APRIL  |
| 1 2 3  | 1 2 3 4 5 6 7  | 1 2 3 4 5 6                      | 1 2 3  |
| 4 5 6 7 8 9 10                               |  | 7 8 910111213                    | 4 5 6 7 8 9 10   |
| 11 12 13 14 15 16 17                         |  | 14 15 16 17 18 19 20             | 11 12 13 14 15 16 17   |
| 25 26 22 29 20 20 20 21                      |  | 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 | 18 19 20 21 22 23 24   |
| The second second second second              |  |                                  |  |
| MAY  | JUNE   | JULY                             | AUG  |
|  | 1 2 3 4 5  | 1 2 3                            | 1 2 3 4 5 6 7  |
| 2345678                                      | 6 7 8 9 10 11 12   | 4 5 6 7 8 9 10                   | 8 9 10 11 12 13 14   |
| 9 10 11 12 13 14 15                          | 20 21 22 22 24 25 26   | 18 19 20 21 22 23 24             | 15 10 17 18 19 20 21   |
| 22 24 25 26 27 28 29                         | 27 28 29 30  | 25 26 27 28 29 30 31             | 29 30 31   |
| an at an | The state of the s |                                  | Contract of the Contract of th |
| SEPT   | OCT  | NOV                              | DEC  |
| 1 2 3 4                                      | 1 2  | . 1 2 3 4 5 6                    | 1 2 3 4  |
| 5 6 7 8 9 10 11                              | 3 4 5 6 7 8 9  | 7 8 9 10 11 12 13                | 5 6 7 8 9 10 11  |
| 1020212222222                                | 17 18 19 20 21 22 23   | 21 22 22 24 25 26 27             | 10 70 21 22 22 24 25   |
| 2627282930                                   | 1 25 26 27 28 29 30  | 21 22 23 24 25 20 27             | 26 27 28 29 30 31  |
| 2921202700                                   | 31 40 10 11 20 21 90   | #0 k7 00                         | 202120273021   |

9 1949 mg

| SMTWTFS   | SMTWTFS  | SMTWTFS  | SMTWTFS   |
|---|--|--|---|
| JAN   | FEB  | MAR  | APRIL   |
| 2 3 4 5 6 7 8<br>9 10 11 12 13 14 15<br>16 17 18 19 20 21 22                                    |  | 13141516171819 20212223242526  | 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16                                |
| MAY   |  | JULY   | AUG   |
| 1 2 3 4 5 6 7<br>8 9 10 11 12 13 14<br>15 16 17 18 19 20 21<br>22 23 24 25 26 27 28<br>29 30 31 | 19202122232425   | 3 4 5 6 7 8 9<br>10 11 12 13 14 15 16<br>17 18 19 20 21 22 23<br>3 25 26 27 28 29 30         | 7 8 9 10 11 12 13<br>14 15 16 17 18 19 20<br>21 22 23 24 25 26 27 |
| SEPT  | OCT  | NOV  | DEC   |
| 4 5 6 7 8 9 10<br>11 12 13 14 15 16 17<br>18 19 20 21 22 23 24<br>25 26 27 28 29 30             | 2 3 4 5 6 7 8<br>9 10 11 12 13 14 15<br>16 17 18 19 20 21 22<br>23 24 25 26 27 28 29 | 1 2 3 4 5<br>6 7 8 9 10 11 12<br>13 14 15 16 17 18 19<br>20 21 22 23 24 25 26<br>27 28 29 30 |   |

## College Calendar

No

#### 1948-1949

| Meeting of Faculty                    | September 13  |
|---------------------------------------|---|
| Testing Program                       | September 15, 16  |
| Registration                          | September 17, 18  |
| Convocation Vesper Service            | September 19  |
| Organization of Classes               | September 20  |
| Founders' Day                         | October 21  |
| Thanksgiving Recess                   | . Wednesday, November 24, 10:00 a.m., to<br>Monday, November 29, 11:00 a.m. |
| Christmas Recess                      | Friday, December 17, 10:00 a.m., to<br>Tuesday January 4, 11:00 a.m.        |
| Beginning of Second Semester          | January 31  |
| Easter Recess                         | Thursday, April 14, 10:00 a.m. to<br>Tuesday, April 19, 11:00 a.m.          |
| Commencement Exercises                |   |
| Final Examinations for Underclassmen. |   |

All dates on this calendar are subject to change if circumstances require it.

### Lindenwood College

00

Lindenwood College is a college for women.

It is a four-year liberal arts degree granting institution. It enrolls annually 500 students. It offers both a four-year program leading to a college degree, and two-year programs leading to various types of certificates. Its curriculum is devoted to the teaching of the liberal arts and sciences, the fine arts, and a few of the vocations most frequently engaged in by women. It confers the degrees of Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of Music, and Bachelor of Science.

#### LOCATION

Lindenwood College is located in the city of St. Charles, Missouri, twenty miles west of the city of St. Louis. St. Charles, a city of ten thousand people, is located on U. S. Highways 40 and 61, and on Missouri Highway 94. The Wabash and the Missouri, Kansas and Texas Railroads have through trunk lines. St. Charles has also coast-to-coast bus line service. The Lambert-St. Louis Airport is close and easily accessible to those traveling by air lines. St. Charles is in the very heart of transportation facilities for all parts of the United States. Bus service is maintained every thirty minutes between St. Charles and St. Louis.

The advantages of suburban and the privileges of city life are afforded the students. The best concerts, lectures, and operas, which students are permitted to attend when they do not interfere with their college work, are inexpensive. Art museums and centers of culture and music are always open to the students.

#### ACCREDITING

Lindenwood College is a standard four-year-college, recognized by the highest educational accrediting associations. It is a member of the Missouri College Union, composed of the universities and four-year liberal arts colleges of the State. Membership is also maintained in the North Central Association of higher institutions of learning, the Association of American Colleges, the American Council on Education, the Council of Church-Related Colleges, and the National Association of Schools of Music. Lindenwood College is accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools as a degree-granting institution.

#### HISTORY

Lindenwood College has its roots deep in the past. Beginning over a hundred years ago in a log cabin, six years after Missouri was admitted to the Union, the Lindenwood School for Young Ladies developed into a strong four-year college. In 1853, Major George C. Sibley and his wife, Mary Easton Sibley, founders of the school, had it incorporated as the Lindenwood Female College under the direction of the St. Louis Presbytery. They endowed it with their lands and organized a campaign for funds with which to erect a new building. Responsibility for the government of the College was transferred from the Presbytery of St. Louis to the Synod of Missouri in 1871.

The dramatic struggle of the Sibleys to house the new college; the devoted services and generosity of Samuel S. Watson, first president of the Board of Directors for a quarter of a century; the untiring industry and sacrifice of a succession of capable board members, presidents, and teachers—these constitute a noble history of which Lindenwood College is proud. With the election of Dr. John L. Roemer as president in 1914, and the consequent benevolence of Colonel James Gay Butler, the college entered upon a period of rapid development.

#### ENDOWMENT

Due to the gifts of Colonel Butler and others, the College is well established with a substantial endowment, an excellent operating plant and no indebtedness.

## The Purposes of Lindenwood College

010

The founders of Lindenwood College gave it an endowment of purpose which is as timely now as it was one hundred years ago. Lindenwood's charter requires it to be "set up on a large and liberal plan and on a lasting foundation." It also requires the provision of "ample facilities at as low charges as practicable" and definitely commits the institution to "the proper development of intellectual, moral, and physical faculties." Lindenwood is mindful of the fact that its founders were motivated by "the religion of Jesus Christ" "to qualify pupils not only to enjoy the rational pleasures of life as accountable beings but also to become enlightened and accomplished and useful members of society" properly qualified for the performance of life's "important duties."

Lindenwood College seeks today to provide a curriculum and community situation through which students will acquire the personal resourcefulness of the cultured woman, the keen conscience of a Christian citizen, and in some areas, a specialized vocational competence.

Surely the college community is one which is characterized by respect for the integrity of the human mind and by friendliness among human beings. Students are given training in self-reliance and in citizenship through the work of the elected Student Council and through the various house organizations.

Staff members are selected with the fundamental purposes of the college in mind, for the paramount factor in all education is the communication of thought and ideals and character from the teacher to the student. Each teacher here is devoted to students as well as to knowledge and is, we believe, competent in a given field, skillful in instruction, and a genuine friend of students. Teachers share the belief that Christian faith is the best basis for the cultivation of the human conscience and for the building of good character. It is hoped that the college is Christian, but in no sense sectarian.

In all of its history Lindenwood College has emphasized the values of that liberal education which addresses itself to the whole personality. Many of the major functions of life are shared by all citizens. One does not escape the responsibility of being an intelligent voter by becoming a skilled engineer. Nor do good tires and high

speed lessen the need for good driving. Lindenwood seeks to offer a liberal education, for some knowledge of the languages and literatures of the human race, some understanding of psychology and philosophy and religion, of the natural and social sciences, of mathematics and history, will bring an appreciation of the nature and destiny of man not to be acquired in any other way.

The immeasurable influence of women in all areas of human life and the vital importance of the roles which are theirs in the world community challenge us to provide them with a liberal education of the highest order. In the brave new day which we face we dare not be content with the old idea of a finishing school education designed to give women sweet manners and graceful carriage, as if they lived outside our world and had come on a visit to decorate it. The presence of women in the market place and in the professions, and their responsibilities as citizens—to our nation and to our world as well as to our homes—lead to recognition of the fact that basic liberal arts education is for women, as for men, of incalculable value.

Our world calls for a partnership between this liberal education and vocational education. Lindenwood believes that this partnership may be achieved in some areas on one campus. Vocational training is offered, therefore, in professional education, social service, religious education, physical education, secretarial science, home economics, and in the fine arts. These vocational courses will be of practical value for students who have the necessity of earning their living. Many a girl who has married, or is planning to marry a returned veteran, is finding that she will have to be the breadwinner, or one of the breadwinners of the family.

#### THE CURRICULUM IN A CHANGING WORLD

A vital part of the tradition of liberal education is that it should not be static and unchanging, but vital and living and free. The Lindenwood College faculty gives continuing study to problems of curriculum and is alert to changes and additions which may improve the service the college may render in this new and changing world.

In its vocational departments, it offers training in stenography, secretarial work, and office practice; it has courses in the home economics department which have to do with balanced diets for the family, the conservation of food, hygiene, the renovation of clothing, wise buy-

ing of clothing, and care of clothing. Its courses in mathematics and physics are, of course, directly helpful to students who are likely to be in any sort of work of the mechanical type.

Even more important, however, is the work which the College offers in its effort to make an intelligent citizenry of its students, and to prepare them for the years to come. There are numerous courses for upper class students dealing with the international situation, with an effort to train our students to have a wide point of view.

The College stresses, too, the importance of every student feeling her responsibility as a citizen of this country and taking seriously the fact that she will have to help in solving the problems left by the war. Several courses on post-war problems are being offered with this in mind.

With the comprehension of the importance of the family as a social unit, there are many courses in different departments centering around this object. Such courses as those on the Family, Child Development, Nutrition and Dietetics, Home Architecture and Home Furnishing are only a few of the subjects which are taken up in the curriculum.

The College believes, too, that every college student will return to her community with an added responsibility for leadership. With this in mind, such courses as Community Recreation and the place of Women in Modern Society should be helpful in giving the student a sense of her responsibility in these directions.

Every student is urged to prepare herself for economic independence. No marriage these days can insure a girl that she will not have to earn her living. No apparent economic security is actual security these days. There are, therefore, many vocations in the College for which a young woman may train herself.

Lindenwood College is, of course, a degree granting institution and a student may well profit by remaining here for four years. The College does, however, offer the Junior College certificate as well as the Senior College degree, and whether a girl remains only for her Junior College course or spends the entire four years here, this College endeavors, now more than ever, to fit her for the career which she may choose. There are great advantages, however, for the student who takes her degree at the college in which she began her work, particularly in the case of a small college. The faculty becomes thoroughly acquainted with her aptitudes and can aid her after she leaves the college in a way they cannot if she has only one or two years at the institution; she

makes a real college home for herself; she takes advantage of valuable opportunities in extra-curricular activities on a campus with which she is acquainted; and as an upper class student she matures rapidly as she exercises the influence and assumes the responsibilities of leadership which come to her. Lindenwood College believes very strongly in the virtues attached to the four-year small college.

#### STUDENT PERSONNEL WORK IN LINDENWOOD

The post-war years will necessitate social reconstruction in many areas of American life. Although no one can predict the type of society that youth will face in the next decade, Lindenwood plans to rededicate itself to the Christian education of young women in contemporary American democracy.

To implement this broad purpose, student personnel work in Lindenwood is based upon the educational philosophy that all of the needs of the individual student must be studied and integrated during the years of college experience. Therefore, in order to assist each student to help herself in the task of self-evaluation, scientific measurements and criteria are derived for each student during the Freshman and Sophomore years. Results of these aptitude and achievement tests, personality inventories, and vocational interest tests are used by the faculty counselors in planning with students their educational programs in relation to social responsibility and personal happiness.

In line with the need for vocational adjustment, students are encouraged to make provisions for work-experience during the senior year. It is believed that development in this area of student guidance at the college level offers promise for the future.

#### BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS

The College grounds cover an area of 140 acres on one of the highest elevations in the extreme western part of the city of St. Charles. The campus is within the city limits, having all the advantages of light, water, and public fire protection.

A golf course is a part of the College grounds and is so conveniently located as to be accessible for brief or extended exercise in playing. The course is open for all students free of charge.

A modern athletic field affords opportunity for the playing of hockey, tennis, baseball, and other outdoor sports.

Adjoining the campus is a well-conducted farm, under the direction of an experienced superintendent.

RESIDENCE HALLS—The College maintains five modern residence halls. Each provides living rooms, bedrooms, social centers, pressing rooms, reading nooks with daily newspapers, current periodicals, fiction and non-fiction books, and many other features that add to the comfort and happiness of the students. Teas and birthday parties in the residence halls are pleasant occasions; in fact, the whole atmosphere is one of family life all through the school year.

SIBLEY HALL is the historic building on the campus, named in honor of the founders of the College, Major and Mrs. George C. Sibley. It is a three-story brick residence hall. A large colonial porch with eight columns, twenty-six feet tall, gives it a commanding appearance on the campus. The interior has been modernized and a large number of the suites and single rooms are provided with private baths. The reception rooms are furnished with antique furniture from the period of the Sibleys, much of which belonged to Major and Mrs. Sibley. The students' bedrooms are furnished with walnut furniture.

AYRES HALL was named in honor of Dr. George Frederic Ayres, President of the College for ten years. It is a three-story brick building providing suites with baths, and double and single rooms with hot and cold running water. The large reception rooms are beautifully furnished and in the students' bedrooms there is modern maple furniture. The attractive central dining room and the scientifically equipped kitchen are attached to this building.

Butler. It is a three-story brick building, with hot and cold runing water in every bedroom. The large reception rooms are attractively furnished throughout and students' bedrooms are equipped with modern maple furniture. The College gymnasium, lounge, and swimming pool are located on the ground floor. The lounge has powder rooms and a kitchenette which is used for serving refreshments at the many parties held in the gymnasium. The lounge itself is beautifully furnished in the new Canecraft furniture upholstered in various shades of tan, green, and henna leather. Modern fluorescent lighting adds much to the beauty of this popular addition to the gymnasium.

NICCOLLS HALL was built in memory of the late Dr. Samuel Jack Niccolls, who for a generation was identified with Lindenwood College as President of the Board of Directors; the building was erected by his friend, Colonel James Gay Butler. It is the largest hall on the campus and has two reception rooms, one having recently been furnished with modern Swedish furniture. Every bedroom has hot and cold running water and is furnished in maple.

IRWIN HALL is named in honor of Dr. Robert Irwin, who was President of the College from 1880 to 1893. This hall is a three-story fireproof building. Every room is an outside room, as in all the other residence halls, and connecting rooms with bath accommodate three or four students. The students' bedrooms have maple furniture.

FURNITURE—Each student's room is supplied with a single bed, a mattress, a pillow, a study table, chair, a dresser, a bookcase. The windows are furnished with shades; students may furnish curtains, if they desire. Each student is responsible for the care of her room, and any injury done to furniture, room or building will be charged to the occupant of the room.

Social Centers—Each residence hall furnishes a suite of rooms for the social activities of the students. A suite consists of a kitchenette, dinette, and recreation room where students may prepare refreshments for small groups of friends and entertain them in various ways. In the kitchenettes will be found electric refrigerators, electric stoves, toasters, grills, as well as complete services of china and silver adequate for the preparation of food for the many birthday parties and other celebrations that take place. In BUTLER HALL the recreation room is furnished with Canecraft upholstered in bright red and blue. Fluorescent lighting enhances the beauty of the room. The furniture in AYRES HALL is chromium, upholstered in red and black leather, with large India print wall-hangings. SIBLEY HALL'S recreation room is furnished in Northern Birch in natural finish, upholstered in rose color. Because NICCOLLS HALL houses the greatest number of students the recreation rooms are larger. Three rooms are in this apartment, consisting of a kitchen, a dining room, and a large recreation room furnished in Northern Birch in natural finish, upholstered in rose and green. The wall hangings and drapes match and the rooms have fluorescent lighting. The combination kitchen and dinette in

IRWIN HALL is furnished with chromium furniture, upholstered in blue and red leather. The recreation room is large with a fireplace at one end, surrounded by comfortable lounge chairs.

ROEMER HALL-Roemer Hall, the main administration building, was named in honor of the late Dr. John Lincoln Roemer, President of Lindenwood College from 1914 to 1940. The ground floor contains classrooms, in addition to the speech and dramatics studios and the laboratories and practice suite of the home economic department. The Little Theatre, College postoffice and book store, and a lounge for day students are also located on this floor. The offices and reception rooms of the President, the Secretary, the Dean of the College. the Director of Student Guidance and Personnel, the Registrar, the Accounting Department, and the College Bank are on the first floor. The corridors, wide and well lighted, with a stairway at either end. give access to the auditorium in the east wing and the classrooms in the west wing. The auditorium extends through two stories and is designed with a balcony; the total seating capacity is eight hundred. A modern stage has been provided with dressing rooms and a separate entrance from the outside. The lighting facilities are of the latest design for modern stage performances. On the second and third floors of Roemer Hall are classrooms, lecture rooms with raised floors, and offices for instructors. The physical and biological science laboratories are located on the third floor.

THE MARGARET LEGGAT BUTLER LIBRARY is an unusually attractive building, T-shaped in plan, and designed in Tudor Gothic style. The Library is conveniently located in relation to class rooms and residence halls, and is open on school days from 8-12, 1-5:30, and 7-10 o'clock. Saturday hours are from 9-12 and 1-4, and Sunday hours from 2-5. Two large reading rooms and the study tables in the stacks furnish seating capacity for 150 students. Stacks are open to all, and students are encouraged to make use of this privilege. The library has an active collection of 30,200 books and pamphlets, and receives 165 periodicals and 15 newspapers regularly. Proximity to St. Louis makes it possible for students to use the library facilities offered by University, public, and historical libraries of that city for special research problems.

This building was erected in memory of Mrs. Margaret Leggat Butler who, with her husband, Colonel James Gay Butler, gave the greater part of their wealth to place Lindenwood College on a firm financial basis.

SIBLEY CLUB ROOM—Modernistic decorations in dominant shades of dusty pink and pastel green, California cane furniture, and Mexican pottery provide the setting for the new Sibley Club Room located on the ground floor of Sibley Hall. This room is used by all the students.

The Lillie P. Roemer Fine Arts Building—The Lillie P. Roemer Fine Arts Building was dedicated October 26, 1939. The building itself and all of its appointments are of the very finest. It is located on Butler Way, near the entrance to the College from Kingshighway. It is a three-floor building and houses the Music and the Art departments of the College. It was made possible through the gift from the late President John L. Roemer of the estate of Mrs. Roemer, who, during her twenty-four years on the campus, was Dean of Women. The building is devoted to Music, Art, Radio classes, and offers exceptionally fine facilities for instruction. Included in it are rooms for individual instruction, a sound-proof orchestra room, splendid radio equipment, an excellent record library, a large well lighted art room, and beautifully furnished parlors.

THE PRESIDENT'S HOME is a large two-story brick and stone residence situated between the Fine Arts Building and the Health Center.

THE GABLES is a frame-and-stone building situated on Butler Way at the entrance to the quadrangle of College buildings. It is used as a faculty club house.

EASTLICK HALL is a two-story brick building situated on Watson Street at the approach to College grounds on Houston Driveway. It is named after Mrs. Nellie Leggat Eastlick of Los Angeles, California, a niece of Colonel and Mrs. James Gay Butler. It is the residence of the Secretary of the College and Assistant to the President.

THE CUPBOARD, a tea room at which students may gather for refreshments, is open every week-day and every evening. It is conducted by the College.

THE COLLEGE GREENHOUSE, located just back of Sibley Hall, gives enlarged opportunities to students of the Natural Science. Here is found a fine collection of plant materials for laboratory studies. In addition, ample space is provided for practical work in planting and caring for plants of all kinds. There are hotbeds and coldframes close at hand, which, with trial borders for bulbs, annuals, and perennials,

give excellent equipment for students interested in Botany, Floriculture, and such closely related studies as Ornamental Horticulture, and Landscape Gardening.

THE LODGE is a two-story brick building situated on the State Highway and used as a residence by the Superintendent of Buildings and Grounds.

THE WATSON is a two-story frame building situated near the Athletic Field and occupied by the College Maintenance Man.

#### **EQUIPMENT**

HEATING PLANT—The dormitories are steam heated. The central heating plant is located at some distance from the buildings and is twenty feet beneath the surface of the ground. Large 150-horse-power tubular boilers of the Brownell type are installed in the plant and are more than adequate to meet the requirements. Four large water heaters supply the buildings with hot water. The building is of stone and cement structure. Efficiency and safety are always considered.

SWIMMING POOL—The swimming pool is constructed of concrete. It ranges in depth from three to nine feet and contains, when filled, 35,000 gallons of water. A water temperature of 78 to 80 degrees is maintained, and the pool is used the entire college year. The water is filtered as it is run into the pool, and a refiltration appliance constantly purifies it.

FIRE PROTECTION—Every precaution is taken for the safety of the students in case of fire. Modern fire escapes and fire extinguishers are provided in each building. A college pumping station gives the highest pressure for the fire hose in the dormitories. The installation of the Grinnel sprinkling system insures the most modern fire protection in the buildings. Fire hydrants are conveniently located on the campus. Under the supervision of the board of underwriters, the electric lighting system is carefully safeguarded.

WATER AND SANITATION—The College authorities have installed an excellent filtration and purifying station. The water from St. Charles city basins is clarified before it is pumped to the College. The College takes it from the city mains and passes it through another filtration system before pumping it into the mains supplying the dormitories. Tests are made frequently throughout the year and filed by the medical department.

Careful attention is given to every detail in sanitary regulation. Modern plumbing in every dormitory insures perfect sanitary conditions. The sanitation is regularly inspected by the college physician.

THE FILTRATION PLANT is a brick-and-stone building which is used for a filtration and pumping station of the water used in the College buildings.

Boarding Department—The boarding department is modernly equipped in every way. The kitchen is furnished with a modern bake shop, electric ovens, bread mixers, warming devices, and refrigeration equipment. Two huge ranges, large and small steamers for vegetables, meat cutters, warming tables, and an electric dishwasher occupy other parts. Large aisles to and from the dining room insure efficient service. A basement under the kitchen is divided into storerooms for supplies, potato peelers, and vegetable cutters.

The dining room, situated in Ayres Hall, is well ventilated and

lighted, and accommodates over 600 people.

This department is directed by two trained dietitians who make out the menus especially adapted to the needs of the students. They direct the work of the chef and helpers. The dining room is supervised by one especially trained for directing the movements of the waitresses and seeing that the best service possible is given the students. Breakfast is served at 7:30 A. M. and is optional in attendance. Lunch is served at 12:20 P. M. and dinner at 6:00 P. M.

HEALTH—The first requisite of an education is good health. The location of the College, the sanitary regulations, the mild climate, the large campus, make the conditions of the College most inviting to parents interested in the health of their daughters. Each student of the College is expected to take some form of physical exercise.

All students are under the medical direction of the College. A college Health Center is provided for the care of the sick at no expense to the students. In all cases of illness students must report to the Health Center for observation. There is no fee attached to the services of the physician and nurse in ordinary cases of illness. Office consultation during the physician's office hours is free.

Should any preference be expressed for medical treatment other than that provided by the College, such preference will be respected. The expense in this case must be borne by the student.

In case of serious illness requiring a private nurse or special attention of a physician or special hospitalization, the student must bear the expense. B. Kurt Stumberg Health Center—This is a three-story brick building situated on Butler Way near the center of the campus. This building was remodeled in 1945 and equipped as a modern Student Health Center. By order of the Board of Directors the building is named the B. Kurt Stumberg Health Center, in memory of Dr. Stumberg, a member of the Board of Directors, college physician for thirty years, and a friend of hundreds of former Lindenwood students.

College Bank" the Lindenwood College Deposit," called the "College Bank" by the students, is located on the first floor of Roemer Hall and is equipped like a modern banking institution. It was established for the convenience of the students who could place their spending money there and avoid the danger of carrying it about until needed. A cashier is in charge and at stated hours she receives deposits and cashes checks. Checks drawn on The Lindenwood College Deposit are payable only to the student in person. They are not honored by any bank or business house, the Deposit being only for campus convenience of the students. The College is responsible only for money placed in its care. The College Deposit has been of great usefulness in the training of young women in banking procedure. Written permission of parents or guardians must be filed with the cashier of the Deposit, permitting the student to check against the parent's or guardian's account in the home bank.

## Expenses for the Year

610

Lindenwood College is not conducted for profit, and a considerable part of the budget is met annually from proceeds of the Endowment Fund.

It is the desire of the College to explain very carefully to the patron the entire cost for his daughter for the college year. The expenses itemized below include every fee charged by the College. The only additional expenses are personal, such as books, laundry, etc.

#### **EXPENSES**

| Board, room, heat, light, water service, tuition, lessons in Music, Art and |            |
|---|------------|
| Speech Student activity fee   |            |
|   |            |
| Total   | \$1,350.00 |

Note—An additional charge of \$50.00 is made for each occupant of a double room with bath attached, and \$60.00 for single room with bath attached. The charge for single room without bath attached is \$40.00 additional. One-half of this charge is due in September and the remainder January 1.

Each student pays a fee of \$30.00, which goes to the student activities organization to cover admissions to college entertainments and class and club assessments.

#### TERMS OF PAYMENT

All bills for tuition and board are due at the beginning of the school year. For the convenience of our patrons payments may be made as indicated below:

| On account of tuition, due on or before June 10, 1948 | \$100.00 |
|---|----------|
| (This payment may not be refunded).                   |          |

#### TOTAL DUE ON OR REFORE SEPTEMBER 15

| TOTAL DUE ON OR BEFORE SEFTEMBER 13           |           |
|---|-----------|
| On account of tuition, due September 15, 1948 | \$400.00  |
| Board and room                                | 420.00    |
| Student activity fee                          | 30.00     |
| Total due on or before September 15, 1948.    | *\$850.00 |
| Balance on account is due January 1, 1949.    |           |

<sup>\*</sup>Previous payments may be deducted.

#### INCIDENTAL FEES

Diploma or certificate fee.....\$10.00

The student may send her laundry home or arrange through the College to have it done at the Steam Laundry. The College does not do any of the student's laundry.

The \$20.00 room reservation fee is not an extra charge, but is applied on the first payment. Each application is accepted in good faith with the understanding the student intends to enter Lindenwood in September 1948; if plans are unavoidably changed room deposit may be refunded upon request before June 1, 1948.

Students are liable for any breakage.

All remittances should be mailed by certified check direct to Lindenwood College.

Payments must be made before the student can take her place in the classroom. No exception will be made to this rule without written permission from the Bursar.

If bills are not settled when due, it is understood that sight draft will be honored. Interest at 6 per cent will be charged on all unpaid bills.

Diplomas will not be issued or grades given until all bills are properly settled.

When students have been accepted for admission, parents and guardians accept all the conditions of payment and regulations of the College.

The College is very glad to help students with their transportation and baggage, but in doing so simply acts as an agent and is not responsible for loss or inconvenience a student may suffer.

Charges for board and tuition in the various departments for the school year are as low as is consistent with the instruction, service, and accommodation given.

The College will not be responsible for the loss of any personal property of any student or teacher.

#### WITHDRAWAL TERMS

Each student is entered for the college year, and is accepted with the understanding that she will remain for the final examinations at the end of the college year.

All engagements with instructors and other provisions for education are made by the College for the entire year in advance; the established rule is that no deductions will be made from the amount paid.

If a student withdraws voluntarily or involuntarily before the end of the year there is no refund. However, in case of withdrawal upon the recommendation of the college physician, on account of serious illness, a refund pro rata will be made on the amount paid for board and room. No deduction is made for temporary absence during the year.

### Scholarships and Awards

00

It is the purpose of the College to foster educational standards and to assist worthy students in securing an education. To this end, scholarships have been created by friends of the College and through special funds set aside by the Board of Directors. Students receiving scholarships are expected to give service in any academic department when requested to do so.

FELLOWSHIPS—A fellowship of not more than \$500 will be granted a student completing four years of undergraduate work at Lindenwood College with distinction for scholarship, general ability, and loyalty to the standards of the College, and whose purpose it is to continue her education for an advanced degree in a graduate school of standing for the entire year following her acceptance of the Fellowship. Application for this fellowship must be made to the Dean of the College not later than April 1 of the year of the grant. The Faculty will announce the grant of the fellowship at Commencement.

HIGH SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIPS—First honor student of any fouryear accredited high school matriculating as candidate for a degree will be granted a scholarship for the Freshman year, subject to the conditions governing Honor Scholarships of the College.

ARMY AND NAVY SCHOLARSHIP—The College, having been founded and later munificently endowed by families identified with the United States Army, a limited number of scholarships have been provided for daughters of officers of the Army and Navy who matriculate as candidates for degrees.

TEACHERS' SCHOLARSHIPS—Daughters of teachers, principals, and superintendents of public schools, daughters of college and university professors, who meet the requirements, are awarded scholarships upon application.

Sorority Scholarships—The Zeta Chapter of Eta Upsilon Gamma and the Theta Chapter of Sigma Iota Chi have each established scholarships of \$200 to be awarded on the conditions set forth in the requirements for Educational Scholarships by the College. Announcement of the awards is made at each annual Commencement.

MINISTERIAL SCHOLARSHIPS—The Watson Fund provides a Scholarship of one hundred dollars for every daughter of a Presbyterian minister. When the revenue of the endowment is not all used for this purpose, the remainder may be applied to the education of the daughter of any Evangelical minister.

SIBLEY SCHOLARSHIPS—The Alumnae, in honor of the founder of the College, Mrs. Mary Easton Sibley, established in 1927 a Centennial Scholarship Fund, the annual revenue to be awarded needy students who are qualified to meet the entrance requirements.

Applications for aid under this fund should be made to the President of the College, accompanied by a statement of need and recommendation from two persons of the applicant's home town, one from the principal of the school from which she comes, the other from her pastor.

Under this fund several cities have especially provided a sufficient sum for scholarships to be awarded in their name—St. Charles, Missouri; St. Louis, Missouri; Kansas City Missouri; Chicago, Illinois.

LAURA J. HERON SCHOLARSHIP— In memory of her mother, Mrs. Charlia Ayres, wife of President George F. Ayres (1903-1913), created by will a scholarship to assist a worthy student to obtain an education at Lindenwood College. The first award from this fund was made in 1935.

ROEMER LOAN FUND—The St. Louis Lindenwood Evening Club established a loan fund in 1939 in honor of Dr. and Mrs. John L. Roemer. Applicants for this loan fund must have been enrolled for at least two years in Lindenwood College and must file applications with the Committee not later than one month prior to the opening date of the semester in which it is to be used.

DOROTHY HOLTCAMP BADGETT AWARD—The late Judge C. W. Holtcamp of St. Louis, in memory of his daughter, Dorothy Holtcamp, a graduate of Lindenwood College, 1911, established a Bible Award of \$1,000.00 the revenue from the gift to be awarded members of the Freshman class who excel in Bible memory verses. Three awards are made each year at Lindenwood.

PI GAMMA Mu AWARD—This national honorary fraternity awards annually a prize to the student who does distinctive work in the social sciences.

SIGMA TAU DELTA MEDALS—This sorority award is limited to three members of the Freshman class who have, during the year, made outstanding literary contributions. A gold, silver, and bronze medal indicate first, second, and third place.

PROGRESS IN MUSIC AWARD—To the students making the most progress during the year in the Music department prizes are awarded by the department for progress in piano, organ, violin, and voice.

ART AWARDS—The St. Louis Lindenwood College Afternoon Club has provided an award to be given the student who excels in some department of the college. A poster prize is also given by the department for the best poster presented by the contestants.

NELLY DON PRIZES—Awards are given annually by the Donnelly Garment Company of Kansas City for the three best costume designs and for the three best made dresses submitted in the competition. The entries are judged by experts of the company making the awards.

The head of the Donnelly Garment Company is a former student of Lindenwood College.

THE RICHARD C. SPAHMER FUND—Created by bequest of Richard C. Spahmer, formerly dramatic critic of the Globe Democrat, to be used for prizes in literary contests.

DEPARTMENTAL PRIZE—Liberal prizes are offered in various departments of the college for outstanding pieces of writing or research.

THE ST. LOUIS LINDENWOOD COLLEGE EVENING CLUB ACHIEVE-MENT PRIZE.—Offered to a member of the junior or the senior class for an outstanding piece of writing or research work.

#### STUDENT LIFE AND ORGANIZATIONS

Upon matriculation in Lindenwood College every student becomes a member of the Lindenwood Student Association. This organization is granted certain powers from the President and the Faculty of the College that provide for individual and community responsibility on the campus. The Lindenwood Student Association promotes democratic ideals and practices through elective student self-government. A Student Council, a Residence Council, and a Student-Faculty Committee are responsible for the administration of student affairs. Every student entering Lindenwood College is placed upon her honor for loyalty and promotion of high standards of personal conduct.

Since it is the purpose to keep the atmosphere of the College wholesome and helpful, the President may dismiss at any time any student who may be exerting a harmful influence or who may be found to be entirely out of sympathy with the tone and standard of the College, even though she has not committed any special act of insubordination.

Social Life—A varied and interesting calendar of dances, proms, teas, plays, and departmental organization meetings is arranged and published the first of each month. These activities are financed by means of the Student Activity Fund.

Inasmuch as Lindenwood is a residence college every effort is made to maintain and organize the Halls so that students can enjoy the advantages basic to democratic social life in a scholarly atmosphere.

Religious Life—The Advisory Committee in Religion provides counsel for students of each church or faith through members of the faculty and student representatives of their particular church or faith.

Addresses are given during the year by ministers, missionaries, and laymen upon topics that will give the students a large vision of Christian work. Chapel services are held on Monday, and Friday mornings and vespers on Sunday evenings. The Student Christian Association is an effective organization in the development of the religious life. The names of students who express a denominational preference are available to the pastors of the city. Each student is expected to attend the church of her preference.

ENTERTAINMENTS—Public recitals, concerts, and lectures by the faculty and students and world-wide artists furnish an abundance of wholesome entertainment. Within recent years such outstanding people as Mme. Olga Petrova, Andre Michalopoulos, Henry C. Wolfe, Alexandra Tolstoy, Ethel Barrymore Colt, Rollo Walter Brown, Sheila Kaye-Smith, Lord Marley, Sherwood Eddy, Cornelia Otis Skinner, Margaret Webster, William Rose Benet, Ericka Mann, Marcia Davenport, Mme. Pandit, H. R. Knickerbocker, and Iva Kitchell have lectured at the College.

Guests—Patrons, friends, and former students are always welcome. The St. Charles Hotel gives special attention to all patrons and friends visiting the College. It is desirable that visits to the students be arranged for week-ends, to avoid interruption of the regular work. Under no circumstances will students be excused from their college duties to be with friends or relatives in the city.

VACATIONS—The College is closed during the Christmas and the summer vacation periods. During the spring vacation the College cares for all who desire to remain.

ALLOWANCES—Students should be placed upon an allowance from home to meet their incidental expenses. The experience of the College in this respect has clearly demonstrated that a student keeping within the home allowance has found the practice in after life to have been a very important part of her educational equipment.

Honor Societies—Alpha Sigma Tau is an honor society admitting the highest ranking students in the College of Liberal Arts.

Mu Phi Epsilon National Music Sorority admits the highest ranking music students in the Sophomore, Junior and Senior years.

DEPARTMENTAL SOCIETIES—A large number of the departments at Lindenwood College have affiliations with National honor societies. Students who meet the educational qualifications prescribed by these organizations are admitted to membership. The National societies in the College are these:

Psi Cast of Alpha Psi Omega—Speech and Dramatics Theta XI Chapter of Beta Phi Theta—French

The College Poetry Society of America is open to students in all departments

The Home Economics department is affiliated with the American Home Economics Association

International Relations Club League of Women Voters History and Government Kappa Chapter of Kappa Pi—Art Missouri Delta Chapter of Pi Gamma Mu—Social Sciences Kappa Beta Chapter of Sigma Tau Delta—English Tau Sigma—Physical Education

Future Teachers of America

In addition to the names of the societies given above, the College has the following departmental organizations:

Athletic Association—Physical Education.

Beta Chi—Equitation
Commercial Club—Business
Delta Phi Delta—Public School Music and Applied Music

Der Deutsche Verein—German El Circulo Espanol—Spanish Phi Alpha Delta—Latin Triangle Club—Science and Mathematics

#### STUDENT SUPPLIES

For the convenience of new students, the College suggests the following articles which should be provided at the time of entrance:

Two pairs of three-quarter sheets; four pillow cases—size 42; a pair of blankets; towels; four table napkins.

A Dictionary and a Bible, also required, may be purchased at the College Book Store.

An inexpensive gymnasium uniform and a cotton tank suit to be used in the swimming pool should be purchased at the College Store

Every article must be distinctly marked with the owner's full name.

## Admission

019

#### APPLICATION FOR ADMISSION

In applying for admission, the student subscribes to the terms and conditions, financial and otherwise, specified in the Catalog of Lindenwood College for 1948-49.

Application for admission should be made as early as possible in order to insure the prompt completion of all preliminary arrangements.

All communications regarding reservations should be addressed to the Secretary, Lindenwood College, St. Charles, Missouri, and each applicant must fill out and return an application blank, which will be furnished upon request.

Every application must be accompanied by a deposit of twenty dollars (\$20), room reservation fee, which will be credited on account upon matriculation.

Students desiring to enter in the fall of 1948 are urged to make early application, as the rooms in the dormitories are assigned in the order of receipt of application.

An application is not fully accepted until a statement of honorable dismissal and a certificate of scholarship from the last school attended have been passed upon by the Registrar.

All communications regarding high school and entrance credits should be addressed to the Registrar, Lindenwood College, St. Charles, Missouri.

#### SOURCES OF ACCEPTABLE CREDITS

CREDITS—A statement of credits must be certified by the proper official of the school in which they are made. The Registrar of the College will furnish blank forms for high school credits which must be filled in by the Principal or the Superintendent of the high school concerned. These blanks should be returned directly to the Registrar as soon as possible after graduation.

A diploma will not be accepted as a credential.

The accredited secondary schools from which students are accepted are:

- 1. Those accredited by the various state universities.
- 2. Those accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools.
  - 3. Those accredited by other similar associations.

Examinations accepted for entrance are:

- 1. Those conducted by Lindenwood College.
- 2. Those conducted by the College Entrance Examination Board.

A fee of \$5.00 each will be charged all students who take entrance examinations, and \$2.00 for each special examination.

Lindenwood College endeavors to keep a high standard of scholarship. It may, therefore, refuse to accept the credits of any student who has not the recommendation of her high school Principal that she has the ability to do standard college work.

Admission From Other Colleges and Universities—An applicant for admission who offers credits from another college or university must present a certificate of honorable dismissal. She must also submit an official statement showing the subjects upon which she was admitted and the transcript of her record in such college or university. These certificates should be sent in advance to the Registrar of the College.

#### REQUIREMENTS FOR ADMISSION

Students applying for admission must be graduates of fully accredited high schools, or must present fifteen acceptable units for admission from a four-year accredited high school or twelve acceptable units for admission from an accredited Senior high school. Students who are graduates of unaccredited secondary schools are admitted only upon the basis of examination.

An entrance "unit" means a subject that is pursued for five forty-five minute periods for at least thirty-six weeks.

Candidates for admission must present high school units which are selected from the following list of subjects:

#### GROUP I. PRESCRIBED UNITS.

 G

|  | Minimum  | Maximum  |
|--|--|--|
| English  | 3  | 4  |
| Mathamatics-   |  |  |
|  |  | 1  |
|  |  | 2  |
| - [[[대통기 : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :   |  | 1  |
|  |  | 1  |
|  |  | 1  |
|  |  | 1  |
| (o) Mayancea Michinette  | 72   |  |
| History—   |  |  |
|  | 7 44   | 4  |
|  | 1/2  | 1  |
| (3) Civics   | r. a   | 1  |
|  |  | 1  |
|  |  | 1  |
| (6) American Problems  | 1/2  | 1  |
| ***Languages—  |  |  |
|  | 1  | 4  |
| The state of the s | 2  | 4  |
| (3) French   | 2  | 4  |
| (4) Spanish  | 2  | 4  |
| (5) German   | 2  | 4  |
| (6) Hebrew   | 2  | 4  |
| S-i  |  |  |
|  | 1/   | 2  |
|  | 50.00  | 2  |
|  |  | 2  |
| (4) Botany   | -  | 2  |
| (5) Physiology   | A  | 2  |
| (a) I mystology  | A  | 2  |
| (6) Chemistry  | 1/2  |  |
| (6) Chemistry  | / 4  |  |
| (7) Physics  | 1/2  | 2  |
|  | 1/2<br>1/2   |  |
|  | Mathematics— (1) General Mathematics (2) Algebra. (3) Plane Geometry (4) Solid Geometry. (5) Trigonometry. (6) **Advanced Arithmetic.  History— (1) History. (2) Government and Constitution (3) Civics. (4) Economics. (5) Sociology. (6) American Problems.  ***Languages— (1) Latin. (2) Greek. (3) French. (4) Spanish. (5) German. (6) Hebrew.  Science— (1) Geology. (2) General Biology. (3) Zoology. | Mathematics—       1         (1) General Mathematics       1         (2) Algebra.       1         (3) Plane Geometry       ½         (4) Solid Geometry       ½         (5) Trigonometry       ½         (6) **Advanced Arithmetic       ½         History—       ½         (1) History       ½         (2) Government and Constitution       ½         (3) Civics       ½         (4) Economics       ½         (5) Sociology       ½         (6) American Problems       ½         ***Languages—       1         (1) Latin       1         (2) Greek       2         (3) French       2         (4) Spanish       2         (5) German       2         (6) Hebrew       2         Science—       1         (1) Geology       ½         (2) General Biology       ½         (3) Zoology       ½ |

<sup>\*</sup>For students from four-year high schools, twelve or more of the required fifteen (15) units for admission may be selected from the above groups, which includes the six prescribed units.

For students from Senior high schools, the twelve units required for admission should be selected from the above group, which includes the six prescribed units.

Remaining units may be selected from the following list of subjects:

<sup>\*\*</sup>Must be preceded by elementary algebra and plane geometry.

<sup>\*\*\*</sup>One unit in a modern foreign language will not be accepted for admission unless two units in one other foreign language are presented.

#### GROUP III.

|                       | Minimum | Maximum |
|-----------------------|---------|---------|
| Agriculture           | . 1     | 1       |
| Music                 | 1/2     | 3       |
| Art                   | . 1     | 3       |
| Manual Training       | . 1     | 2       |
| Home Economics        | . 1     | 3       |
| Commercial Geography. | 1/2     | 1/2     |
| Commercial Law        | 1/2     | 1/2     |
| Commercial Arithmetic | 1/2     | 1/2     |
| Bookkeeping           | 1/2     | 1       |
| Shorthand             | . 1     | 2       |
| Typewriting           | . 1/2   | 1       |
| Journalism            | 1/2     | 1       |
| Speech                | . 1/2   | 1       |
| Bible                 | . 1/2   | 3/2     |
| Psychology            | 1/2     | 1/2     |
|                       |         |         |

Students deficient in not more than one entrance unit may be admitted as conditioned freshmen. This condition must be removed before sophomore classification may be granted.

#### REGISTRATION

The fall term for the college year 1948-1949 opens Thursday, September 15. Students are advised to register as early as possible,

A student who enters after the regular registration period is required to pay a fee of \$5 for late registration.

Students should plan their courses for both semesters.

Standard Tests are given to every freshman during the first week of school.

Every Freshman and Sophomore must take one credit hour of Physical Education each semester unless excused by the College Physician or by the Dean.

Every student must take two hours of Bible during her freshman or her sophomore year and must complete four hours of Bible or Philosophy before receiving any degree, unless excused by the Dean or the President.

A total of four hours credit in the ensemble courses in applied music will be accepted toward an A. B. or B. S. degree. Students not taking the subjects for credit are not allowed in these courses.

## Courses of Instruction

#### GENERAL INFORMATION

Numbering of Courses—The Roman numeral at the left of the number of a course indicates the grade of the course. Courses of Grade I are primarily for Freshmen and Sophomores; courses of Grade II primarily for Sophomores and Juniors; and courses of Grade III primarily for Juniors and Seniors. Unless permission is secured from the Dean of the College and the head of the department concerned, a Freshman may not elect a course of Grade II, a Sophomore a course of Grade III, or a Junior or Senior a course of Grade I. When a Junior or a Senior elects a course of Grade I, only three hours' credit is obtained for a five-hour course, two-hours' credit for a three-hour course, and one hour's credit for a two-hour course.

The letter following the number of a course indicates the semester in which it is offered; for example, Course "1a" is offered during the first semester, "1b" during the second semester. Where the course number is not followed by a letter, a year course is indicated; for example, Course 2 is continued throughout the year.

PREREQUISITE COURSES—The description of each course is preceded by a specification of the prerequisite courses. No student may enter a course unless she has had the prerequisite courses. An exception to this rule may be made only by special action of the Academic Dean and the head of the department concerned.

WITHDRAWAL OF COURSES—A course may be withdrawn unless it is elected by a sufficient number of students. In general, a freshman or a sophomore course will not be given for fewer than five students.

NUMBER OF HOURS—No student is permitted to carry courses aggregating fewer than twelve credit hours unless the minimum is reduced, in view of exceptional conditions. No student is, as a rule, permitted to carry more than the maximum mumber of hours allowed for her college class. In general, the maximum for the students in the various classes is as follows:

Freshmen: Sixteen hours, exclusive of required hour of Physical Education.

Sophomores: Sixteen hours, exclusive of required hour of Physical Education.

Juniors and Seniors: Eighteen hours.

WITHDRAWAL FROM COURSES—No student may withdraw from any course that she has entered unless the circumstances are exceptional. In such a case permission must be obtained from the Dean of the College and a card of dismissal obtained from her and presented to the instructor of the course which is to be discontinued. Credit is not allowed for a course which is incomplete.

Students dropping courses after the first low grades are in the dean's office will receive a grade of F for that semester. Students dropping courses after this time with a good excuse, will be given the mark of Dropped if their record up to that time has been satisfactory. Otherwise, the grade will be F.

ATTENDANCE AT CLASSES-Academic work in Lindenwood College is based upon the regular attendance of students at all classes. It is understood, therefore, that students will attend all classes regularly, unless absence is due to unavoidable reasons. Responsibility for any work missed during an absence from class is a matter which rests with the student and the instructor. Absence from class caused by illness will be excused by the College Physician. Students who are ill should report immediately to the College Health Center. Upon dismissal from the Health Center a student will be issued an excuse which must be presented to the instructor of each class upon return to class. Requests for absence from class because of church holidays, weddings, funerals, participation in civic programs and conferences approved by the College, must be presented to the Attendance Committee. All excuses must be presented to each instructor upon return to class. No student may be absent on the day of an assigned test, or other special assigned work, unless an excuse is presented to the instructor. In the case of an unexcused absence, the student cannot expect to make up the assigned test, or other special assigned work missed. Absence from any class within the last twenty-four hours before, or the first twenty-four hours after, any regular vacation or holiday is not permitted. Tardiness of more than twenty minutes from any class the last twenty-four hours before or the first twenty-four hours after, any regular vacation or holiday, shall be considered as an absence for that class period. Three tardinesses count as one absence. For unexcused absences at any vacation period, a student shall not take her final examination in the courses missed until the end of the first six weeks of the following semester.

REPORTS TO PARENTS—Complete reports are sent to parents twice each year, as soon as possible after the close of each semester.

ELIMINATION OF STUDENTS—The College will eliminate students who cannot or will not measure up to the standard of scholarship maintained by the College. A freshman who does not pass in fifty per cent of her work is not eligible for re-admission the following term. An upperclass student must pass in sixty per cent of her work to be eligible for re-admission.

GRADES—The grades of E, S, M, I, and F are given. The grade of E means that the student is one of the few excellent students. The grade of S gives the student rank among those who are superior. The grade of M means that the student ranks among those satisfactory, approximating half of a class. Below M, the grade I means that the student is somewhat below medium. The grade of F places the student among those ranking lowest, and is not a passing mark.

RESIDENCE—A candidate for any degree, diploma, or certificate must be a student at Lindenwood College for at least one year. For a Bachelor's degree the last year's work of the student should be done in residence at Lindenwood College.

# REQUIREMENTS FOR SENIOR COLLEGE DEGREE AND FOR THE JUNIOR COLLEGE CERTIFICATE

The requirements for the Junior College Certificate of Associate in Arts are as follows:

- 1. English Composition: Six hours.
- 2. Bible: Two hours.
- 3. \*Foreign Language: In general, unless unusual proficiency is shown, two years of the same language, if begun in college. If the student has offered for entrance two units in one foreign language, she will be required to complete only one year of the same language in college. If she has offered one year of a foreign language for entrance, she will be required to complete one and one-half years of the same language in college, unless she has shown unusual proficiency in this language.
- Humanities: Six hours, unless four units of credit in history have been offered for entrance.
- 5. English Literature: Six hours.
- 6. Sociology, Economics, or Psychology: Six hours.
- 7. General Biology: Six hours.
- 8. Physical Science: Six hours.

10

Mathematics: Six hours.

OI

\*\*Mathematics: Three hours and Logic: Three hours.

9. Physical Education: Four hours.

<sup>\*</sup>A student showing unusual proficiency in any one language upon entering college may, by special permission, be excused from her language requirement.

<sup>\*\*</sup>If 21/2 entrance units or more in Mathematics are presented for admission.

A total of 60 semester hours, exclusive of Physical Education, is required for this Certificate. In general, an average of a grade M or a total of 60 points is required for a certificate.

The requirements for the Senior College Degree of Bachelor of Arts are those given above in Numbers 1-9 and the following:

- 10. A total of 124 semester hours, exclusive of Physical Education.
- A total of 120 points. Each hour of credit has the following value in points: E, 3 points; S, 2 points; M, 1 point.
- 12. The completion of a major and a minor subject, as follows:
  - (a) A major subject of at least twenty-four hours chosen from courses of Grades II and III, of which at least twelve hours must be of Grade III.
  - (b) \*A minor subject of at least twelve hours, of which at least six hours must be of Grade III, and the remaining six hours of Grade II. The work in the major and minor subjects must ordinarily be pursued in the Junior and Senior years, but courses which have been satisfactorily completed in the Sophomore year may be counted toward the major at the discretion of the head of the department concerned. In case a Junior or a Senior selects an elective course of Grade I, only three hours' credit will be allowed for a five-hour course, two hours' credit for a three hour course, and one hour's credit for a two-hour course unless special permission for full credit is obtained from the Dean of the College.
- 13. Each student must pass an examination in proficiency in English, during her Junior or her Senior year. No student will be recommended for graduation until she has satisfactorily passed this test.
- She must complete four hours of Bible or Philosophy before any degree is granted, unless a special excuse is obtained.
- 15. A maximum of eighteen vocational hours, in addition to the four hours of required Physical Education, are allowed toward the Bachelor of Arts degree. In the Departments of the Vocations unstarred courses in Education, Home Economics, Physical Education, and Music, also all private lessons, are vocational. From the department of Secretarial Science, a maximum of twelve hours will be granted toward the Bachelor of Arts degree.
- 16. Two Bachelor degrees will not be granted to a student until she has completed a minimum of twenty-four hours' work in addition to the requirements for one of the degrees.
- 17. Not more than half of the credit for a year course offered by several departments will count toward a major or a minor in any one department.
- 18. No student shall be classified as a member of the Senior Class until she has as many points as the ninety hours required for Senior standing. To have Sophomore standing, a student shall have completed twenty-eight hours, Junior standing, fifty-six hours.

<sup>\*</sup>Students planning to teach should complete a minor of eighteen hours of which at least nine hours are of Grade III work.

# Degrees, Diplomas, and Certificates

00

The following degrees, diplomas, and certificates are granted by Lindenwood College upon the completion of the courses prescribed:

# COLLEGE OF ARTS AND SCIENCE

The degree of A. B. (Bachelor of Arts).

The Junior College certificate of Associate in Arts (two years).

A certificate in Art (two years).

A certificate in Speech and Dramatics (two years).

# DEPARTMENTS OF VOCATIONS

The degree of B. S. (Bachelor of Science).

A certificate in Elementary Education.

A certificate in Secretarial Science (two years).

A certificate in Physical Education (two years).

# DEPARTMENT OF MUSIC

The degree of B. M. (Bachelor of Music). A diploma in Piano, Voice, Organ, or Violin. A certificate in Public School Music.

# Courses in the College of Arts and Science

# 00

# I 1a, 1b. AMERICAN CONTEMPORARY CIVILIZATION

A survey of economic, political, and sociological problems in the United States in relation to postwar reconstruction years. Particular reference is made to the complex cultural composition of American people, and their relationships with the peoples in the other American republics.

Credit: Two hours.

# I or II 14a, 14b. GREAT BOOKS

Reading and Discussion of important classics in terms of their significance to contemporary life.

Credit: One hour.

#### ART

(See page 135)

### BIBLICAL LITERATURE AND HISTORY

The Bible department was established by Mrs. Margaret Leggat Butler who endowed the Chair.

Four hours of Bible study are required for the bachelor's degree. Two hours of Bible must be taken during the freshman or sophomore year. Courses in Philosophy will fulfill the Bible requirement. The courses in Bible and Religious Education furnish preparation for volunteer leadership in Sunday Schools and Churches and serve as prerequisite courses to more advanced work leading to positions as church secretaries and directors of religious education. Those interested in such vocational preparation will find the course of study outlined on pages 78 and 79.

The department purposes to give an understanding of religion as one of the vital areas of cultural development.

# I 12a, 12b. An Introduction to the History of the Hebrews

The course is designed to introduce students to the study of the Bible as one of the classics of world literature. The course follows the heroic struggles of the Hebrew people from Abraham to the time of Christ. Their hopes, their disappointments, their religious experiences are evaluated as to their effect upon events that came later. The study of the History of the Hebrews is constantly related to the student's experience in modern life.

Credit: Two hours.

### I 2a, 2b. An Introduction to the History of New Testament Times

This course is designed to give the student a knowledge of the background and circumstances of the beginnings of Christianity. The chief sources will be found in the literature of the New Testament and in Greek, Roman and Jewish records of the first century B. C. and the first century A. D.

Credit: Two hours.

# II 3a. Social Thought of the Hebrew Prophets

A study of the statesmanship and social and religious ideals of the Hebrew prophets with a view to present political, social, and religious reform. A genetic study is made of the conditions which produced the great prophets of the eighth and seventh centuries B. C. in Palestine. The prophets are men who had deep spiritual insight into the mysteries of Truth and Reality and were keen interpreters of their times.

Credit: Two hours.

# II. 13b. THE LIFE AND TEACHINGS OF JESUS

A study of the career and personality of Jesus as an outstanding person in world history, and of the ideas of Jesus which contribute to a constructive philosophy of life. Special emphasis is given to the effect of the personality and ideas of Jesus upon world history, together with their meaning for the future as ideals yet to be realized.

Credit: Two hours.

### II 6a. HEBREW POETRY AND WISDOM LITERATURE

A study of Nebrew poetry and wisdom literature with reference to the emotional background which produced it and caused it to be preserved. Poems of patriotism, of the love of nature, of human love and romance, of deep suffering and sorrow, of worship, and of aspiration furnish a wide variety of human experience to be re-experienced in its study. The principal source materials are found in the five poetical books of the Old Testament. These poems and wisdom literature are compared with secular poems and wisdom literature of similar mood.

Credit: Two hours.

(This course given in alternate years. Not offered in 1948-49)

# II 5b. HISTORICAL RECORDS OF THE EARLY CHRISTIAN CHURCH

The adventures and achievements of the apostles are studied. How the church began, the early letters and their use in the churches, the beginnings of creeds, the early customs and practices, are subjects of investigation. The dramatic struggle to gain a foothold in the rigidly governed Roman Empire provides a story of absorbing interest.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

### III 9a. COMPARATIVE RELIGION

A comparative study of the world's living religions, with a view to better understanding of the peoples of other races and religions. An objective study of their customs and practices is made and an evaluation according to social consequence is given.

Credit: Three hours.

### III 10b. RELIGIOUS INSTITUTIONS

A study of the religious institutions found in present day society: their organization and purposes. Such institutions as the Church, the Synagogue, parochial schools and colleges, philanthropic institutions, Mission Boards, Bible Societies, The Federal Council of Churches, and others, are studied.

The aim is to give the student an understanding of the meaning of the religious institutions which she is likely to meet in her broader world contacts.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

# III 11a. PRINCIPLES OF RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

Prerequisite: At least two hours of Bible.

An introductory study of the aims of religious education, of the principles of education in their moral and religious significance, and of the choice of materials and methods and their practical adaptation to varying situations.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

REQUIREMENTS FOR MAJOR—Twenty-four hours in Bible and Philosophy.

REQUIREMENTS FOR MINOR-Twelve hours in Bible and Philosophy.

RELATED COURSES IN OTHER DEPARTMENTS.

# III 9b. THE PSYCHOLOGY OF RELIGION

(For description, see Philosophy, page 63.)

Credit: Two or three hours.

# III 10b. THE PHILOSOPHY OF RELIGION

(For description, see Philosophy, page 63.)

Credit: Two hours.

### BIOLOGICAL SCIENCE

### I 1. GENERAL BIOLOGY

An introduction to plants and animals with emphasis upon the principles and facts which lead to a better appreciation of man's place in the biological world.

Time: Two lectures and one two-hour laboratory period a week,

Credit: Six hours.

#### I 2a. HYGIENE

A course presenting the fundamental principles of personal, mental, and environmental hygiene and aiming to help the student develop a well-balanced program of healthful living.

Time: Three lecture periods a week.

Credit: Three hours.

#### 1 2b. PREVENTIVE MEDICINE

A course which aims to give the student a basic understanding of the causes, methods of transfer, and prevention of common diseases.

Time: Two lectures a week.

Credit: Two hours.

# I 3. GENERAL SCIENCE

A presentation of the fundamentals of biological and physical sciences, with emphasis on the relation of science to human life. A course designed especially for students who expect to teach in elementary schools.

Time: Three lecture and demonstration periods a week.

Credit: Six hours.

# I or II 4b. CULTIVATED PLANTS

A study which includes the identification, culture, and methods of propagation of cultivated plants. The greenhouse serves as a laboratory for the cultivation of all types of house plants. Students are given practice in raising annuals from seed and in the preparation and planting of borders. Several laboratory periods are devoted to the art of flower arrangement. The course includes a field trip to the St. Louis Flower show as well as numerous trips to local gardens and parks.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours.

# II 4a. ANATOMY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A course for Physical Education majors which gives a basic knowledge of the structure of the human body.

Time: Three lectures a week.

Credit: Three hours.

### II 5. PHYSIOLOGY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A study of the functions of the human body, including studies of circulation, respiration, digestion, excretion, etc., and laboratory experiments in which lower animals are utilized to demonstrate various physiological principles.

Time: Two lectures, one two-hour laboratory period a week.

Credit: Six hours.

# II 7b. INVERTEBRATE ZOOLOGY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A study of the invertebrate animals with special emphasis upon living forms. In the spring, trips are taken to ponds, marshes, streams, woods and fields so that living communities may be observed.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

### II 14b GENETICS

No prerequisite

A study of the principles of reproduction and heredity; the mechanism of heredity, mutations, hybridization, sex-determination, the inheritance of physical and mental characters in man and their relation to human betterment.

Time: Three lectures a week.

### II or III 6a. BACTERIOLOGY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A course dealing with the structure and activities of bacteria, yeasts, and molds, with emphasis upon their relationship to daily living.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours.

### II or III 6b. ADVANCED BACTERIOLOGY

Prerequisite: General Biology, and Bacteriology 6a.

A course which continues the work begun in introductory Bacteriology with emphasis being placed on the disease-producing organisms.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week. Credit: Three hours.

# II or III 8a. PLANT SURVEY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A general survey of the major groups of plants, including laboratory work on representative algae, fungi, mosses, ferns and seed plants. Structure, functions and comparative relationships of the plants in the various groups will be considered.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours.

# II or III 7a. TREES AND SHRUBS

Prerequisite: General Biology.

Designed to familiarize the student with the trees and shrubs of this region and to teach the main facts concerning their structure, growth, habit, and distribution. The course will include several field trips.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods or field trips of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours.

### II or III 10. COMPARATIVE ANATOMY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A course dealing with the comparative anatomy of the vertebrates with special emphasis upon mammalian structures and their development.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week. Credit: Six hours.

# II or III 9a. PLANT ANATOMY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

The detailed structure of various types of roots, stems, leaves and flowers of the higher plants.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours.

(Not offered in 1948-49)

# II or III 11b. TAXONOMY OF HIGHER PLANTS

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A study of the kinds of seed plants, their classification into genera, families and orders including work on the local flora. Emphasis is placed on wild plants, but the cultivated plants receive some attention. Several field trips, including a day at the Shaw Aboretum are required.

Time: One lecture, two laboratories of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

### III 12b. VERTEBRATE EMBRYOLOGY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A course dealing with the development of the vertebrates with special reference to the chick and mammal.

Time: One lecture, two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week. Credit: Three hours.

# III 13a. MICROTECHNIQUE

Prerequisite: General Biology.

The acquisition of skill in preparing tissues for microscopic examination and study of the slides prepared.

Time: Two laboratory periods of three hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours.

### II or III 14a. PARASITOLOGY

Prerequisite: General Biology.

A survey of the protozoan, helminth, and arthropod parasites of man, with consideration of the biological significance of parasitism, the geographic distribution of human parasites, and the diseases resulting from parasitism.

Time: Two lectures and one laboratory period of two hours a week. Credit: Three hours.

(Not offered in 1948-49).

### III 17a, 17b. BIOLOGICAL PROBLEMS

Prerequisite: Fifteen hours of major work in Biological Science.

Advanced work on selected topics will be arranged with individual students who are prepared to undertake semi-independent work.

Time: Two or three laboratory periods a week.

Credit: Two to three hours.

REQUIREMENTS FOR BIOLOGY MAJOR—At least twelve of the twentyfour hours required for a major in Biological Science must be in Grade III courses.

(Summer work taken at the Marine Biological Laboratory, Woods Hole, Massachusetts; Puget Sound Biological Station, Friday Harbor, Washington or at other marine or freshwater stations of accredited institutions will be accepted for major credit.)

### CLASSICAL LANGUAGES AND LITERATURE

### GREEK

# I 2a, b. GREEK MYTHOLOGY

A study in English of the Greek myths and heroes. The purpose of the course is to familiarize the student with the stories of the Greek gods as a background for literature and art. Some time is given to the study of mythology as it survives in expressions today, and as it is used in the commercial world. Illustrated with lantern slides.

Credit: Two hours.

### I 11b. THE PRIVATE LIFE OF THE GREEKS

This course pictures the Greeks as they went about their daily living in their homes, the market places, and at the theater. It includes marriage customs, the position of women in the social order, amusements, clothing, education, and athletics. Illustrated with lantern slides. A knowledge of Greek not required.

Credit: Two hours.

# II or III 30. GREEK CIVILIZATION

A study of Greek life and achievement in the fields of government, art, literature, religion, education, drama, athletics, science and philosophy. An estimate of the debt of the Modern World to Ancient Greece. A knowledge of Greek not required.

Credit: Three hours.

(May count on History major.)

#### LATIN

### I 1. VIRGIL

Prerequisite: Two entrance units in Latin.

The Aeneid will be studied as a complete epic poem. To accomplish this we use a text partly in Latin and partly in translation. Emphasis is placed upon the poem as a literary masterpiece, and upon Virgil's desire to glorify the Roman people and their achievements. This year's course will fulfill the degree requirement for a foreign language.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### I or II 2a. LATIN POETRY

Prerequisite: Latin 1, or three entrance units in Latin,

This course is designed to give the student an acquaintance with a number of Latin poets. The reading includes short, interesting poems from many authors and presents many phases of Roman life.

Credit: Three hours.

#### I 8b. AMERICAN ARCHITECTURE

A study of representative types of architecture from early to modern times. An additional hour relates modern homes and their furnishings to each historic period. Illustrated with lantern slides.

Credit: Two hours.

### I 11b. THE PRIVATE LIFE OF THE ROMANS

This course presents an intimate view of the Roman in his home, in the Senate, and in the Assembly. It deals with amusements, marriage customs, training for citizenship, means of travel, and the Roman genius for building roads, bridges, and great civic buildings. Illustrated with lantern slides. A knowledge of Latin is not required.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

#### II 2b. HORACE

Prerequisite: Latin 1, or its equivalent. The Odes and Epodes. Credit: Three hours.

# II 4a. COMPARATIVE MYTHOLOGY

Prerequisite: Greek Mythology 2a or 2b.

This course attempts to trace the similarity in myths and folk-tales of different peoples of the world. Sun myths, flood and vegetation myths, the return of seasons, the propitiation of evil powers, the views of the afterworld, and the deeds of folk-heroes will be compared. Slavic, African, Teutonic, Chinese, Japanese, and American Indian myths will be included in the study. Credit: Two hours.

### II or III 5b. ROMAN CIVILIZATION

A study of Roman life and achievement in the fields of law, family life, religion, education, and art. An estimate of the debt of the Modern World to Ancient Rome. Illustrated with lantern slides.

Credit: Three hours.
(May count on History major.)

### III 3a. CATULLUS AND THE ELEGIAC POETS

Prerequisite: Latin 2b.
Selections from Catullus, Propertius, Tibullus, and Ovid.
Credit: Three hours.
(Not offered in 1948-49).

#### III 4b. ROMAN COMEDY

Prerequisite: Latin 3a.
Selected plays of Plautus and Terence.
Credit: Three hours.

# III 5a. VIRGIL AND OVID

Prerequisites: Latin 2b and 3a.
The Eclogues and the Georgics of Virgil
Selected poems of Ovid.
Credit: Three hours.
(Alternate with 7a.)

# III 6b. THE SATIRE AND THE DRAMA

Prerequisites: Latin 3a, 4b, and 5a. Selected satires of Horace and Juvenal. Selections from the tragedies of Seneca,

This course will deal especially with the Classical influence in English Literature.

Credit: Three hours. (Alternate with 7b.)

# III 7a. TACITUS. PLINY AND CICERO

Prerequisites: Latin 3a and 4b.

The Agricola of Tacitus and selected letters of Pliny and Cicero.

Credit: Three hours. (Alternate with 5a.)

### III 7b. HISTORY OF LATIN LITERATURE

Prerequisites: Latin 3a, 4b, and 7a.

A general survey of Latin literature studied through selections from authors not previously read.

Credit: Three hours. (Alternate with 6b.)

### III 9a. METHODS OF TEACHING LATIN

Prerequisite: Twelve hours of Latin.

A course designed for those who intend to teach Latin in the secondary school; a study of modern teaching methods; practice in the presentation of main subjects.

Credit: Two hours.

REQUIREMENT FOR MAJORS—Students wishing to major in Latin will consult the Head of the Department.

### **ECONOMICS**

The courses in this department are planned for women consumers in American democracy. Opportunities in St. Louis are available for work experience that can be integrated with some of the courses.

#### II. 1a. b. Introduction to Economics

The economic processes of production, consumption, distribution, and exchange are analyzed from the point of view of the consumer. The course acquaints the student with her role in the economic system, both as producer and as consumer. As economic problems are increasingly the concern of the government, this course helps the student to understand economic issues and to vote intelligently on them. The public welfare and consumer viewpoints are emphasized.

# II 8b. Business Law

A course on the fundamental principles of law in relation to the more common business transactions, dealing with such subjects as contracts, sales, bailments, negotiable instruments, laws of employment and property.

Credit: Two hours.

### II 3b. Consumer Economics

A study of family income available in different social groups, the influence of family income on personality and family life, the importance of intelligent consumer buying for American women.

Credit: Two hours.

### II 6a. STATISTICAL METHODS

A study of elementary statistical methods appropriate for the analysis of the data of the social sciences and business.

Credit: Two hours.

# III 4a. LABOR PROBLEMS AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Prerequisite: Economics 1a or 1b; or Sociology 2a or 2b.

A survey of the significant questions and problems of American industry in relation to postwar conditions in our democracy.

Credit: Three hours.

### III 5b. CURRENT ECONOMIC PROBLEMS

Prerequisite: Economics 1a or 1b.

An analysis of the following current controversial economic issues: taxation; public expenditures; commercial and investment banking; installment buying; home ownership; economic insecurity; economic stability; economic waste; government control.

Credit: Three hours.

# II or III 7b. RETAIL MERCHANDISING

This course includes the development of retail establishments, the types, and organization of retail stores. Special attention is given to the principles of retail buying. Work experience in stores is desirable.

Credit: Two hours.

(Not offered in 1948-49)

### II or III 10b. RETAIL ADVERTISING

Types and problems of retail advertising are analyzed in detail. Work experience constitutes the practical application of this course.

Credit: Two hours.

(Alternates with Retail Merchandising)

# III 2b. Comparative Economic Systems

Prerequisite: Economics 1a or 1b.

Private capitalism, theoretical socialism, Russian communism, and fascism are analyzed and evaluated both historically and functionally in terms of their contribution to human welfare. The purpose is to make the student aware of both the strong and weak points in our own economic system so that convictions may rest on knowledge rather than prejudice or emotion.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

### III 9a, b. SPECIAL RESEARCH PROBLEMS

Prerequisite: Twelve hours in Economics.

Special research work may be done in this department by consulting the head of the department.

Credit: Two or three hours each semester. Department Staff.

REQUIRED FOR MAJOR—Twenty-four hours required for a major in Economics. Students who plan to teach Economics, or to pursue graduate work in the field, are advised to consult with the department head. Students interested in public welfare administration—see suggested curricula in preprofessional social welfare, page 83. Students who plan to engage in personnel work are advised to consult the department head.

### RELATED COURSES IN OTHER DEPARTMENTS

- 11 2b. ECONOMIC GEOGRAPHY
  (For description, see Geography, page 52.)
  Credit: Three hours.
- III 8b. Psychology of Human Relations
  (For description, see Psychology, page 69.)
  Credit: Three hours.
- III 3b. APPLIED PSYCHOLOGY
  (For description, see Psychology, page 68.)
  Credit: Three hours.
- III 14b. Methods of Teaching History and the Social Sciences
  (For description, see History and Government, page 55, or Sociology, page 72.)

Credit: Two hours.

- III 20b. Public Welfare Administration (For description, see Sociology page 72.) Credit: Two hours.
- II 4a Latin American Culture and Institutions. (For description, see Sociology, page 71) Credit: Three hours.

### II 11a. AMERICAN NATIONAL GOVERNMENT

(For description, see Government and History, page 53).

Credit: Three hours.

# III 21a. VOCATIONAL GUIDANCE

(For description, see Sociology, page 72).

Credit: Three hours.

### SECRETARIAL SCIENCE COURSES

(For description, see page 110).

### **ENGLISH**

# I 1a, b. STUDY TECHNIQUES

Class lectures and group conferences for development of efficient methods of study and reading skills. Required of students whose entrance tests show a need for it.

Time: One lecture and one hour of group conference each week. Individual conferences to be arranged for extra assistance,

No credit.

### 1 2. ENGLISH COMPOSITION

This course is designed to teach the student how to take notes on reading and lectures; how to outline her own papers; and how to write them in clear and interesting prose, with due regard for correct grammar and punctuation. In this course, the student also learns how to write interesting personal letters, and how to make brief oral reports on books or current events with becoming poise and confidence. Students whose training in English is insufficient will be assigned to sections meeting five times a week, where special attention will be given to their individual problems.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

(Required of all Freshmen)

### I 4 Special English Composition

This course is open to Freshmen who reveal in their entrance tests a mastery of the mechanics of composition, a mature sense of form, and some originality. In addition to two class meetings, the student will have one private lesson each week. She may experiment with various literary forms, according to her individual interests.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

### I or II 14a, 14b. GREAT BOOKS

(For description, see page 37).

Credit: One hour.

# II 3a, b CREATIVE WRITING

Prerequisite: English 2.

Class and private instruction in the writing of such literary forms as the essay, the short story, the radio script, the dramatic sketch, and verse. Students may choose projects according to individual interests and needs.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

# II 5. GENERAL INTRODUCTION TO ENGLISH LITERATURE

The student may choose between two courses:

- A survey of English literature from Beowulf to the late Victorians with due attention to historical and social backgrounds. This course is required of English majors and minors.
- 2. A study of masterpieces in English and American literature. The student will read and discuss the following types—history, biography, the essay, the novel, the short story, drama, and poetry both of the past and of modern times—for the purpose of understanding and appreciating both ideas and aesthetic form. This course is required of all candidates for Elementary School Certificates, and is suggested for those who wish a general, not a specialized, background in the field.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# II 6. MODERN FICTION

This is a reading course, whose purpose is to familiarize students with the best novels of recent English and American authors, their style, their subject matter, and their treatment of modern problems.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

# II 15. JOURNALISM

A course giving practical training in news writing for college publications and metropolitan newspapers. Lectures on news gathering and writing, feature stories and other specialized fields including editorial writing and the various forms of criticism. Theoretical training is supplemented by actual work on the College newspaper, the Linden Bark, and by individual consultations with the instructor, A knowledge of typing is required for this course.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

### II 15. RADIO WRITING

(See Speech and Dramatics-page 147).

# II or III 9a, b. ADVANCED CREATIVE WRITING

Prerequisite: English 3a, b, or English 4.

Private instruction in the writing of selected literary forms.

Credit: One hour each semester.

### II 16a. MODERN POETRY

In this course the student reads the best British and American poetry of recent years, becomes familiar with the principles of good poetry, and contemplates beauty as interpreted and expressed by poets of our time. This course is primarily for enjoyment.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

### II 16b. MODERN DRAMA

In this course the student traces the development of the theater from Ibsen to the present day, and reads the best plays from Continental, British, and American authors. New Theatre movements, development of the modern stage, and dramatic treatment of current problems are some of the subjects considered.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

### II 19a. CHILD LITERATURE

A brief historical survey of children's literature; a study of the principles underlying selection, technique of presenting, and types as related to children's reading in home, school, and community; an investigation of representative writers and illustrators in the field.

This course is offered in conjunction with Story-Telling. The student desiring oral interpretation of this form of literature should register for Child Literature and Story-Telling, in which case an additional hour of credit is allowed. See Speech and Dramatics 2a.

Credit: Two hours

# III 7. AMERICAN LITERATURE

In this course the student comes to see American literature as an expression of conflicting social ideals and national development. Literature of the Colonial Frontier, of the Trans-Allegheny migration, of the Trans-Mississippi expansion, of Slavery and Abolition, of Social Revolt are some of the subdivisions of the subject.

Though the course is primarily a reading course, the student learns how to make oral reports with ease and effectiveness, and how to summarize readings in a scholarly paper.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### III 13. SEVENTEENTH CENTURY LITERATURE

Prerequisite: English 5.

A study of seventeenth century literature as an expression of social tendencies in government and religion, with attention centered upon Hobbes, Locke, and Milton.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

# III 8. EIGHTEENTH CENTURY LITERATURE

Prerequisite: English 5.

A survey of the literary masterpieces of the entire century as they are related to the triumph first of classical taste and later of Romanticism. Careful attention is given to the social and economic background accompanying the chief literary movements.

Credit: Three hours each semester. (Not offered in 1948-49).

### III 10a. ROMANTIC POETRY

In this course, the class makes a study of the best poetry of Wordsworth, Shelley, Byron, and Keats—expressions of beauty and revolt in a disordered world.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 11b. TENNYSON, BROWNING, AND THE PRERAPHAELITES

In this study of the later romanticists, students find an expression of an England changing rapidly. Growing democracy, capitalism, imperialism, changing religious ideals, developing science—are here viewed by able thinkers who saw the stable past yielding to the uncertain future.

Credit: Three hours.

### III 12. SHAKESPEARE

Prerequisite: English 5.

A study of the representative comedies, tragedies, and historical plays. Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 17. HISTORY OF THE NOVEL

A course in the development of the novel—from its beginning to the end of the eighteenth century in the first semester, and from the beginning of the nineteenth century to the present day in the second semester. Lectures, readings, discussions, reports, and papers.

Credit: Three hours each semester. (Not offered in 1948-49).

### III 18b. METHODS OF TEACHING ENGLISH

Prerequisite: Twelve hours of English,

A course designed for those who intend to teach English in the secondary school.

Credit: Two hours.
(Not offered in 1948-49).

# III 21. WORLD LITERATURE

A study of the masterpieces of world literature organized into the classic, romantic, and realistic moods predominant in literary history.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 22. ADVANCED JOURNALISM

Prerequisite: English 15.

A practical course in news editing. Lectures on copy editing, headline writing, makeup, typography and newspaper management are supplemented by work on the Linden Bark and individual consultation with the instructor. The course in Journalism is a prerequisite for this course.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

REQUIREMENT FOR ENGLISH MAJOR—Must include English 5, 7, and 12, and one course in the Speech and Dramatics department.

### SPEECH AND DRAMATICS

The courses in the Department of Speech and Dramatics may be counted toward the degree of Bachelor of Arts. For description of these courses, see page 144.

#### **GEOGRAPHY**

# I 1b. PRINCIPLES OF GEOGRAPHY

A study of world geography with special reference to the influence of physical environment on man.

Credit: Three hours.

### II 2b. ECONOMIC GEOGRAPHY

A study of the economic life of peoples from the geographic point of view. The course presents a survey of the geographic distribution of the world's major natural resources, including agricultural staples, mineral deposits, and animal foodstuffs, together with some consideration of the principal trade routes which are dependent upon that distribution. Special attention is given to the Economic Geography of the United States as well as to the principal European and Asiatic powers. This course is fundamental for those who seek to understand world affairs in the present age.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

#### HISTORY AND GOVERNMENT

### I 1. HUMANITIES: A HISTORY OF CIVILIZATION

In surveying history from prehistoric times to the present, man's cultural development is emphasized. The course is a study of the achievements of the various civilizations which have contributed to the common cultural heritage of western civilization. The political, social and economic settings of the various civilizations are presented in chronological order. The characteristic achievements of each period in philosophy, religion, literature, art, music, and science enrich this background. By presenting actual masterpieces in literature, art, and music, it is hoped that imagination, appreciation, and critical judgment will be stimulated. This course is designed as an introductory course in history which will make a more direct contribution to the other liberal arts fields.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### I or II 2b. ENGLISH HISTORY

The history of the English people will be surveyed to show the relationship between the political, social and economic aspects of English and American culture. Emphasis will be placed on those portions of English history which will contribute to the development of an appreciation of English Literature.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

### HOT III 3a. GREEK CIVILIZATION

(For description, see Classical Languages and Literature, page 43). Credit: Three hours.

# II or III 5a. THE RENAISSANCE AND REFORMATION

Prerequisite: History 1.

The transition from mediaeval to modern civilization in Europe will furnish the theme for the course. The subject matter will be drawn from the revival of Greek and Roman thought and culture, the resulting economic revolution, the feudal system, the development of national states, and the revolt against the temporal and spiritual leadership of the Catholic church.

Credit: Three hours.

# II or III 5b. ROMAN CIVILIZATION

(For description, see Classical Languages and Literature, page 44). Credit: Three hours.

# II 6a, 6b. CURRENT EVENTS

A study of current world history as presented in newspapers and periodicals. A critical analysis of sources will be emphasized.

Credit: One hour either semester or both.

# Hor III 7b. French Revolution and Napoleon

Prerequisite: History 1.

In this course attention will be given to the emergence of the concept that government should be based on the consent of the governed rather than imposed on the people by a king claiming divine rights. When kings and nobility refused to heed the popular demand for reform, revolts flared up. The Glorious Revolution in England and the American Revolution were small outbursts which preceded the debacle in France The flames started in France spread all over Europe carrying political and social reforms in their wake. The course ends with the victory of the reactionary forces over Napoleon I who had come to personify the forces of reform.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

#### II 11a. AMERICAN NATIONAL GOVERNMENT

Some attention will be given to the development of political institutions and practices. The duties and functions of the various departments organized under the constitution will occupy the largest portion of the course. The emphasis will be on the practical rather than the theoretical.

Credit: Three hours.

### II 19. AMERICAN HISTORY

A general course in the history of the United States. The first semester covers the period from the age of discovery to the Compromise of 1850, with emphasis on social and economic changes and on national development. The second semester deals with the period between the Compromise of 1850 and

the World War, with emphasis upon industrial and social development and the emergency of the United States as a World Power.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 2a. CONTEMPORARY AMERICA

Prerequisite: History 19, or Senior rank in college.

The ramifications of progressivism into political reforms, social legislation, and economic controls from Theodore to Franklin D. Roosevelt will be studied. The role of the United States as a World Power from 1898 through World War I to World War II will be examined.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

### III 3a. DIPLOMATIC HISTORY OF THE UNITED STATES

Prerequisite: History 19, or Senior rank in college.

The story of our relationships with other countries from Franklin's mission in France to the present day will be studied as a means of analyzing and evaluating the policies of the United States in conducting their foreign affairs. A search will be made for the internal economic, social, and political pressures which shaped the policies as well as for the results of applying them. The underlying aim will be the development of an interest in foreign affairs and to provide an intelligent basis for judging present and future policies.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 4a. NINETEENTH CENTURY EUROPE

Prerequisite: History 1.

A course designed to make contemporary Europe more understandable by tracing out the background of the attitudes, inclinations, aspirations, and beliefs of Europeans in the 1800's. Their political, social, economic, and intellectual environments will be studied to find the reason for the growth of liberalism, socialism, imperialism, militarism, nationalism, internationalism, and materialism. The course closes with an analysis of the conflicts in national policies which led to World War I.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 10b. EUROPE SINCE 1914

Prerequisite: History 1, or 4a, or the equivalent.

A study of the background, course, and results of the World War, followed by special consideration of the League of Nations, the Bolshevist Revolution, the development of the democracies since the World War, the rise of fascism in Italy, the Nazi regime in Germany, the problems of southeastern Europe, contemporary European imperialism, and the origins of World War II.

Credit: Three hours.

#### III 12a. COMPARATIVE GOVERNMENT

Prerequisite: Government 11a.

A study of the governments and party organizations of the leading European nations. The principal features of democratic and totalitarian systems are studied with relation to American institutions.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

# III 13b. AMERICAN STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Prerequisite: Government 11a.

A study of the organization and activities of the state, county, and city government of the United States, with special emphasis upon practical problems of the present day.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 14b. METHODS OF TEACHING HISTORY AND THE SOCIAL SCIENCES

Prerequisite: Twelve hours in Social Sciences.

A course designed for those who intend to teach history and the social sciences in the secondary school.

Credit: Two hours.

### III 16a. THE FAR EAST

A study of Oriental history with emphasis placed on the modern period and current problems relating to Japan and China. Emphasis will be given to the diplomatic relationships of the United States and Japan from 1931 to Pearl Harbor.

Credit: Three hours.

## III 15b. LATIN AMERICAN HISTORY

The course is developed around the following topics: Discovery and exploration, settlement, colonial period, struggle for independence, independent republics, inter-American and international relationships. The course is offered because it is believed that friendship and respect increase with the amount of information about a people's experiences and problems.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

### III 18b. INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

A survey of the factors promoting and those retarding international cooperation. The strengths and weaknesses of past international organizations will be studied to determine which features might be useful in the present or future. The course will emphasize the relations of the major world powers, France, Great Britain, Germany, Russia, Italy, and Japan, with each other and the United States. The emphasis will always be on the questions: What can we do now? What ought to be done in the future?

Credit: Three hours.

REQUIREMENTS FOR MAJOR—Eighteen hours in history, three hours in government, three hours in sociology, and three hours in economics. Geography may be substituted for either sociology or economics.

It is advisable that Majors include two complete sequences, one in the European and one the American field. Credit is given for the courses in Classical Civilization and Contemporary European Civilization. Other recommended courses offered outside the history department are: American Economic History, History of Philosophy, History of Social Thought, Psychology of Human Relations, History of Art, History of Music, and History of the Theater. Students are urged to include in their curriculum a course or courses in American, English, French, Spanish, or German literature.

# **JOURNALISM**

(For description, see English Department, page 49.)

### LIBRARY SCIENCE

### 1 3b. LIBRARY SCIENCE

This course offers guidance in use of the library and its resources. It includes explanation of the Dewey decimal classification system, analysis of the card catalog, and study of essential reference books in general fields of knowledge, with practice in research methods.

Credit: Two hours.

# **MATHEMATICS**

### I 1a. COLLEGE ALGEBRA

Prerequisites: One entrance unit in Algebra and one in Geometry.

This course in algebra is designed to give young women an appreciation of the meaning of mathematics, an added knowledge of its many uses and applications, and greater ability in the use of algebraic symbols and processes. The fundamental principles and operations of algebra are reviewed before more advanced work is presented.

Credit: Three hours.

### I 2b. TRIGONOMETRY

Prerequisites: One entrance unit in Algebra and one in Geometry. This course in plane trigonometry is a study of angles, triangles, and the relationships that exist among the angles and sides of a triangle. A mastery of the use of logarithms is gained and applied to the solution of triangles. Special attention is given to practical applications.

Credit: Three hours.

#### I or II 15a. MATHEMATICAL ANALYSIS

Prerequisites: Two entrance units in Algebra and one in Geometry.

This course includes selected topics from College Algebra and is an introduction to other courses in advanced mathematics.

Credit: Three hours.

#### I or II 16b. COLLEGE GEOMETRY

Prerequisites: 1a or 15a, and 2b.

A course in the foundations of geometry.

### I 14b. MATHEMATICS OF BUSINESS

This course includes a short review of the principles of arithmetic and algebra, stressing their applications to business. Simple and compound interest, annuities, payment of debts, depreciation, insurance, and investments are considered. Tables are used to acquaint the student with their usefulness. This course is designed to give young women a knowledge of the basic mathematics that may be used in any business office and also in her personal business affairs.

Credit: Three hours.

### II 3a. ANALYTIC GEOMETRY

Prerequisite: Mathematics 2b.

Analytic Geometry applies algebraic methods to geometrical problems, and tends to unify the principles and uses of algebra, geometry, and trigonometry. An analysis of plane figures is made with the emphasis placed on curves whose corresponding equations are of first and second degree.

Credit: Four hours.

### II 4b. MECHANICAL DRAWING

Free-hand lettering; use of instruments; drawing to scale; sections; use of simple geometrical curves.

Credit: Two hours.

(Not offered in 1948-49).

### II 12b. TEACHING OF ARITHMETIC

A study of the various topics of Arithmetic, their historical development and the methods of teaching. This course is given for those who are planning to teach in elementary schools and is not to be offered to fulfill a mathematics requirement.

Credit: Two hours.

### III 4a. SOLID ANALYTIC GEOMETRY

Prerequisite: Mathematics 3a.

This course is a continuation of Mathematics 3a. The same method of analysis is applied to figures in three dimensions.

Credit: Two hours.

(Not offered in 1948-49).

### III 5b. DIFFERENTIAL CALCULUS

Prerequisite: Mathematics 3a.

A first course in differential calculus, including its simpler applications.

Credit: Three hours.

### III 6a. INTEGRAL CALCULUS

Prerequisite: Mathematics 5b.

Integral calculus and its simpler applications; a review of differential calculus.

# III 7b. THEORY OF EQUATIONS

Prerequisite: Mathematics 3a

A brief course in the study of fundamental properties of equations, roots and solutions of equations.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered 1948-49).

# III 8b. MECHANICS

Prerequisites: Mathematics 6a and Physics 2b.

Statics of rigid bodies; dynamics of a particle and of rigid bodies.

Credit: Three hours.
(Not offered in 1948-49)

# III 9b. DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Prerequisite: Mathematics 6a.

A brief course in ordinary and partial differential equations.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 10a. METHODS OF TEACHING MATHEMATICS

A study of modern methods in the teaching of secondary mathematics.

Credit: Two hours.
(Not offered in 1948-49)

### III 11b. HIGHER ALGEBRA

Prerequisite: Mathematics 1a.

Credit: Two hours.
(Not offered in 1948-49).

# MODERN LANGUAGES

### III 21. WORLD LITERATURE

(For description, see English, page 51).

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# FRENCH

# I 1. ELEMENTARY FRENCH

Careful drill in French pronunciation and the essentials of French grammar, including regular and common irregular verbs; the reading of easy texts; dictation; conversation. Both semesters must be taken for credit toward a degree.

Credit: Five hours each semester.

### I or II 2. INTERMEDIATE FRENCH

Prerequisite: French 1, or two entrance units in French.

Further drill in French pronunciation; grammar review; intensive and extensive reading. The course is conducted partly in French.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# II 3. GENERAL SURVEY OF FRENCH LITERATURE

Prerequisite: French 2, or three entrance units in French.

A general survey of French literature, with the study of representative authors.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# II 4a. FRENCH COMPOSITION AND CONVERSATION

Prerequisite: French 2, or three entrance units in French.

Emphasis upon oral and aural proficiency; oral and written reports; memorization; selected texts; grammar review with practice in written composition. The class is conducted in French.
Credit: Three hours.

#### H 4b. ADVANCED FRENCH COMPOSITION AND CONVERSATION

Prerequisite: French 2, or three entrance units in French.

Continuation of the type of work in the preceding course.

Credit: Three hours.

# II 6b. PRACTICAL FRENCH PHONETICS

Prerequisite: French 2, or three entrance units in French.

A study of French pronunciation-the sounds and their production, stress grouping, intonation of the spoken phrase; memorization; use of the phonograph in preparation.

Credit: Two hours.

(Required of all students majoring in French.)

#### 111 7. FRENCH LITERATURE OF THE SEVENTEENTH CENTURY

Prerequisite: French 3.

A study of the classic period with representative works of Corneille, Racine, and Moliere; outside readings with reports.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### 111 9. FRENCH LITERATURE OF THE EIGHTEENTH CENTURY

Prerequisite: French 3 or 7.

A study of the authors and the ideas of the eighteenth century; collateral readings and reports,

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 10. FRENCH LITERATURE OF THE NINETEENTH CENTURY

Prerequisite: French 3 or 7.

A study of the development of the romantic, realistic, and contemporary movements as illustrated by the works of the various authors; outside reading with reports.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 11b. METHODS OF TEACHING MODERN LANGUAGES

A study of modern teaching methods, their history and value. A critical consideration of recent investigations in the field; collateral readings; visits to classes and reports.

Credit: Two hours.
(Not offered in 1948-49).

### GERMAN

# I 1. ELEMENTARY GERMAN

Careful drill in the essentials of German grammar and pronunciation; reading of easy texts; conversation. Both semesters must be taken for credit toward a degree.

Credit: Five hours each semester.

### I or II 2. INTERMEDIATE GERMAN

Prerequisite: German 1, or two entrance units in German,

More intensive study of German grammar; dictation; conversation, selected readings from the works of representative German writers.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# II 3. GENERAL SURVEY OF GERMAN LITERATURE

Prerequisite: German 2, or three entrance units in German.

A general survey of German literature, with the study of representative authors.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

### II 4. READINGS IN SCIENTIFIC GERMAN

Course offered only on request. Hours and credits to be arranged.

#### II 6a. GERMAN COMPOSITION AND CONVERSATION

Prerequisite: German 2, or three entrance units in German.

Careful review in grammar; practice in written composition and in conversation.

Credit: Three hours.

### II 6b. Advanced German Composition and Conversation

Prerequisite: German 6a.

A continuation of German 6a.

# III 5b. ROMANTICISM IN GERMANY

Prerequisite: German 3.

A study of the principal authors typical of romantic thought and style of the late eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries.

Credit: Three hours. (Offered in alternate years).

# III 7a. GOETHE AND SCHILLER

Prerequisite: German 3.

A study of the principal works of Goethe and Schiller with lectures, discussions, and reports.

Credits: Three hours.
(Offered in alternate years).

### III 8. THE GERMAN NOVEL

Prerequisite: German 3.

A study of the German novel from its beginning to the present time.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

(Offered in alternate years).

### SPANISH

#### I 1. ELEMENTARY SPANISH

Careful drill in the essentials of Spanish grammar and pronunciation; reading of easy texts; dictation; conversation.

Both semesters must be taken for credit toward a degree.

Credit: Five hours each semester.

### I or II 2. INTERMEDIATE SPANISH

Prerequisite: Spanish 1, or two entrance units in Spanish.

Further drill in Spanish grammar; dictation; conversation; selected readings from modern Spanish and Spanish-American authors.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### II 6. GENERAL SURVEY OF SPANISH LITERATURE

Prerequisite: Spanish 2, or its equivalent.

A general survey of Spanish literature, with the study of representative authors.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### II 3a. Spanish Composition and Conversation

Prerequisite: Spanish 2.

Careful review in grammar; practice in written composition and conversation.

# II 3b. ADVANCED SPANISH COMPOSITION AND CONVERSATION

Prerequisite: Spanish 3a. A continuation of Spanish 3a. Credit: Three hours.

# III 5. SPANISH LITERATURE OF THE GOLDEN AGE

Prerequisite: Spanish 6.

A study of chosen works of the outstanding authors of the period, with special emphasis on the drama. Lectures, collateral readings, reports and discussions.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 8. Spanish Literature of the Nineteenth Century

Prerequisite: Spanish 5 or 6.

A study of the romantic and realistic movements. Lectures, readings, discussions.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 9b. CONTEMPORARY SPANISH LITERATURE

Prerequisite: Spanish 6.
Course offered only on request.
Credit: Three hours,
(Not offered in 1948-49)

### III 10. SPANISH-AMERICAN LITERATURE

Prerequisite: Spanish 5 or 6. Course offered on request. Credit: Three hours each semester. (Not offered in 1948-49)

REQUIREMENT FOR MAJOR IN MODERN LANGUAGES—Sixteen hours in one language; eight additional hours in the same or another language. Majors in modern languages should take the course in the Humanities.

### PHILOSOPHY

#### II 1a. ETHICS

A course designed to awaken a vital conviction of the genuine reality of moral problems and to show the value of reflective thought in dealing with them.

Credit: Two hours.

### II 2b. ELEMENTARY LOGIC

A study of the principles of correct thinking. The methods of inductive and deductive thinking are examined, as a foundation for exactness in thinking and for precision in the use of terms and propositions.

# II 4a. Introduction to Philosophy

Learning to solve philosophic problems and to understand the terminology of philosophy are the aims of this course. The student is led to adopt the philosophic point of view and thus is led to see new meaning in the world about her, with a unified relationship in all.

Credit: Three hours.

# II 5b. HISTORY OF PHILOSOPHY

A study of the progress of philosophic thought from the early Greek thinkers to modern times. The important philosophers and schools of thought are studied in the light of the civilization and culture of their times. The intimate relation between the development of philosophy and the progress of mankind socially, intellectually, and religiously is emphasized.

Credit: Three hours.

### III 8a. RECENT ENGLISH AND AMERICAN PHILOSOPHERS

A study of English and American philosophers and of tendencies in philosophy during the nineteenth century and later. The aim of the course is to introduce the student to the present-day thinkers on philosophical subjects. (Admission to class by permission of instructor)

Credit: Two hours.

(Not offered in 1948-49).

### III 9b. THE PSYCHOLOGY OF RELIGION

The common experiences of religious living are examined in the light of psychological discovery. The aim is a better understanding of such religious experiences as worship, conversion, prayer, and faith.

Credit: Two or three hours.

(Not offered in 1948-49).

## III 10b. THE PHILOSOPHY OF RELIGION

The aim of the course is to show the philosophical explanation for the fundamental assumptions of faith, such as the existence of God, the soul, immortality, freedom of the will, and other aspects of religious truth.

Credit: Two hours.

REQUIREMENTS FOR MAJOR—A Major in religious education leading to a B.A. or B.S. degree may be worked out under the approval of the head of the department. This major would include at least 24 hours of grade II and III courses, 12 of which should be grade III, in Bible, Philosophy, Education, and Psychology.

REQUIREMENTS FOR MINOR—Eight hours in Philosophy and four in Bible or twelve hours in Philosophy.

The Courses in Philosophy, Grade III, 8-10, are offered to students majoring in Philosophy and Bible. They may be withdrawn unless elected by five or more students.

### PHYSICAL SCIENCE

#### CHEMISTRY

### I 1a. INTRODUCTORY INORGANIC CHEMISTRY

Students who have not had high school chemistry should enroll in this course. No mathematics is required beyond arithmetic and algebra. A survey is made of all the common elements followed by a more detailed study of some nonmetals and their compounds. References are made to the applications of chemistry to modern life whenever it is possible. Simple laboratory techniques are practised in weighing, burette measurements, gas manipulations and solutions.

Time: Two laboratory periods of two hours each and one lecture per week.

Credit: Three hours.

# I 2a, 2b. GENERAL INORGANIC CHEMISTRY

Students who have had high school chemistry or 1a should enroll in this course. The work of the introductory course 1a is continued. The simpler features of the modern theories of atomic structure, acids, bases and equilibrium are explained.

Time: Two laboratory periods of two hours each and one lecture per week.

Credit: Three hours.

# I or II 3b. GENERAL PHYSICAL SCIENCE (Chemistry, Geology)

This course is planned to follow Physics 1a or 15a (Physics, Astronomy) for students not interested in vocational chemistry. A student may enroll in this course first, if preferred, and complete the six hours of physical science in any other chemistry or physics course.

Time: Two laboratory periods of two hours each and one lecture per week.

Credit: Three hours.

# I or II 4b. THE METALS AND QUALITATIVE ANALYSIS

Prerequisite: 2a or 2b.

The laboratory work of this course gives practise in the analysis of solution of metallic salts according to a systematic scheme. The lecture hour introduces the chemical and economic facts concerning the metals. There is much practise in writing equations. Students enrolled in 2a or 2b should follow with 4b.

Time: Two laboratory periods of two hours each and one lecture hour per week.

Credit: Three hours.

### II 5. ORGANIC CHEMISTRY

Prerequisite: Chemistry 2a or 2b.

In the first semester this course is intended to familiarize the student with nomenclature of organic compounds, with the writing of organic formulas and equations, and with the study of the preparations and properties of the aliphatic compounds through the carbohydrates.

The course begins the second semester with the study of proteins, then the preparations and properties of cyclic compounds which includes the study of drugs and dyes. In the laboratory besides preparing and observing the properties of various important organic compounds, some of the techniques of organic chemistry are presented, such as steam distillation, melting point determinations, and boiling point determinations.

Time: One lecture and two laboratory periods of two hours each per week.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 6. QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS

Prerequisite: Chemistry 2a or 2b, and 4b.

In the first semester, the experimental work includes the analysis of substances by weight, special problems in electrolysis and an organic combustion analysis of sugar. In the second semester, more emphasis is placed on measurement by volumes. More calculations are involved than in any of the preceding courses, but only arithmetic and algebra are involved. Either semester can be elected or both.

Time: Two laboratory periods of two hours each and one hour of conference per week.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

# III 7a. FOOD ANALYSIS

Prerequisites: Chemistry 2a or b, 4b, and 5. 6 is recommended. This is a laboratory course of 3 laboratory periods per week.

The determinations are quantitative. Reading reports are required pertaining to Consumer Problems and the Food and Drug Law.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 8a. BIOCHEMISTRY

Prerequisites: Chemistry 5, Physiology.

The textbook studies deal with the metabolism of fats, carbohydrates and proteins. The chemistry of body fluids is introduced. As much time as possible is given to vitamins and hormones.

The laboratory work undertakes to parallel the textbook work.

Techniques in blood and urine analysis are included.

This course alternates with Advanced Organic Chemistry.

### III 12a, 12b. PHYSICAL CHEMISTRY

Prerequisites: Physics 1, Chemistry 6.

Lectures and assigned readings in general physico-chemical principles. Laboratory work in measurements and instrumental analysis.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 9a or b. ADVANCED INORGANIC CHEMISTRY

Emphasis will be placed on modern theories of chemistry with some time devoted to the history of chemistry.

Time: Two lectures, and one laboratory period of two hours, a week.

# III 10a or b. ADVANCED ORGANIC CHEMISTRY

Prerequisite: Chemistry 5. Credit: To be arranged.

This course alternates with Biochemistry.

### III 11a, 11b. CHEMICAL PROBLEMS

Prerequisites: Fifteen hours of chemistry.

Advanced work on selected topics will be arranged with individual students who are prepared to undertake semi-independent work.

Time: One to three laboratory hours per week.

Credit: One to three hours.

(By special permission, students may carry this course thru the year.)

The minimum of 24 semester hours for a major in chemistry must include quantitative chemistry (6 hours), organic chemistry (6 hours), and physical chemistry (3 semester hours), or their equivalents. Physics is required and physiology is recommended.

### PHYSICS

# I or II 15a. GENERAL PHYSICAL SCIENCE (Physics, Astronomy)

This course with Chemistry 3b constitutes a general course in the physical sciences. It is planned to give the student a basic knowledge of the nature of our physical universe. Many demonstrations are made, some experiments are performed in groups, and some individual laboratory work is done. A minimum of mathematics is used.

Time: Two laboratory periods of two hours each and one lecture per week.

Credit: Three hours.

### I 1a. GENERAL PHYSICS I

Prerequisites: One entrance unit in Algebra and one in Geometry. This course is designed to acquaint young women with the principles of Physics that are essential to intelligent living in the world today. Here the student becomes familiar with the physical laws and their applications, an understanding of which is required in the proper conduct of the modern home. Demonstrations and laboratory work are planned to assist in making the student's understanding of our physical world as thorough as possible.

Time: One lecture and two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week

Credit: Three hours.

### I or II 2b. GENERAL PHYSICS II

Prerequisite: Physics 1a or one entrance unit in Physics.

This course continues and complements the work done in Physics 1a, making a year course in Physics. Further attention is given to some topics that were considered in Physics 1a and other topics are introduced that will add to the student's knowledge and appreciation of physical laws, principles, and theories. Special emphasis is placed on the study of heat, light, and electricity.

Time: One lecture and two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Three hours.

# I or II 7b. PHOTOGRAPHY

This course is planned to give the student some knowledge of the theory and procedure involved in making good pictures. The student is allowed individual use of equipment and materials in order to have practical experience in taking and making different types of pictures. Assistance is given in the analysis of the finished pictures to assist in improving technique and to develop an intelligent appreciation of good photography.

Time: One lecture and one laboratory period of three hours each week.

Credit: Two hours.

### II 3a. HEAT

Prerequisite: Physics 2b.

A descriptive course in the principles of heat.

Credit: Three hours.

### Hor III 4b. LIGHT

Prerequisite: Physics 2b.
The theory of light phenomena.

Credit: Three hours.

### II 5b. LIGHT MEASUREMENTS

Prerequisite: Physics 2b To be taken with Physics 4b.

A laboratory course.

Time: Two laboratory periods of two hours each, a week.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49).

#### III 8b. MECHANICS

(For description, see Mathematics 8b.)

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered 1948-49).

REQUIREMENTS FOR MAJOR—The student is advised to consult the head of the department.

### **PSYCHOLOGY**

# II 1a, 1b. INTRODUCTION TO PSYCHOLOGY

The course aims to provide the student with an understanding of human nature, basic knowledge for making this a better world in which to live, and principles and laws which will act as guides in professional and civic work and in human relationships. This is accomplished through a survey of the various schools of psychology, an understanding of concepts of the various mental processes and the true meanings of psychological terms, and a knowledge of working principles and laws which may be applied to daily living. It is hoped that the course will aid the student in her own problems of adjustment.

# 11 2a, 2b. EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY

Prerequisite: Psychology 1a or 1b, or a biological science.

A course designed to present the main facts and the principles that have a bearing on educational problems. Emphasis is on the learning process. Credit: Three hours.

#### II 5b. MENTAL HYGIENE

A course designed to encourage the development of those habits which promote both personal and social welfare, and to prevent the establishment of faulty habits which destroy happiness and social effectiveness. Application of mental hygiene principles are suggested to the student in an effort to offer helpful adjustments in the development of a wholesome personality. This course is taught with special emphasis upon the confusion and strain in postwar years and the need for wholesome personalities in times of reconstruction.

Credit: Three hours.

### III 7a. ABNORMAL AND CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY

Prerequisite: Psychology 1a or 1b.

This course aims to prepare the student in the recognition of symptoms, the location of causes, and the planning of treatment for both major and minor disorders. Students interested in social case work, teaching, and other vocations that deal with people should find this course valuable. Its outline includes a study of the major psychoses; there is also included an analysis of the various disorders of emotional behavior. The student understands the use of tests and is provided with an opportunity for self testing. A survey is made of the many kinds of clinics that provide some guidance in vocational choices.

Credit: Three hours.

### III 3b. APPLIED PSYCHOLOGY

Prerequisite: Psychology 1a or 1b.

The course in applied psychology is designed to give new meanings, appreciations, and skills to our every day living. There is wide reading and class discussion in regard to the psychology of selling, advertising, personnel work, persuasive speech, the drama, music, painting, morale, medicine and nursing, law, journalism, creative writing, etc. Special emphasis is now being placed upon the psychology of war and civilian morale.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 4a. THE PSYCHOLOGY OF THE ADOLESCENT

Prerequisite: Psychology 1a or 1b or Education major.

This course is planned for those whose professional work is concerned with the understanding, guidance, and counseling of adolescents. Topics considered are growth changes, personal and social conflict problems, and the construction of programs of various types to meet the adolescent's needs.

### III 8b. PSYCHOLOGY OF HUMAN RELATIONS

Prerequisite: Psychology 1a or 1b, or Sociology 2a or 2b,

A course which seeks to develop an understanding of the fundamental patterns of human relationships such as are found in the family, the school, the community, the state, the nation, and between nations. It encourages the appropriation of those principles which maintain and promote harmonious and helpful relationships that supply a valuable vocational and citizenship background. The course is organized to include mediums of communication, a study of institutions, suggestion and imitation, leadership, crowds and mobs, social conflict, social control, the development of personality, and sociological and psychological factors in programs for reconstruction.

Credit: Three hours.

### III 33a, b. Psychology Laboratory

Required of all Psychology majors.

Open to other students by permission of the instructor.

A course designed to train students in the Scientific approach to problems of human behavior. The course will be taught by instructors trained in Biology and Psychology.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

### III 31a. CHILD DEVELOPMENT

The course in child development is planned for immediate and practical use for those who work with children as teachers, mothers, case workers, and community members. It aims to supply the student with information regarding the physical, psychological and sociological needs at the various age levels. Programs of activities for children are organized to include appropriate music, books, stories, games and growth situations.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 9a, 9b. RESEARCH AND SEMINAR

Prerequisite: A psychology major with senior standing.

This terminal course for senior majors consists of research and discussion centering around those problems related to the vocational needs and personal interests of the students. It will also include a survey of the field of Psychology with comprehensive examinations.

Credit: Two hours.

### III 32a, b. SPECIAL PROBLEMS IN TESTING AND MEASURING

Prerequisite: Psychology and Sociology majors.

Laboratory experience in testing and measuring under supervision of Psychology and Sociology Departments. The Staff.

Credit: One hour each semester.

### RELATED COURSES IN OTHER DEPARTMENTS

#### III 9b. THE PSYCHOLOGY OF RELIGION

(For description, see Philosophy, page 63.)

Credit: Two or three hours.

#### II 9b. ANTHROPOLOGY

(For description, see Sociology, page 70.) Credit: Three hours.

REQUIREMENTS FOR MAJOR—At least nineteen hours in Psychology; the other five hours may be in Sociology. Hours required for a major in Psychology must include among the twelve hours of Grade III work in that subject, 7a, 8b, 5b. Students who plan to teach Psychology or to pursue graduate study in the field are advised to consult with the department head. Students who are interested in social work are referred to page 83.

#### SOCIOLOGY

Students in this department are engaged in the task of attempting to understand the dynamic world in which they live. The city of St. Louis offers an excellent social laboratory for field work in the department. The rapid expansion of public welfare in the past decade has increased the demand for properly qualified women who plan to enter the profession of social work, or who expect to do volunteer work in the community. (See pre-professional social work curricula, page 83).

## II 2a, 2b. Introduction to Sociology

A study of the long climb which man has made up from primitive times to the present, including the problems of group living that he has had to face and the culture that he has devised to solve these problems. Particular attention is given to contemporary American institutions—the family, religion, government, industry, education—so that the student may develop a constructive attitude toward the need for scientific functioning of these institutions. The aim of the course is to give the student a perspective on modern society and her place in it, with particular emphasis on the rapidly changing social scene created by the present world upheaval.

Credit: Three hours.

#### II 5a. WOMEN IN COMMUNITY LIFE

An analysis of American communities in action with special reference to the role of the college woman as a leader in community organization for social betterment. Each student analyzes her own community in relation to the impact of postwar conditions on the various institutions.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II 9b. ANTHROPOLOGY

A critical study of prehistoric man, of the development of races, and of the social origins of culture on all the continents. Current racial and cultural problems are given consideration in relation to their development throughout the centuries. Comparisons are made between the Far Eastern and European cultures.

Credit: Three hours.

#### II 3a. POST-WAR PEACE PROBLEMS

The nature and history of war, modern warfare and its problems. The cause of war. Attempted methods of preventing war. The nature of problems of peace, with particular emphasis upon the working problems of the present peace.

Credit: Three hours.

#### II 4a. LATIN AMERICAN CULTURE AND INSTITUTIONS

The customs and traditions of the people of the Latin American Republics; their daily life and institutions; their educational systems; literary and artistic patterns; religious and ethical convictions; their political and social life; health, hygiene and sanitation; industrial and welfare organizations; races and cultures; revolutions and citizenship practices; cities and rural life; attitudes toward the United States and Europe.

Credit: Three hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

#### III 6a. EDUCATIONAL SOCIOLOGY

A sociological survey of the educational agencies of the community and of the nation, with special emphasis on the social adjustment problems of the school in our dynamic democracy. The functions of formal and informal educational agencies and institutions are considered.

Credit: Three hours.

(Alternates with Vocational Guidance. Not offered in 1948-49)

## III 30a. THE FAMILY

The family is studied both as an institution and as a group of interacting personalities. The American family is evaluated in terms of how well it is performing the functions assigned to it in our culture. The home as an environment for the developing personality is analyzed, including its influence on intelligence, character, and achievement. Both the social and the personal factors involved in successful marriage are studied in some detail. The case study method is used as well as general discussion. Text book and library assignments are supplemented by extensive discussions of the influence of current events on marriage and the family.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 16a. CURRENT SOCIAL PROBLEMS AND SOCIAL CONTROL

Prerequisite: Sociology 2a or 2b.

A study of current social problems with emphasis on the various remedial and preventive methods of social control in use during postwar and reconstruction years in all of our institutions.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 20a. METHODS OF CASE STUDY

Prerequisite: Sociology 2a or 2b.

An applied course planned for direct and immediate use by students who are interested in social work, either as a vocation or as a means of promoting public welfare. The course aims to survey the fields of social case work, the family, the child, psychiatry, group work, and visiting teacher.

It makes available the background knowledge and techniques needed by social case workers and provides practical experience in case work. Emphasis will be placed upon the problems and methods of the case worker in war areas, and with people who need help due to the disorganizing effects of war. It is desirable that this course be followed by the course Public Welfare Administration.

Credit: Two hours.

(Alternates with Public Welfare Administration. Not offered in 1948-49)

#### III 20b. Public Welfare Administration

Prerequisite: Sociology 2a or 2b.

A brief historic survey of the development of various fields of public welfare. The organization and administration of city, state, and federal public welfare programs in relation to changing social legislation, including the Social Security Act. It is desirable that this course be preceded by the course Methods of Case study.

Credit: Two hours.

(Alternates with Methods of Case Study)

#### III 21a. VOCATIONAL GUIDANCE

A course designed for students interested in the fields of personnel work, social welfare, and education. Scientific principles basic to educational and vocational adjustment of youth are analyzed. Practical experience in the use of counseling materials and psychological tests form the important part of the course.

Credit: Three hours.

(Alternates with Educational Sociology)

# III 7b. HISTORY OF SOCIAL THOUGHT

Prerequisite: Sociology 2a or 2b.

The development of social thought from primitive origins in the Far East, Near East, and Europe, to the present time, together with a critical evaluation of the current ideologies that constitute the issues at stake in the world today, form the basis around which this course is constructed.

Credit: Three hours.

#### III 14b. METHODS OF TEACHING HISTORY AND THE SOCIAL SCIENCES

Prerequisite: Twelve hours in Social Sciences.

A course designed for those who intend to teach history and the social sciences in the secondary school. Instructional materials and techniques are examined, fundamental concepts basic to a mastery of the fields of social sciences are reviewed, and objectives and purposes of the social sciences are analyzed.

Credit: Two hours.

## III 17a, 17b. SOCIAL RESEARCH

Prerequisite: Twelve hours in Sociology.

Modern methods of gathering, analyzing, an interpreting social data are applied to individual research projects. The main emphasis is placed on statistical techniques, including personality tests and other measuring devices. In addition to developing skill in investigation, the aim of the course is to give the student a wholesome respect for objective facts in the social realm and thus render her less susceptible to propaganda. Department Staff.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

REQUIREMENT FOR MAJOR—Twenty-four hours required for a major in Sociology. Students who plan to teach Sociology, or to pursue graduate work in the field, are advised to consult with the department head. Students interested in public welfare administration see suggested curricula in preprofessional social welfare, page 83. Students who plan to engage in per sonnel work are advised to consult with the department head.

#### RELATED COURSES IN OTHER DEPARTMENTS

- II 3b. Consumer Economics
  (For description, see Economics, page 46.)
  Credit: Two hours.
- II 5b. MENTAL HYGIENE
  (For description, see Psychology, page 68.)
  Credit: Three hours.
- III 31a. CHILD DEVELOPMENT

  (For description, see Psychology, page 69.)

  Credit: Three hours.
- III 8b. Psychology of Human Relations
  (For description, see Psychology, page 69.)
  Credit: Three hours.
- (For description, see Psychology, page 68.)
  Credit: Two hours.
- III 4a. LABOR PROBLEMS AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS (For description, see Economics, page 46.) Credit: Three hours.
- III 6a. STATISTICAL METHODS

  (For description, see Economics, page 46.)

  Credit: Two hours.
- III 32a, b. Special Problems in Testing and Measuring (For description, see Psychology, page 69)
  Credit: One hour each semester.

#### THEORY OF MUSIC

A detailed statement of courses offered in this department for those wishing to specialize in music will be found under the Department of Music. Students in other departments may take lessons in any branches of music offered, receiving a maximum of eighteen hours' credit toward the A. B. degree.

In addition, the following courses in theory of music receive full credit toward the A. B. degree:

#### I or II 1a, 1b. Introduction to Music

A general orientation course designed for students other than music majors who wish to increase their enjoyment and understanding of music.

A guide to more intelligent listening through consideration of tone color, and form.

Lectures; listening to recorded music, current symphony concerts, radio, and recital programs; assigned reading.

This course may not be taken as a theory requirement by students enrolled for applied music.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### I 10a. RUDIMENTS OF MUSIC

The study of the rudimentary materials of the theory of music. Scales, intervals, key signatures, simple terminology, etc. Designed to aid students who have inadequate preparation for the course in Theory I. A student who has failed to make satisfactory progress in Rudiments at the time of the midsemester examinations will be advised to discontinue the regular course in Theory I until such time as this preparatory course is mastered.

No credit. First semester only.

#### I 15a, 15b. THEORY I (Harmony, Sight Singing, Ear Training)

Harmony: Notation, scales, intervals, simple triads and their inversions, regular and irregular resolutions of seventh and ninth chords and their inversions. Harmonic dictation and choral singing, original composition, keyboard harmony.

Sight Singing: Drill in scale and interval singing, time subdivision and two-part singing. Singing songs (while beating time) with syllables, words and numbers. Songs in major and minor modes.

Ear Training: Melodic dictation with the key, major and minor modes, with the introduction of chromatic problems. Soprano and base clefs. Elementary rhythmic patterns. Recognition of simple triads. Four-part dictation.

Time: Five hours each week. Credit: Four hours each semester.

# II 16. THEORY II (Harmony, Sight Singing, Ear Training)

Prerequisite: Theory of Music 15a, b.

Harmony: Secondary sevenths and their inversions, chromatically altered chords, organ point, modulation. Harmonization in the modern idiom. Harmonic dictation and choral singing, original composition, keyboard harmony, harmonic analysis.

Sight Singing: Two, three and four-part song singing. Major and minor modes. Modulation.

Ear Training: More advanced melodic dictation and chromatic problems. Dictation in two and four-part writing. Simple modulation. Recognition of triads in all forms, dominant seventh and diminished chords.

Time: Five hours each week.

Credit: Four hours each semester.

#### II 2a. HISTORY OF MUSIC I

Ancient Music to pre-classic period. Analysis of motets, madrigals, Italian Arias and Dance forms.

Lecture recitals illustrating small forms.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II 2b. HISTORY OF MUSIC II

Preclassic, Classic, and Romantic Forms. Biographical sketches of composers. Analysis of schools, contrasting abstract and program music.

Lecture recitals illustrating the form of the Concerto, Sonata, Symphony, and Symphonic poem.

Credit: Two hours.

#### III 19a. HISTORY OF MUSIC III

Post-romantic, neo-classic, and the newer trends in music. Biographical sketches; aesthetics in music.

Lecture recitals illustrating the modern idioms.

Credit: Two hours.

#### III 19b. HISTORY OF MUSIC IV

Contemporary Music. Lecture recitals featuring works of contemporary composers. This course includes analysis of works presented by the St. Louis Symphony Orchestra and visiting artists.

Credit: Two hours.

#### III 17. COUNTERPOINT

Prerequisite: Theory of Music 16.

Counterpoint in two, three and four parts, both free and strict. Keyboard work. Much time is given to the analysis of contrapuntal compositions. Original composition includes two and three part inventions, as well as original work in the modes. Practice in reading the various clefs.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### III 18a. ADVANCED COUNTERPOINT

Prerequisite: Theory of music 17.

Original work in invertible counterpoint, canon, and imitation. Much analysis of examples from Bach and other composers. The application of these forms in original composition based on models from different sources. Keyboard work and ear training.

Credit: Two hours.

#### III 7b. FUGUE

Prerequisite. Theory of Music 18a.

The study and original composition of two, three, and four-voiced fugues. Double and triple forms also studied. The analysis of a large number of the Bach fungues. Keyboard work and ear training.

Credit: Two hours.

## III 8. MUSICAL FORM AND ANALYSIS

Prerequisite: Theory of Music 16.

The aim of this course is to correlate the theoretical studies already pursued, and to provide a thorough study of the elements of musical composition. All forms are studied in detail, and much time is given to analysis. Part of each class period is devoted to the playing of examples, and the students are required to analyze by ear. Some composition in all the forms.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

# III 9. INSTRUMENTATION

Prerequisite: Theory of Music 16.

A study of the instruments of the modern symphony orchestra; their respective characteristics and uses in orchestration; reading of orchestral scores; arrangements for string, wood-wind, and brass combinations and scoring for full orchestra.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

# REPRESENTATIVE SENIOR COLLEGE CURRICULA

(Adaptable to Junior College Courses Leading to the Certificate of Associate in Arts)

SUGGESTED COURSE FOR THE AMERICAN CONTEMPORARY LIFE CURRICULUM LEADING TO THE A. B. DEGREE\*

| First Year   | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| English Composition  | 3                 | 3                  |
| American Contemporary Civilization   |                   | **                 |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times  |                   | 2                  |
| Foreign Language   |                   | 3 or 5             |
| Humanities   |                   | 3                  |
| General Biology  |                   | 3                  |
| Physical Education   | . 1               | 1                  |
| 15   | or 17             | 15 or 17           |
| The second secon |                   |                    |
| SECOND YEAR  |                   |                    |
| Introduction to English Literature   | . 3               | 3                  |
| Foreign Language   |                   | 3                  |
| Introduction to Psychology   |                   | 3                  |
| Introduction to Sociology  | . 3               | 288                |
| Modern Poetry  | . 2               | **                 |
| Modern Drama   |                   | 2                  |
| Essentials of Speech   |                   | . 2                |
| Physical Education   |                   | 1                  |
| Physical Science   | . 3               | 3                  |
|  | 15                | 17                 |
|  | 15                | 17                 |
| THIRD YEAR   |                   |                    |
| American Literature  | . 3               | 3                  |
| Shakespeare,   | . 3               | 3                  |
| The Family   | . 3               | = 8                |
| Women in Community Life  | . 2               | 4.4                |
| Electives  | . 6               | 11                 |
|  | 17                | 17                 |

<sup>\*</sup>By a minor adjustment of courses, this curriculum may be planned so that at the end of two years it will fulfill the requirements for the Junior College Certificate of Associate in Arts.

| FOURTH YEAR         | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|---------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| World Literature    | . 3               | 3                  |
| Child Development   | . 3               | 3                  |
| American History    |                   | 3                  |
| Bible or Philosophy |                   | 2                  |
| Electives           | . 8               | 6                  |
|                     | -                 | -                  |
|                     | 17                | 17                 |

The preceding course provides for a major in English, with minor to be worked out by use of electives. If student plans to teach, sufficient courses in Education should be elected in order to obtain a teaching certificate in the state in which she plans to teach.

Suggested electives: Physical or Biological Science, History of Music, Appreciation of Art, Business Law, Home Nursing, Government, Community Recreation, Advanced courses in Psychology, Foods, Clothing, Post-War Peace Problems, Women in Community Life.

# SUGGESTED COURSE FOR A CURRICULUM IN RELIGIOUS EDUCA-TION LEADING TO THE A. B. DEGREE\*

| HOW EEMDING TO THE M. B. DEGR.                | LL       |          |
|---|----------|----------|
|   | First    | Second   |
| FIRST YEAR                                    | Semeste  | Semester |
| American Contemporary Civilization            | 2        |          |
| English Composition                           | . 3      | 3        |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times | 2        |          |
| English History                               |          | 3        |
| Foreign Language                              | 3 or 5   | 3 or 5   |
| Essentials of Speech                          |          | 2        |
| Physical Education                            |          | 1        |
| General Biology                               | 3        | 3        |
|   | _        | _        |
|   | 15 or 17 | 15 or 17 |
| SECOND YEAR                                   |          |          |
| Social Thought of the Hebrew Prophets         |          | 4.4      |
| The Life and Teachings of Jesus               |          | 2        |
| Foreign Language                              |          | 3        |
| Science or Mathematics                        |          | .3       |
| Introduction to Psychology                    |          | ++       |
| Introduction to Sociology                     |          | 3        |
| Physical Education                            |          | 1        |
| Electives                                     | 4        | 4        |
|   | _        |          |
|   | 16       | 16       |

<sup>\*</sup>By a minor adjustment of courses this curriculum may be planned so that at the end of two years it will fulfill the requirements for the Junior College Certificate of Associate in Arts. Also, this curriculum may be adjusted to lead to a B.S. degree.

|  | First    | Second   |
|--|----------|----------|
| THIRD YEAR                                       | Semester | Semester |
| Introduction to English Literature               | 3        | 3        |
| Hebrew Poetry and Wisdom Literature              |          | 4.       |
| Historical Records of the Early Christian Church |          | 2        |
| Introduction to Philosophy                       |          |          |
| History and Principles of American Education     |          |          |
| Mental Hygiene                                   |          | 3        |
| Educational Psychology                           |          | 3        |
| Child Development                                |          | 3        |
| Electives  |          | 3        |
|  | _        | _        |
|  | 17       | 17       |
| FOURTH YEAR                                      |          |          |
| Principles of Religious Education                | 2        |          |
| Comparative Religion                             |          |          |
| History of Philosophy                            |          | 3        |
| The Psychology of Religion                       |          | 2        |
| Ethics   |          | 4.7      |
|  |          | 2        |
| Philosophy of Religion                           |          | 2        |
| Educational Sociology                            |          | 3        |
| The Psychology of Human Relations                |          |          |
| Electives  | 6        | 6        |
|  | -        |          |
|  | 16       | 16       |

For church secretarial positions, the course should be adjusted to include stenography and typewriting.

Students who are interested in religious education should consult further with the Head of the Bible department. The College, through the Department of Bible, will make every effort to place qualified graduates in desirable openings in this field.

# CURRICULA FOR STUDENTS SPECIALIZING IN BIOLOGICAL SCIENCE

A major student in Biology may select a group of studies according to her dominant interest and aptitude. Thus a Biology major may choose a group in which Botany, Zoology, or Bacteriology is the important subject. Several choices of such groups together with related courses that furnish contributory material follow:

- Teaching Biology in High School or College or graduate work in Biology.
  For this course a student needs a broad general background in Science, a
  minor in a related field, and the required education courses.
  - a. For a General Biology teaching major. General Biology, Plant Survey, Cultivated Plants, Physiology, Invertebrate Zoology, Trees and Shrubs, Comparative Anatomy, General Chemistry, General Physics, and required Education courses.
  - b. For those primarily interested in teaching Botany.
    General Biology, Plant Survey, Cultivated Plants, Trees and Shrubs,
    Plant Anatomy, Taxonomy of Higher Plants, Bacteriology, Advanced
    Bacteriology, General Chemistry, General Physics, and required
    Education courses.

- c. For those primarily interested in teaching Zoology. General Biology, Physiology, Invertebrate Zoology, Comparative Anatomy, Bacteriology, Microtechnique, Embryology, General Chemistry, General Physics, and required Education courses.
- Preparation leading to Landscape Gardening and Horticulture. General Biology, Cultivated Plants, Plant Survey, Trees and Shrubs, Taxonomy of Higher Plants, Plant Anatomy, Bacteriology. Recommended electives: Art, General Chemistry.
- 3. Preparation for Nursing. No set courses are required and a broad liberal arts background is desirable. For a nursing executive position two to four years of college and the following courses are recommended: General Biology, Physiology, Bacteriology, Hygiene, Home Nursing, Preventive Medicine, Dietetics, and Chemistry.
- 4. Occupational Therapy. A registered therapist must complete five years of training; two years of basic college courses, two years in an Occupational Therapy school approved by the American Medical Association, and one year in an approved hospital. Any student may receive the first two years of her training at Lindenwood College. If she is interested in such training she should consult the office of Student Personnel before registering.
- 5. Medical Technology or Medicine. The suggested outline below is for those who wish to enter a hospital for a year's training leading to a certificate of "Medical Technologist" or for those who wish to enter medical training.

# SUGGESTED COURSE FOR THOSE WHO WISH TO ENTER A MEDICAL OR A MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY COURSE

|   | First    | Second   |
|---|----------|----------|
| FIRST YEAR                                    | Semester | Semester |
| English Composition                           | . 3      | 3        |
| General Inorganic Chemistry                   | . 3      | 3        |
| General Biology                               | . 3      | 3        |
| Humanities                                    | . 3      | 3        |
| American Contemporary Civilization            | . 2      | 7.5      |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times |          | 2        |
| Physical Education                            | . 1      | 1        |
|   |          | -        |
|   | 15       | 15       |
| SECOND YEAR                                   |          |          |
| Organic Chemistry                             | . 3      | 3        |
| Language                                      | . 3 or 5 | 3 or 5   |
| Physiology                                    |          | 3        |
| Comparative Anatomy                           | . 3      | 3        |
| Physical Education                            | . 1      | 1        |
| The Metals and Qualitative Analysis           |          | 3        |
| Elective                                      | . 2      | ***      |
|   | -        | -        |
|   | 15 or 17 | 16 or 18 |

|  | First    | Conned   |
|--|----------|----------|
| The state of the s |          | Second   |
| THIRD YEAR   | Semester | Semester |
| Quantitative Analysis  | 3        | 3        |
| General Physics  | 3        | 3        |
| Introduction to English Literature   | 3        | 3        |
| Microtechnique   |          |          |
| Foreign Language   | 3        | 3        |
| Introduction to Psychology   |          | 3        |
| Elective   |          | 2        |
|  | -        |          |
|  | 17       | 17       |
| FOURTH YEAR  |          |          |
| Introduction to Sociology  |          | 3        |
| Food Analysis  | 3        |          |
| Bio-Chemistry.   |          |          |
| Vertebrate Embryology  |          | 3        |
| Parasitology   |          |          |
| Bacteriology   |          |          |
| Advanced Bacteriology  |          | 3        |
| Elective   |          | 6        |
|  | _        |          |
|  | 17       | 15       |
|  | 5.5      |          |

# CURRICULUM IN HISTORY AND GOVERNMENT LEADING TO THE A. B. DEGREE\*

#### SUGGESTED COURSE

A course of study is outlined below for the guidance of students who intend to Major in History and Government in order to qualify as teachers and for those who intend to pursue graduate work. It covers the requirements in History and Education and provides ample opportunity for the completion of a minor in Economics or in some other relevant field.

|   | First    | Second   |
|---|----------|----------|
| FIRST YEAR                                    | Semester | Semester |
| English Composition                           | . 3      | 3        |
| American Contemporary Civilization            |          |          |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times |          | 2        |
| Foreign Language                              | .3 or 5  | 3 or 5   |
| Humanities                                    | . 3      | 3        |
| General Biology                               | . 3      | 3        |
| Physical Education                            |          | 1        |
|   | _        |          |
| 1   | 5 or 17  | 15 or 17 |

<sup>\*</sup>By a minor adjustment of courses, this curriculum may be planned so that at the end of two years it will fulfill the requirements for the Junior College Certificate of Associate in Arts.

Substitutions may be made in the biology courses outlined. Electives in Psychology and Sociology are desirable.

| SECOND YEAR   | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|
| *Foreign Language                                   |                   | 3                  |
| American History                                    |                   | 3                  |
| Current Events                                      |                   | 1                  |
| Physical Science                                    |                   | 3                  |
| Educational Psychology                              |                   | 3                  |
| Economic Geography                                  |                   | 3                  |
| Physical Education                                  |                   | 1                  |
| Elective  |                   |                    |
|   | _                 |                    |
|   | 16                | 17                 |
|   |                   |                    |
| THIRD YEAR  |                   |                    |
| Introduction to English Literature                  | . 3               | 3                  |
| Nineteenth Century Europe                           |                   |                    |
| International Relations                             |                   |                    |
| Principles of Secondary Education                   |                   |                    |
| History and Principles of American Education        |                   |                    |
| Methods of Teaching in High Schools                 |                   | 3                  |
| Introduction to Sociology                           |                   | 3                  |
| The Diplomatic History of the United States         |                   | 3                  |
| Electives   | . 2               | 5                  |
|   | 17                | 17                 |
|   | 17                | 17                 |
| FOURTH YEAR   |                   |                    |
| American Literature                                 | 3                 | 3                  |
| Europe since 1914.                                  |                   | 3                  |
| Methods of Teaching History and the Social Sciences |                   | 2                  |
| Technique and Practice Teaching                     |                   | 5                  |
| Renaissance and Reformation                         | . 3               | * *                |
| Introduction to Economics                           |                   |                    |
| Comparative Religion                                |                   |                    |
| Contemporary America                                |                   |                    |
| Electives   | 1                 | 3                  |
|   | 16                | 16                 |
|   | 16                | 16                 |

<sup>\*</sup>A reading knowledge of at least one foreign language, and frequently of two, is required for graduate work in history. The language should be selected with reference to the field of history in which the student intends to specialize. For American History—French and Spanish or German; for European History—French and German; for Ancient History—Latin and eventually Greek are required.

# SUGGESTED CURRICULUM IN PRE-PROFESSIONAL SOCIAL WORK LEADING TO THE A. B. DEGREE

Lindenwood College provides the undergraduate preparation that is required for social work in public welfare departments and in private social welfare agencies. At least one year of graduate study is recommended for students who plan to enter the field of professional social work. This curriculum provides for a major in Sociology, Psychology, or Economics. By proper use of the elective hours a minor may be chosen from any department in the College.

|                          |                | First       | Second   |
|--------------------------|----------------|-------------|----------|
|                          | FIRST YEAR     | Semester    | Semester |
| English Composition      |                | 3           | 3        |
|                          | y Civilization |             | 2        |
|                          | -<br>          |             | 3        |
| General Biology          |                | 3           | 3        |
| Foreign Language         |                | 3 or 5      | 3 or 5   |
| Physical Education       |                | 1           | 1        |
| Electives                |                | 2           |          |
|                          |                |             |          |
|                          |                | 15 or 17 1  | 5 or 17  |
|                          | SECOND YEAR    |             |          |
| Introduction to Sociolo  | gy             | 3           |          |
|                          | logy           |             | 4.4      |
|                          | nics           |             | 3        |
| General Physical Science | ce             |             | 3        |
| Introductory Inorganic   | Chemistry      | 3           |          |
|                          |                |             | 2        |
| Foreign Language or Jo   | ournalism      | 3           | 3        |
| The Life and Teachings   | s of Jesus     |             | 2        |
| Women in Community       | Life           |             | 2        |
| Preventive Medicine      |                |             | 2        |
| Physical Education       |                | 1           | 1        |
| Electives                |                | 3           |          |
|                          |                |             | _        |
|                          |                | 16          | 18       |
|                          | THIRD YEAR     |             |          |
| World Literature         |                | 3           | 3        |
|                          | vernment       |             |          |
| State and Local Govern   | nment          |             | 3        |
| Abnormal and Clinical    | Psychology     | 3           |          |
| The Family               |                | 3           |          |
| Anthropology             |                |             | 3        |
| Statistical Methods      |                | 2           |          |
| Consumer Economics       |                | E F 1 (6)61 | 2        |
| Mental Hygiene           |                |             | 3        |
| Electives                |                | 4           | 4        |
|                          |                | -           | 100      |
|                          |                | 18          | 18       |

| Fourth Year                                | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| Child Development                          | . 3               |                    |
| Psychology of Human Relations              |                   | 3                  |
| Current Social Problems and Social Control | . 3               |                    |
| Labor Problems and Industrial Relations    | . 3               |                    |
| Public Welfare Administration              |                   | 2                  |
| Methods of Case Study                      | . 2               | 2.7                |
| Post-War Peace Problems                    | . 3               |                    |
| Religious Institutions                     |                   | 2                  |
| Electives                                  | . 4               | 11                 |
|  | -                 |                    |
|  | 18                | 18                 |

Recommended electives: Additional courses in Psychology, Sociology, Economics; related courses in Home Economics and Physical Education.

# SUGGESTED CURRICULUM IN COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP LEADING TO THE B. S. DEGREE

This curriculum provides the preparation that is essential for work with individuals and groups in educational, recreational, religious agencies and institutions, that assume responsibility for wholesome development of leisure time in our democracy. During the Freshman and Sophomore years the student who pursues this curriculum completes two years of the Course of Study required of Majors in Physical Education. (See pages 108-109.) By a proper use of the elective hours during the Freshman and Sophomore years a major in Sociology, Psychology, or Economics, may be planned for the Junior and Senior years. Students who are interested in this curriculum are urged to consult with the Sociology Department during the Freshman year.

| THIRD YEAR                           | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--------------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| American National Government         | 3                 |                    |
| American, State and Local Government |                   | 3                  |
| World Literature                     | 3                 | 3                  |
| The Family                           | 3                 | 4.44               |
| Music Methods I and II               | 2                 | 1                  |
| Child Literature                     | 2                 | 270                |
| Story-Telling                        | 1                 | 1                  |
| Women in Community Life              |                   | 2                  |
| Consumer Economics                   |                   | 2                  |
| Child Development                    | 3                 |                    |
| Art (Individual Instruction)         | 1                 | 1                  |
| Electives                            |                   | 5                  |
|                                      | -                 | _                  |
|                                      | 18                | 18                 |

| FOURTH YEAR                                | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| Mental Hygiene                             | 100               | 3                  |
| Current Social Problems and Social Control |                   | 400                |
| Labor Problems and Industrial Relations    | 3                 | 18.6               |
| Methods of Case Study                      | 2                 | 4.4                |
| Religious Institutions                     |                   | 2                  |
| Abnormal and Clinical Psychology           |                   |                    |
| Psychology of Human Relations              |                   | 3                  |
| Educational Sociology                      | 3                 |                    |
| Stagecraft                                 | . 3               | 3                  |
| Electives                                  |                   | 7                  |
|  | -                 | -                  |
|  | 17                | 18                 |

# SUGGESTED CURRICULUM IN ECONOMICS LEADING TO B. S. DEGREE

This Curriculum is designed for students who are interested in various aspects of Personnel Work in Industry, Merchandising, and Advertising.

A student may enter this curriculum after two years of college work in one of these specialized fields: Commercial and Industrial Design, Costume Design, or Interior Decoration; Home Economics; Secretarial Science. By a proper use of the electives during the first two years of college work in any of the specialized fields listed above a student may plan for a major in Economics.

|  | First    | Second     |
|--|----------|------------|
| THIRD YEAR                                 | Semester | Semester ' |
| Introduction to Economics.                 | 3        | **         |
| Introduction to Psychology                 |          |            |
| Mental Hygiene                             |          | 3          |
| Statistical Methods                        | 2        |            |
| Business Law                               |          | 2          |
| Psychology of Human Relations              |          | 3          |
| Vocational Guidance                        | 3        | 4.4        |
| Electives                                  | 7        | 10         |
|  |          | -          |
|  | 18       | 18         |
| FOURTH YEAR                                |          |            |
| Introduction to Sociology                  | 3        | -          |
| Retail Merchandising or Retail Advertising |          | 2          |
| Labor Problems and Industrial Relations    |          |            |
| Consumer Economics                         |          | 2          |
| Special Research Problems in Economics     | 2        | 2          |
| Radio Speech                               |          | 2          |
| Continuity Writing                         |          | 1          |
| Electives                                  |          | 9          |
|  |          |            |
|  | 18       | 18         |

# Department of the Vocations

9

The courses in the departments of Education, Home Economics, Physical Education, and Secretarial Science, lead to the degree of Bachelor of Science. It should be noted that credit in some of the vocational courses may not be acceptable for a bachelor's degree in this institution nor in the liberal arts colleges of other institutions. Students should, therefore, choose their courses of study carefully in the first two years.

# **EDUCATION**

The courses in the Department of Education are planned, first, to meet the needs of students who intend to teach, especially those who intend to teach in the high school; second, to meet the interests of those who do not intend to teach but who wish to select courses in Education because of the fundamental importance of education in life.

The degree of Bachelor of Science with a major in Education is recommended for those students who expect to teach in the elementary schools. Prospective high school teachers must complete a major and at least one minor in academic teaching fields.

In order to secure the degree of Bachelor of Science with a major in Education the candidate must meet the following requirements:

- (1) She must complete the freshman-sophomore requirements for the A. B. degree, including three hours in Hygiene. The foreign language requirement may be waived by special arrangement.
- (2) She must complete a major of 24 hours in Education, which includes History and Principles of American Education, Educational Psychology, Methods of Teaching in Elementary Schools, School Organization and Management, and Technique and Practice Teaching.
- (3) She must complete a total of 128 hours of college work. The number of hours required in addition to the freshman-sophomore requirements for the A. B. degree and the requirements in Education may be elected from any department of the College, subject to two limitations:

- (a) Courses of Grade I may be elected in the Junior and Senior years by special permission only.
- (b) The electives must be chosen with a view to continuity in some department or departments, and the list of the courses elected must be approved by the head of the Department of Education and the Dean of the College.

# STATE CERTIFICATES\*

A student who intends to teach at the close of her college course may secure a State Certificate, valid in Missouri, if the required hours in Education are included in the college course.

Every student who expects to teach must secure from the Department of Education of the state in which she desires to teach a certificate valid for that state. No college degree, certificate, or diploma may serve as a certificate to teach.

# REQUIREMENTS FOR ELEMENTARY TEACHERS

STANDARDS FOR CERTIFICATION AND APPROVAL ON SIXTY-HOUR BASIS:

All hour requirements are stated in terms of semester hours. All elementary teachers shall meet the following minimum requirements:

<sup>\*</sup>Revised Rules and Regulations of the State Department of Education Governing Issuance and Renewal of Certificates to teach in Public Schools in Missouri, July 1, 1944.

| 7.     | Professional Education   |
|--------|--|
| 8.     | Electives  |
| STANDA | RDS FOR CERTIFICATION AND APPROVAL ON ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-HOUR BASIS: |
| 1.     | Language Arts (English)  |
| 2.     | Social Studies   |
| 3.     | Science  |
| 4.     | Mathematics (arithmetic for teachers)                                |
| 5,     | Fine Arts  |
| 6.     | Practical Arts   |
| 7.     | Physical Education—General2 years plus 5 hours                       |
| . 8.   | Professional Education   |
|        | a. Educational Psychology  |
| 9.     | Electives from Above Areas   |

# SUGGESTED CURRICULA LEADING TO ELEMENTARY CERTIFICATES

#### TWO-YEAR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CERTIFICATE

|  | First    | Second   |
|--|----------|----------|
| FIRST YEAR   | Semester | Semester |
| English Composition                                    | 3        | 3        |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times          |          | 2        |
| Essentials of Speech.                                  |          | 2        |
| Elementary Public School Music                         |          | 1        |
| Economic Geography.                                    |          | 3        |
| Hygiene  |          |          |
| General Science  |          | 3 2      |
| Physical Education                                     |          | 1        |
| Child Literature.                                      |          |          |
| Story Telling.   | 1        |          |
|  | -        | -        |
|  | 15       | 16       |
| SECOND YEAR  |          |          |
| SECOND YEAR  |          |          |
| Introduction to English Literature                     |          | 3        |
| American History                                       |          | 3        |
| Methods of Teaching in Elementary Schools              |          | 3        |
| School Organization and Management.                    |          | 5        |
| Technique and Practice Teaching Educational Psychology |          | 3        |
| Methods of Teaching Art                                |          |          |
| Physical Education                                     |          | 1        |
| American National Government                           |          |          |
|  |          |          |
|  | 15       | 18       |

# FIVE-YEAR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CERTIFICATE

# (B. S. Degree in Education)

The curriculum set out below is designed particularly for kindergarten and primary teachers. Appropriate changes will be made in the second, third, and fourth years to meet the special needs of those students who desire to prepare for teaching in the intermediate and in the upper grades.

| FIRST YEAR                                      | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|
|   |                   |                    |
| English Composition                             | 3                 | 3                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times   |                   | 1 2                |
| Essentials of Speech.                           |                   | 2                  |
| Physical Education                              | 1                 | 1                  |
| Economic Geography                              |                   | 3                  |
| Hygiene   |                   | 2                  |
| Teaching of Arithmetic.  General Science.       | 3                 | 3                  |
| Child Literature                                |                   |                    |
| Story Telling                                   | 1                 | 18.81              |
|   | -                 | -                  |
|   | 15                | 17                 |
| SECOND YEAR                                     |                   |                    |
|   | 4 11 11 11        |                    |
| Introduction to English Literature              | 3                 | 3                  |
| General Biology                                 | 2                 |                    |
| Methods in Elementary School Physical Education | -                 | 2                  |
| Methods of Teaching Art                         | 2                 |                    |
| Educational Psychology                          |                   | 3                  |
| Humanities                                      | 3                 | 3                  |
| Introduction to Psychology                      | 1                 | 1                  |
| Preventive Medicine                             |                   | 2                  |
|   | -                 | _                  |
|   | 17                | 17                 |
| THIRD YEAR                                      |                   |                    |
|   |                   |                    |
| History and Principles of American Education    | 3                 |                    |
| School Organization and Management              | 3                 | 3                  |
| Clothing and Textiles I                         | 3                 |                    |
| Methods of Teaching in the Elementary School    |                   | 3                  |
| Bible or Philosophy                             |                   | 2                  |
| Introduction to Sociology                       | 0.00              | 3                  |
| Food Preparation and Selection:                 |                   | 3                  |
| Electives.                                      | 3                 | 3                  |
|   | _                 | _                  |
|   | 17                | 17                 |

|   | First    | Second   |
|---|----------|----------|
| Fourth Year                             | Semester | Semester |
| The Family                              | 3        |          |
| Child Development                       | 3        | 14.41    |
| Special Research Problem in Education   | 4.0      | 1        |
| Educational Measurements                |          | 3        |
| Technique and Practice Teaching         |          | 5        |
| Introduction to Music                   | -        | 2        |
| Minor (Grade III)                       | 3        | 3        |
| World Literature or American Literature | 3        | 3        |
| American National Government            | 3        | 100      |
| Electives                               | 2        |          |
|   | -        | -        |
|   | 17       | 17       |

# REQUIREMENTS FOR HIGH SCHOOL TEACHERS

Junior high school teachers must meet the same standards as senior high school or four-year high school teachers.

# GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

- 1. A baccalaureate degree from an accredited college or university.
- Completion of sufficient college work in at least one subject-matter field to meet the standards for certification and approval for a teacher in a first-class high school.
  - A total of twenty-five hours of college work which may be selected from a minimum of three of the following subject fields: English composition, literature, social studies, mathematics, natural science, and foreign languages.
  - Two years of college work in general physical education and one course in Health or Hygiene.

#### PROFESSIONAL REQUIREMENTS:

A minimum of eighteen hours is required and it is strongly recommended not more than thirty hours of undergraduate work in professional education be presented including a course in each of the following:

## Group One-Orientation:

- 1. Educational psychology
- 2. A general orientation course, such as history or philosophy of education

#### Group Two-Methods:

- 1. General techniques or methods in high school teaching
- 2. Special techniques in one teaching field
- 3. A general administration course for teachers

# Group Three-Teaching

1. Student or apprentice teaching (5 hours)

| SPECIAL REQUIREMENT                            | TS FOR TEACHERS IN FIRST CLASS HIGH SCHOOLS:  |      |       |
|--|---|------|-------|
| 1. Language Art                                | s and the same of |      |       |
|  |   | 24   | hours |
| Inclu-<br>Engl                                 | uding at least 5 hours in composition, 5 hours in lish literature, 5 hours in American literature, and ours in speech.  |      |       |
| Twe<br>colle<br>hour<br>the t                  | nty-four hours in English with at least 5 hours of the work in school publications (not more than 5 in school publications may be counted as a part of the school publications required to teach English).  |      |       |
| Twe<br>speed<br>oral<br>be co<br>Engl          | nty-four hours in English with at least 10 hours in ch, including fundamentals, public speaking, and interpretation (not more than 5 hours of speech may ounted in meeting the 24 hours required to teach lish).  |      |       |
|  | Languages nty hours in each language taught.  | 20 1 | ours  |
| All t<br>four<br>in A<br>ernm<br>hour<br>histo | eachers of social studies must have at least twenty-hours in this area, including at least one course each merican history, European history, economics, govern and sociology. Teachers must have at least 5 in each of these subjects taught; American bry, world history, geography, economics, sociology, government.  | 24 1 | nours |
| 3. Mathematics.                                |   | 15   | hours |
| Inch<br>prov<br>phys                           | nce  uding at least 15 hours in each science taught;  ided that teachers of general science and advanced  ical science shall have at least 5 hours work each in  nistry, physics, and biology, or 10 hours in college   | 24 1 | nours |
|  | ral science as a part of the total of twenty-four s repuired in science.  |      |       |
| 5. Fine Arts                                   |   |      |       |
| b. Art<br>c. Dramatic                          | s<br>nty-four hours in English with at least 5 hours work   | 24   | hours |
| in dr  | amatics.  |      |       |
| Twee in A                                      | nty-four hours in English, with at least 5 hours work merican literature and 5 hours in English literature utlined for English teachers.  | 10 1 | hours |

| 6. | Practical Arts                |
|----|-------------------------------|
|    | a. Home Economics             |
|    | b. Commerce                   |
| 7. | Health and Physical Education |

# Suggested Curriculum Leading to Five-Year High School Certificate (A. B. degree or B. S. degree)

| (in bi degree of bi of degree)                | D.       |          |
|---|----------|----------|
| P V.  | First    | Second   |
| First Year                                    | Semester | Semester |
| English Composition                           | . 3      | 3        |
| Foreign Language                              | 3 or 5   | 3 or 5   |
| General Biology or Humanities                 | . 3      | - 3      |
| Physical Education                            |          | 1        |
| American Contemporary Civilization            | . 2      |          |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times |          | 2        |
| Electives.                                    |          | 4 or 2   |
|   | _        | -        |
|   | 16       | 16       |
| SECOND YEAR                                   |          |          |
| Introduction to Familiah Literatura           | 7        | 2        |
| Introduction to English Literature            |          | 3        |
| Foreign Language                              |          |          |
| Introduction to Psychology                    |          |          |
| History and Principles of American Education  |          |          |
| Educational Psychology                        |          | 3        |
| Humanities or General Biology                 |          | 3        |
| Physical Education                            |          | 1        |
| Science                                       |          | 3        |
|   |          |          |
|   | 16       | 16       |
| THIRD YEAR                                    |          |          |
| American History                              | . 3      | 3        |
| Methods of Teaching in High Schools           |          | 3        |
| Principles of Secondary Education             |          |          |
| Major (Grade II or III)                       | . 6      | 6        |
| Minor (Grade II or III)                       | . 6      | 3        |
| Education Elective                            |          | 2        |
|   | -        | -        |
| NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE OWN PARTY.            | 18       | 17       |
| FOURTH YEAR                                   |          |          |
| Diblo - Dhilosophia                           | 2        |          |
| Bible or Philosophy                           |          |          |
| Technique and Practice Teaching               |          | 5        |
| Major (Grade III)                             |          | 3        |
| Minor (Grade III)                             |          | 3        |
| Electives                                     | . 6      | 6        |
|   |          | 4.70     |
|   | 17       | 17       |

This certificate qualifies the holder to teach in any high school in the state of Missouri for a period of five years. It may be converted into a life High School Certificate for those who have completed three years of successful teaching and who have a total of 20 hours of approved college credit in Education, five of which must be in Supervised Student Teaching.

Note: Electives, major and minor, should be worked out and combined to satisfy the requirements of the State Department of Education in the various teaching fields. See page 91 for these requirements.

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE: Students expecting to teach will be given assistance in securing positions. A student intending to teach should consult the head of the Department of Education and the head of the department of her major subject as to the kind of position she is best qualified to fill. Application and enrollment should be made through the office of the Department of Education.

#### DESCRIPTION OF COURSES

#### \*II 2a. HISTORY AND PRINCIPLES OF AMERICAN EDUCATION

A study of the development of American educational philosophies, institutions and practices, with particular emphasis upon the changes which have been made within this century. Comparisons are made with the education of other countries and of earlier times.

Credit: Three hours.

#### II 3a. METHODS OF TEACHING READING

Prerequisite: Psychology 2a or 2b.

A study of the methods of teaching small children to read. Observation of actual teaching will be employed. Modern materials will be used. Skill will be developed in the use of reading readiness tests and reading tests.

Credit: Three hours.

#### II 4b. METHODS OF TEACHING IN ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

Prerequisite: Psychology 2a or 2b.

A study of the methods of teaching the basic elementary school subjects, with special emphasis upon teaching the language arts of reading, writing, spelling, and language. Observation will be employed.

Credit: Three hours.

# \*II 10a. SCHOOL ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT

A study of the organization and management of the elementary school as factors in effecting a better adjustment of the elementary school pupil to his complex environment.

Credit: Three hours.

## III 5b. METHODS OF TEACHING IN HIGH SCHOOLS

Prerequisite: Psychology 2a or 2b.

An analysis of a number of the leading methods of teaching in the high school, with a practical application by each student to her subject of specialization.

Credit: Three hours.

## \*III 6a. PRINCIPLES OF SECONDARY EDUCATION

Prerequisite: Psychology 2a or 2b.

A study of the problems peculiar to the adjustment of maturing boys and girls into their immediate environments, with special emphasis upon the function of the high school teacher in this adjustment.

Credit: Three hours.

## \*III 7b. EDUCATIONAL MEASUREMENTS

Prerequisite: Psychology 2a or 2b.

The development and present practical use of objective measurements of school achievement, with practice in the application and statistical interpretation of such measurements as an aid in teaching. Both standardized and teacher-made tests will be studied.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 9a, 9b. TECHNIQUE AND PRACTICE TEACHING

Prerequisites: Education 4b or 5b, and 6a or 10a.

A course consisting of observation, conferences and supervised teaching in the St. Charles public schools. Students teaching in the high school will teach in their major subject, if possible.

Registration in this course must be approved by the instructor.

Credit: Five or six hours.

# III 11a, 11b. Special Research Problems in Education

Prerequisite: Twelve hours credit in education.

This course provides for individual research work in education. Registration must be approved by the instructor.

Credit: One to three hours.

#### RELATED COURSES IN OTHER DEPARTMENTS

# I 14. ELEMENTARY PUBLIC SCHOOL MUSIC

(For description, see Music, page 118.) Credit: Three hours for the year.

# II 3, 4. Music Methods I and II

(For description, see Music, page 119.) Credit: Three hours for the year.

#### \*II 2a, 2b. EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY

(For description, see Psychology, page 68.)

- \*II 12b. METHODS OF TEACHING ART
  (For description, see Art, page 138)
  Credit: Two hours.
- II or III 12a. METHODS IN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PHYSICAL EDUCATION (For description, see Physical Education, page 106.) Credit: Two hours.
- \*II 12. TEACHING OF ARITHMETIC

  (For description, see Mathematics, page 57.)

  Credit: Two hours.
- III 5. Music Methods III (For description, see Music, page 119.) Credit: One hour each semester.
- III 10. Music Methods IV

  (For description, see Music, page 119.)

  Credit: Two hours each semester.
- \*III 6a. EDUCATIONAL SOCIOLOGY

  (For description, see Sociology, page 71.)

  Credit: Three hours.
- \*II 5b. Mental Hygiene
  (For description, see Psychology, page 68.)
  Credit: Three hours.
- \*III 4a THE PSYCHOLOGY OF THE ADOLESCENT
  (For description, see Psychology, page 68.)
  Credit: Three hours.
- \*III 8b. PSYCHOLOGY OF HUMAN RELATIONS
  (For description, see Psychology, page 69.)
  Credit: Three hours.
- \*III 7a. ABNORMAL AND CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY

  (For description, see Psychology, page 68.)

  Credit: Three hours.
- \*III 10a. METHODS OF TEACHING MATHEMATICS
  (For description, see Mathematics, page 58.)
  Credit: Two hours.
- \*III 18b. METHODS OF TEACHING ENGLISH

  (For description, see English, page 51.)

  Credit: Two hours.

- \*III 14b. METHODS OF TEACHING HISTORY AND THE SOCIAL SCIENCES
  (For description, see History and Government, page 55.)
  Credit: Two hours.
- \*III 11b. Methods of Teaching Modern Languages (For description, see Modern Language, page 60.) Credit: Two hours.
- \*III 9a. METHODS OF TEACHING LATIN
  (For description, see Latin, page 45.)
  Credit: Two hours.
- \*III 31a. CHILD DEVELOPMENT

  (For description, see Psychology, page 69.)

  Credit: Three hours.

Note.—Courses starred receive credit both for the A. B. and the B. S. degrees.

In addition to courses starred, a maximum of eighteen hours of vocational work will be accredited from this school toward the A. B. degree.

# HOME ECONOMICS

Lindenwood College offers a four-year course in Home Economics leading to the degree of Bachelor of Science. Students may specialize (1) in general Home Economics as a preparation for Homemaking; (2) or prepare for positions in business—specializing in Clothing and Art or Foods and Nutrition.

# \*I 11a, IIb. Home and Family Living

A course planned for students interested in problems in home and family living. To include problems that have to do with the social, economic, artistic, and scientific development of a family group.

Credit: Three hours.

# I 12. CLOTHING AND TEXTILES I

A study of essential factors entering into a wise choice of clothing Principles of construction practiced in the making of simple garments of cotton and wool. Also a study of fibers, fabric construction, their use and care through simple laboratory tests.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### \*II 26a. COSTUME HISTORY

The development of costume from primitive to modern times and its historical significance in clothing and design.

Credit: Three hours

#### II 8a. Economics of Textiles and Clothing

General survey of textiles and clothing, and related service industries; the significance of fashion; consumer problems.

Credit: Three hours.

#### \*I 6b. COSTUME DESIGN

Prerequisite: Art 13a.

Selection of costume. Study of line and color.

Practice in design.

Time: One lecture and one two-hour laboratory period each week.

Credit: Two hours.

# II 37b. ADVANCED COSTUME DESIGN

Prerequisites: Art 13a and 6b.

Study and design of costume for various types; adaptation of historic styles to modern dress. Some emphasis on fashion illustration.

Time: One lecture and one two-hour laboratory period each week.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II or III 7. CLOTHING DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

Prerequisites: Home Economics 12; Art 13a, 13b, and 6b.
Construction of a dress form on which to do fitting and draping.
Garments are designed, draped, and constructed. Renovation problems as they relate to economics of clothing are studied.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### \*III. 32b. Home Furnishing

Prerequisites: Art 11a, Art 5a or Classical Languages 8b.

A study is made of the problems involved in the furnishing of a home. A study of furniture, fabrics and tableware suitable for pesent-day living. Several trips are made to homes and shops. Opportunity is provided for each student to work on an individual furnishing project.

Credit: Two hours.

#### III 33b. Special Problems in Clothing

Credit: Three hours.

## I, II 14a, 14b. FOOD PREPARATION AND SELECTION

Prerequisites: Chemistry 1a or 2a. required of majors.

Non-majors: No prerequisites, enroll for foods the second semester.

This course is designed for students who desire a knowledge of elementary nutrition as it applies to the selection and preparation of food for the family.

Credit: Three hours.

#### II 13a. FOOD BUYING

A study of factors affecting the cost, selection and marketing of food: The study of grades, brands, qualities and varieties, including local, state, and federal legislation as they affect the sanitation of food products.

Credit: Three hours.

## II 18b. MEAL PLANNING, PREPARATION AND TABLE SERVICE

Prerequisites: Chemistry I, Home Economics 14a or b and 13a.

The selection, purchase, preparation, and service of food, taking into consideration the dietary needs of the family and the appropriate table service for various types of meals.

Credit: Three hours.

#### III 15b. EXPERIMENTAL COOKERY

Prerequisites: Home Economics 14a or b, 13a, 13b, 16a.

A study of the principles of cooking processes as affected by the factors of manipulation, temperature and proportion of ingredients, together with a study of recent literature and published experimental data relating to these principles.

Credit: Three hours.

# III 16a. NUTRITION

Prerequisites: Biological Science 5, 6a, Chemistry 1a or 2a, Home Economics 14a, b, 13a, 18b.

A study of the nutritive value of food in relation to health and the essential food requirements in the daily diet of normal adults and children.

Credit: Three hours.

#### III 17a. DIETETICS

Prerequisites: Chemistry 3a, 5, 1a or 2a, 7a, 8a, Biological Science 5, 6a.

The analyzing of foods, problems in diets, their function and effect in relation to good health.

Credit: Three hours.

#### \*II or III 21b. Home Nursing

A non-professional course designed to give training in the home care of the sick. The maintenance of health, and nursing when illness occurs are the two major concerns of the course.

Credit: Two hours.

#### \*III 20a. HOME MANAGEMENT

The study of factors in management of time and energy, finance, housing and equipment in the home.

Credit: Two hours.

#### III 27a. Institutional Organization and Management

Credit: Four hours.

# III 28b. QUANTITY COOKERY

Prerequisite: Offered to majors in Foods and Nutritions only.

Methods of quantity food production operation of institutional equipment, making of menus and service of food for institutional use.

Credit: Three hours.

#### \*III 31b. CHILD DEVELOPMENT

The course in child development is planned for immediate and practical use for those who work with children as teachers, mothers, caseworkers, and community members. The Home Economics department teaches the feeding and clothing of the child and the selection of toys and games for the pre-school child. The Psychology and Sociology departments provide principles and techniques for helping the child attain a wholesome personality. Problems accentuated by the war and postwar period will be given special attention. Credit: Three hours.

Note:—Courses starred may be counted as non-vocational hours toward the A. B. degree.

# CURRICULUM—REQUIRED OF FRESHMEN STUDENTS WHO PLAN TO TAKE A DEGREE IN HOME ECONOMICS

| TAKE A DEGREE IN HOME ECONOMI      | Co       |          |
|------------------------------------|----------|----------|
| FIRST YEAR                         | First    | Second   |
| FIRST YEAR                         | Semester | Semester |
| English Composition                |          | 3        |
| Clothing and Textiles I            | 3        | 3        |
| Introduction to Art                | 3        |          |
| Costume Design                     |          | 2        |
| Inorganic Chemistry                | 3        | 3        |
| American Contemporary Civilization |          | 2        |
| Home and Family Living             |          | 3        |
| Food Preparation and Selection     | 3        | 4.5      |
| Physical Education                 | 1        | 1        |
|                                    | -        | _        |
|                                    | 16       | 17       |
| The second second second second    |          |          |

# CURRICULUM IN FOODS AND NUTRITION

#### SOPHOMORE YEAR General Biology..... 3 3 Organic Chemistry..... 3 3 Psychology..... 3 English Literature—Masterpieces..... 3 3 Food Buying..... 3 Meal Planning, Preparation and Table Service. 3 History of the Hebrews. 2 Essentials of Speech.... 2 Physical Education..... 1 1 Physics..... 3

18

18

|   | First    | Second   |
|---|----------|----------|
| Junior Year   | Semester | Semester |
| Bacteriology  | . 3      | - 111    |
| Nutrition   |          | 8.0      |
| Physiology  |          | 3        |
| Home Nursing.   |          | 2        |
| Biochemistry  |          | -        |
| Food Analysis   | 3        |          |
| Introduction to Sociology   |          | 3        |
| Journalism  |          | 3        |
| Interior Design   |          |          |
| History of the New Testament Times  Quantity Cookery  |          | 2 3      |
| Quantity Cookery  | -        | _        |
|   | 18       | 16       |
|   |          |          |
| SENIOR YEAR   |          |          |
| The Family  | 3        |          |
| Introduction to Economics   |          | -        |
| Dietetics   |          |          |
| Experimental Cookery  |          | 3        |
| Home Management   | -        | 2        |
| Radio Speech  |          | 2        |
| Continuity Writing  |          | 1        |
| Child Development   |          | 3        |
| American State and Local Government   |          | 3        |
| Electives   | **       | 3        |
|   | 17       | 17       |
|   |          |          |
|   |          |          |
| CURRICULUM IN TEXTILES AND CLOT   | HING     |          |
| A CONTRACT OF THE PARTY OF THE |          |          |
| SOPHOMORE YEAR  |          |          |
| General Biology   |          | 3        |
| Organic Chemistry   |          | 3        |
| Introduction to Psychology Introduction to Sociology  |          | 3        |
| English Literature—Masterpieces   |          | 3        |
| Home Nursing  |          | 2        |
| History of the Hebrews  |          | 2        |
| Economics of Textiles and Clothing  |          |          |
| Physical Education  | . 1      | 1        |
|   | 16       | 17       |
|   | 10       |          |

| Junior Year                                | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| Physiology                                 | . 3               | 3                  |
| Bacteriology                               | . 3               | 4.4                |
| Nutrition                                  | . 3               |                    |
| Clothing Design and Construction           |                   | 3                  |
| Essentials of Speech                       |                   | 2                  |
| Retail Advertising or Retail Merchandising |                   | 2                  |
| Advanced Costume Design                    |                   | 2                  |
| History and Appreciation of Art            |                   | 2                  |
| Interior Design                            |                   |                    |
| Electives                                  | 3.5               | 3                  |
|  | _                 |                    |
|  | 17                | 17                 |
| SENIOR YEAR                                |                   |                    |
| The Family.                                | 3                 |                    |
| Introduction to Economics                  | . 3               | ***                |
| Child Development                          | . 3               | 3                  |
| Journalism                                 | . 3               | 3                  |
| Home Furnishing                            |                   | 2                  |
| Costume History                            | . 3               | 4.0                |
| Special Problems in Clothing               |                   | 3                  |
| Home Management                            | . 2               | .1.1               |
| American State and Local Government        | 6 3/45 ha         | 3                  |
| Electives                                  |                   | 3                  |
|  | -                 | -                  |
|  | 17                | 17                 |

#### PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Physical Education at Lindenwood College offers the student the opportunity to gain skill in many sports, to improve her physical condition, and to acquire proficiency in dance in order to meet the demands of modern life with stamina and poise. Cognizance is taken of individual differences as to ability and needs. Therefore, in accordance with the modern demands, the physical education program has been expanded to provide ample opportunity for participation in various activities, for the acquisition of skills, and for the attainment of physical fitness and grace.

# MAJOR IN PHYSICAL EDUCATION

The problem of supplying qualified teachers of physical education, recreation leaders, and camp counselors is acute. A four-year curriculum leading to a Bachelor of Science degree in Education with a Major in Physical Education affords excellent training for leadership in the

public school, recreation center, or camp. The first two years of the course are general education arranged to include a background of science, social studies, English, art, music, and religion and to emphasize the acquisition of skill in sports and dance. The junior and senior years are devoted to specialization in physical education and to the fulfillment of requirements for the minor subject.

# **EQUIPMENT**

The facilities for physical education and for student recreation include a gymnasium equipped for indoor sports, a swimming pool with a filtration plant and heating system, an athletic field for outdoor sports, an archery range, tennis courts, a six-hole golf course, riding ring, and stables.

The College furnishes equipment for archery, badminton, recreational games, dance, and team sports. The student should bring a tennis racket or golf clubs if she wishes to play tennis or golf. Horses and a competent instructor are available for riding instruction for an extra fee.

The student should bring tennis shoes and a swimming cap, but her physical education, dance or swimming uniform is regulation and is purchased in the bookstore on the campus.

# RECREATION

The equipment and facilities of the physical education department are available for student recreation. Advanced students and the instructors of the physical education department are ready to assist the student in the development of her skills for recreation use at Lindenwood and in her future life in the community. Intramurals, interschool competition, mixers, square dances, a dance club, a swimming club, and a riding club provide wholesome social groups for leisure time.

# ORGANIZATIONS SPONSORED BY THE PHYSICAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION. The Athletic Association is open to all students who satisfactorily fulfill the requirements by participation in activities and team membership. The Association sponsors all the athletic events on the campus, entertains the college with an annual Barn Dance, and promotes college sports day. Individual awards are presented to members who secure the required points and to the dormitory that has won honors in competition. Outstanding events of

the year include play days and meets in riding, archery, golf, tennis, hockey, basketball, softball, and swimming with other schools.

TAU SIGMA. Tau Sigma is the honorary dance organization. Membership is limited to those who have shown ability in some form of dancing; to those who have passed a rhythmic and creative dance test and have been approved by the other members. Tau sigma sponsors two dance programs, attends symposiums in modern dance when possible, and makes trips to St. Louis to attend dance programs.

TERRAPIN. Terrapin is the honorary swimming organization. Students who are interested are required to pass an entrance test which includes various strokes and dives. The successful completion of this test admits the student to Terrapin. Terrapin sponsors all swimming meets and stages an annual water pageant in which the work of the year is demonstrated. Their emblem is a terrapin.

BETA CHI. Beta Chi is the honorary riding organization. Members are those girls interested in riding who pass an elementary riding test. From this club a riding team is chosen to represent the school. Beta Chi sponsors intra-mural competition, the college spring horse show, competes with riding teams from other schools, and participates in the St. Louis Horse Show. The aim of the club is to further interest in riding at Lindenwood College.

# **ACTIVITY COURSES**

The Physical Education Activity Courses are designed to aid the student in acquiring skill, grace, poise, coordination, and a knowledge of various activities which will be of assistance to her in her social life. A sports ability, general ability and swimming ability test is given all entering freshmen to assist them in a wise selection of activities. Posture work is given where the need is evidenced, or where the student desires assistance. Special remedial classes are organized to provide for the student who is unable to participate in the general program. In this way, it is possible for all students to take part in the Physical Education Program.

During the freshman and sophomore years, experience will be gained in a team sport, an individual or dual sport, dance, and physical conditioning in order that each student may have a well-rounded program of experience in physical activity. Classes meet two hours a week for which the student receives on semester hour credit. Four credits are required for graduation. During the freshman year one individual or dual sport and one team game or dance activity is suggested for a well balanced program.

### TEAM GAME

First Semester

Second Semester

Hockey Soccer Speedball Basketball Softball Volleyball

## INDIVIDUAL AND DUAL SPORTS

Archery Bowling Golf Archery Badminton Bowling Golf

Tennis

Recreational Games Riding Tennis

Recreational Games Riding

# DANCE

Folk and Square

Folk and Square Modern

Modern Social

Social

# PHYSICAL CONDITIONING

Posture Conditioning Remedial Posture Conditioning Remedial

Stunts and Tumbling

#### SWIMMING

Beginners Intermediate Advanced Life Saving Beginners Intermediate Advanced Life Saving

Red Cross Instructor's Course

#### DESCRIPTION OF COURSES

# I 1a. Introduction to Physical Education

Orientation of student as to possibilities in Physical Education for teaching; recreation in industry; recreation in community centers; playgrounds; camps. Survey of history and development of Physical Education.

Credit: Two hours.

#### I. 2b. COMMUNITY RECREATION

Prerequisite: Recreational Leadership

Theory of play and recreation. History and significance of Recreation movement. Principles underlying program planning for recreational centers.

Credit: Two hours (Open to all students.)

#### Tor II 3a. FIRST AID

Regulation American Red Cross First Aid Course with the certificate for those who complete the course satisfactorily.

Credit: One hour.

### II 4a. RECREATIONAL LEADERSHIP

Survey of recreation history and development. Organization, equipment, and administration of recreation centers. Theory of leadership. Integration of various fields of allied arts. Practical work in planning and conducting recreation program.

Credit: Two hours (Open to all students.)

#### II 5b. CAMP COUNSELING

The development of the camping movement, and the modern trends. Aims and objectives, organization and administration, programs and leadership in relation to the counselor.

Credit: Two hours (Open to all students.)

#### I or II 6a. ELEMENTARY RHYTHMS AND GAMES

Knowledge of the characteristics of various ages, types of activities included, and hints in teaching Elementary Physical Education are studied. Practical application and experience in the various activities.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II or III 7b. TECHNIQUE AND PRACTICE OF DANCE

Prerequisite: Physical Education 6a.

Skill and practice in folk, square, modern and social dance from a teaching viewpoint. Student required to participate in dance activity course.

Credit: Two hours.

### II or III 8a. PRINCIPLES AND PROBLEMS IN PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Prerequisite: Physical Education 1a.

Principles underlying a modern physical education and health program. Philosophy and influence of renowned physical educators. Problems in teaching and recreation.

Credit: Two hours.

#### III 9b. KINESIOLOGY

Prerequisite: Biological Science 4a.

Principles of bodily movement; analysis of skills and their relationship to bodily development and efficiency in games and sports.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II or III 10b. METHODS IN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Prerequisite: Psychology 2a, b.

Study of child development as related to physical education in the elementary school. Survey of suitable activities and methods of presentation. Programs planned for various situations.

Credit: Two hours.

II or III 11b. METHODS IN JUNIOR AND SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Prerequisite: Psychology 2a, b.

Activities and methods of presentation for the Junior and Senior High School. Programs, organization, and conduct of victory corps, sports, and special events.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

### II or III 12a, 12b. TECHNIQUE OF TEACHING SPORTS

Prerequisite: Participation in Related Sports.

Analysis of sports and related skills with reference to various teaching problems in the high school and college. Lecture and practical work.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

### III 13b. PROBLEMS IN HEALTH AND SAFETY EDUCATION

Prerequisite: Biological Science 2a.

Problems relative to the hygiene of the school child, to his environment, and to his growth and development. Principles of a health program; plans, conduct. Safety reference material.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

#### III 14a. Organization and Administration of Physical Education

Prerequisite: Physical Education 1a, 8a.

Problems relative to organization, administration, and supervision with reference to basic philosophy, objectives, selection of activities, and care and equipment of the physical education plant.

Credit: Two hours. (Not offered in 1948-49)

### III 15a. Remedial Work in Reference to Physical Fitness

Prerequisite: Biological Science 4a and Physical Education 9b.

Preventive, corrective and remedial work in reference to the mechanics of posture and sports, defects found, and injuries that might occur. Plan programs that could be used to acquire and to maintain a graceful and efficient body mechanism; programs for corrective work with medical referral.

One hour of lecture and practice time.

Credit: Two hours.

# III. 16b. Measurement and Evaluation in Physical Education and Health

Prerequisite: 16 credits in Physical Education Courses.

Introduction to tests and measurements in physical education; the health examination, skill tests, motor ability tests, evaluation of the program, and methods of grading.

Credit: Two hours.

## II or III 19b. DANCE COMPOSITION

Prerequisite: Physical Education 6a, 7b, 17a.

Study of principles of dance composition in relation to the fields of art, drama, and music. Original compositions created.

Credit: Two hours.

## I 21b. METHODS OF TEACHING RIDING

Credit: One hour.

# SUGGESTED COURSE OF STUDY

# Major in Physical Education

| Freshman Year                                       | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|
| English Composition                                 |                   | 3                  |
| General Biology                                     |                   | 3                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times       |                   | 2                  |
| Hygiene   |                   | (表表                |
| Preventive Medicine                                 |                   | 2                  |
| Humanities  |                   | 3                  |
| Introduction to Physical Education                  |                   | 1.5                |
| Community Recreation                                |                   | 2                  |
| First Aid   |                   | Colores .          |
| Physical Education Activity                         | 1                 | 1                  |
| (Consult Activity Courses)                          |                   |                    |
|   | 16                | 16                 |
| SOPHOMORE YEAR                                      |                   |                    |
| English Literature                                  | 3                 | 3                  |
| Physiology  | 3                 | 3                  |
| Introduction to Psychology                          |                   |                    |
| Mental Hygiene                                      |                   | 3                  |
| Piano   | 1                 | 1                  |
| Essentials of Speech                                | 2                 |                    |
| Introduction to Rhythmics and Dance                 | 2                 | (4.9)              |
| Techniques and Practice of Dance                    |                   | 2                  |
| Recreation Leadership                               | 2                 | 16.6               |
| Methods in Elementary Physical Education (Optional) |                   | 2                  |
| Camp Counseling                                     | **                | 2                  |
| Physical Education Activity                         | 1                 | 1                  |
|   |                   | -                  |
|   | 17                | 17                 |

| JUNIOR YEAR  | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| Anatomy  |                   | 14/4/              |
| History and Principles of American Education                 | 3                 | ***                |
| Educational Psychology                                       |                   | 3                  |
| Principles and Problems in Physical Education                |                   | 10.0               |
| Kinesiology  |                   | 2                  |
| Methods in Junior and Senior High School Physical Education. |                   | 2                  |
| Technique of Teaching Sports                                 |                   | 3                  |
| Physical Education Activity                                  |                   | 1                  |
| Elective   | 5                 | 6                  |
|  |                   |                    |
|  | 17                | 17                 |
| SENIOR YEAR  |                   |                    |
| Bible or Philosophy  |                   | 2                  |
| Techniques and Practice Teaching                             |                   | 2                  |
| Principles of Secondary Education                            |                   | * *                |
| Problems in Health and Safety Education.                     |                   | 2                  |
| Organization and Administration of Physical Education        |                   | * *                |
| Remedial Work in Reference to Physical Fitness               |                   | 7.5                |
| Measurements and Evaluation in Physical Education and Health |                   | 2                  |
| Physical Education Activity                                  |                   | 1                  |
| Electives  | 6                 | 7                  |
|  | 17                | 16                 |
| Suggested Electives:   |                   |                    |

Nutrition (if possible) Introduction to Art Design Psychology General Physical Science Music

Major students in Physical Education are required to take two physical education activities each semester for one credit and to participate in all activities of the Physical Education Department.

# Secretarial Science

00

### DESCRIPTION OF COURSES

## I. 1. ELEMENTARY SHORTHAND

Thorough instruction in the principles of Gregg Shorthand with sufficient drill to develop accuracy and a fair degree of speed in dictation and transcription. Typewriting must be taken concurrently with shorthand unless the student has had the equivalent of Secretarial Science 2. Meets five hours a week each semester.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### 1. 2. ELEMENTARY TYPEWRITING

A fundamental course for the purpose of mastering the keyboard and operative parts of the machine. Business letters, tabulation, rough drafts. Meets four hours a week each semester.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

## I. 3a, 3b. Typewriting for Personal Use

One-semester course for the student who does not care to become an expert typist but desires skill in typing for her own benefit. Mastery of the keyboard; letter parts and styles; manuscript typing, typing of outlines and themes; composition at the typewriter; and personal typewriting projects. Meets four hours a week.

Credit: Two hours. (Open only to non-business majors.)

#### I or II. 4. ADVANCED SHORTHAND

Prerequisite: Secretarial Science 1 and 2. Upon recommendation of the department, students who have had one or two years of high school shorthand may enroll in this course.

Includes a thorough review of the principles of Gregg Shorthand; develops speed and accuracy in dictation and transcription of business letters, technical and continuous matter. Meets five hours a week each semester.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### I or II. 5. ADVANCED TYPEWRITING

Prerequisite: Secretarial Science 2. Upon the recommendation of the department, students who have had one or two years of high school type-writing may enroll in this course.

Develops speed in typewriting; advanced problems in letter writing, tabulation, and office typewriting projects; cutting of stencils and use of the mimeograph. Introduction to the dictaphone. Meets four hours a week each semester.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### I or II 6. ELEMENTARY ACCOUNTING

A study of the fundamental principles of accounting. The direct application of the accounting principles is made to the single proprietorship, partnership, and corporation. Preparation of financial statements is emphasized. Lecture one hour a week; laboratory four hours a week.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### II 8b. BUSINESS LAW

A course on the fundamental principles of law in relation to the more common business transactions, dealing with such subjects as contracts, sales, bailments, negotiable instruments, laws of employment and property.

Credit: Two hours. (Open to all upper class students.)

### II or III 11a. Business English

A review of English essentials and practice in letter writing—sales, collection, application, and other forms of business communication.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II or III 12a. OFFICE MACHINES

Training in the operation of standard office equipment including dictating and transcription machines, mimeograph, ditto, calculator, and adding machines.

Credit: Two hours. (Open to second-year students of Secretarial Science.)

### II or III 9. OFFICE PRACTICE

Prerequisite or concurrent: Secretarial Science 4, 5, 12a, 11a.

Training in the accepted secretarial procedures, filing, and practical experience in offices of the college.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### III 13b. ADVANCED DICTATION

Prerequisites: Secretarial Science 4, 5.

A course offering practice in writing and transcribing specialized material at advanced speeds.

Credit: Three hours.

#### FOUR-YEAR CURRICULUM

The prescribed curriculum in General Business as outlined below gives a broad education in the liberal arts field. Emphasis throughout the four years is given not only to secretarial science, but also to psychology, economics, sociology, history, and government.

# Major in General Business or Economics

If the student follows the program exactly as outlined below, she will receive a Bachelor of Science degree with a major in General Business.

Students who elect Economics as a major may substitute other courses for those listed, provided that twenty-four hours in Economics are chosen from courses of Grades II and III, of which at least twelve are of Grade III. She must also fulfill the requirements for a minor in secretarial science by completing the courses marked with an asterisk.

A student may minor in secretarial science and select a major in another department (sociology, psychology, English, history) if she does not desire a major in Economics or General Business.

Those who wish to qualify for the state teacher's certificate must include courses meeting the requirements.

#### FOUR-YEAR CURRICULUM

| First Year   | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| *English Composition                                   | 3                 | 3                  |
| *Elementary Typewriting                                |                   | 2                  |
| *Elementary Shorthand                                  | 3                 | 3                  |
| *Essentials of Speech                                  | 2                 | 12/2               |
| *Bible   | 2                 | 34.61              |
| American Contemporary Civilization                     | 0.00              | 2                  |
| *Mathematics of Business                               |                   | 3                  |
| *Physical Education                                    | 1                 | 1                  |
| Electives (Science, Humanities, or language suggested) |                   | 3                  |
|  | -                 | _                  |
|  | 16                | 17                 |
| SECOND YEAR  |                   |                    |
| *Advanced Shorthand                                    | . 3               | 3                  |
| *Elementary Accounting                                 | 3                 | 3                  |
| *Introduction to Economics                             | . 3               | 1914               |
| *Advanced Typewriting                                  | 2                 | 2                  |
| *Business Law  | K. 4              | 2                  |
| *Introduction to Psychology                            |                   | **                 |
| Consumer Economics                                     |                   | 2                  |
| *Physical Education                                    | . 1               | 1                  |
| Electives (Science, Humanities, or language suggested) | 3                 | 3                  |
|  | -                 |                    |
|  | 18                | 16                 |

| THIRD YEAR                                 | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| *Office Machines                           |                   | 4.4                |
| *Business English                          |                   |                    |
| *Advanced Dictation                        |                   | 3 2                |
| Statistical Methods                        |                   | -                  |
| *Bible                                     |                   | 2                  |
| Economic Geography                         |                   | 3                  |
| Introduction to Sociology                  |                   |                    |
| American National Government               |                   |                    |
| Current Economic Problems                  |                   | 3                  |
| Electives                                  |                   | _                  |
|  | 17                | 17                 |
|  |                   |                    |
| FOURTH YEAR                                |                   |                    |
| *Office Practice                           | 2                 | 2                  |
| Comparative Economic Systems               |                   | 3                  |
| Labor Problems and Industrial Relations    |                   |                    |
| Vocational Guidance                        |                   |                    |
| Current Social Problems and Social Control |                   | 9.6                |
| Psychology of Human Relations.             |                   | 3                  |
| Electives.                                 |                   | 8                  |
|  |                   | _                  |
|  | 17                | 16                 |

# CURRICULUM FOR TWO-YEAR SECRETARIAL COURSE LEADING TO A CERTIFICATE IN SECRETARIAL SCIENCE

| First Year   | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| English Composition                                    | 3                 | 3                  |
| Elementary Shorthand                                   | 3                 | 3                  |
| Elementary Typewriting                                 |                   | 2                  |
| Essentials of Speech                                   | 2                 | Wile               |
| Mathematics of Business                                |                   | 3                  |
| Bible  | 2                 |                    |
| American Contemporary Civilization                     | -                 | 2                  |
| Physical Education                                     | 1                 | 1                  |
| Electives (Humanities, Science, or language suggested) | 3                 | 3                  |
|  | -                 | -                  |
|  | 16                | 17                 |

| SECOND YEAR  | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| Elementary Accounting  | 3                 | 3                  |
| Advanced Shorthand   | 3                 | 3                  |
| Advanced Typewriting   | 2                 | 2                  |
| Office Machines  | 2                 |                    |
| Business Law   |                   | 2                  |
| Business English   | 2                 |                    |
| Office Practice  | 2                 | 2                  |
| Physical Education   | 1                 | 1                  |
| Introduction to Economics  |                   | 3                  |
| Elective   | 2                 |                    |
| The state of the s | _                 | _                  |
|  | 17                | 16                 |

# Departments of the Fine Arts

010

# Music

Musicianship is the principal objective in all courses leading to the Bachelor of Music degree.

For the professional musician the specified four year curriculum emphasizes correlation of all music subjects in addition to growth and development in performance. Lindenwood College believes in a general education for all young women. The Department of Music requires as many courses in Liberal Arts as are consistent with professional training.

The requirements for admission are the same as those listed for admission on pages 28, 29, 30, and 31 of this bulletin.

Every student on the campus is encouraged to make music a part of her college life. She may take lessons in one or two fields of applied music, join the college choir, or orchestra; attend the many fine recitals, or register for a course such as Introduction to Music Literature.

Courses in the Department of Music are opened to all students enrolled in the College of Arts and Science, or in the Department of Vocations. A maximum of eighteen hours will be accredited from this department toward the degree of A. B.

The eighteen hours which may be accredited toward the A. B. degree may be selected from courses in the Department of Music, which are not listed in the courses as in Arts and Science.

# REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADUATION

# DEGREE OF BACHELOR OF MUSIC

In order to receive the degree of Bachelor of Music, the candidate must meet the following requirements:\*

1. Complete the outlined four-year course in Piano, Organ, Voice, Violin, 'Cello, or Public School Music.

<sup>\*</sup>It is understood that the preparatory training of a student in the major subject she selects is sufficient to permit her to take up the studies outlined on pages 125-135.

- 2. Attend all recitals, and take part in at least two each year. This is a requirement for full credit in applied Music. Absence from a recital is counted the same as an absence from a lesson.
- 3. Pass semiannual examinations in her major study before the faculty of the Department of Music. Pass an examination fulfilling minimum requirements for a freshman piano major, see page 125. All students majoring in Public School Music, Voice or Instruments, must meet this requirement before graduation.
- 4. Give a half-hour recital in the Sophomore year and an hour recital in each of the Junior and Senior years. Public School Music students are required to give a diploma recital as minimum requirement in one branch of applied music. This may be done in either Junior or Senior year.
- 5. Complete a total of 124 hours, exclusive of physical educa-
  - 6. Complete a total of 120 grade points.\*
  - 7. Take a final comprehensive examination in the field of Music.

# DIPLOMA IN MUSIC

A diploma will be granted a student who completes satisfactorily the outlined two-year course in Piano, Organ, Voice, or Violin, and gives a recital demonstrating her fitness to receive a diploma, provided that she passes faculty examinations in her major study and attends all student recitals. All students are required to pass a Piano examination. It is possible for A. B. or B. S. students, possessing sound musical training, to meet the Diploma requirements in the Senior year.

## CERTIFICATE IN PUBLIC SCHOOL MUSIC

A certificate will be granted a student who completes satisfactorily the outlined two-year course in Public School Music. This certificate does not automatically grant permission to teach.

#### ENTRANCE CREDITS

Students who plan to major in Music at Lindenwood College may offer three units of entrance credit in applied and theoretical music. The credits in applied music will be accepted after the stu-

<sup>\*</sup>See page 35.

dent has passed an examination conducted by the faculty of the Department of Music in Lindenwood College. In addition to these three units, there will be required twelve additional units of acceptable high school work.

ADVANCED STANDING—Claims for advanced standing must be made to the Chairman of the Department of Music within one semester after entrance. Credit for advanced standing is granted only to those who are able to pass a satisfactory examination before the faculty of the Department of Music.

AUDITIONS—During registration, auditions will be held for Freshmen and transfer students in all required applied music subjects. Piano is required in all music major courses. The music faculty reserves the right to recommend preparatory work for students not sufficiently advanced to take up the prescribed course. See description of Courses, pages 118 to 121.

PRACTICE—The college possesses practice pianos and organs which are assigned to students by a monitress. This insures regularity of work and the advantage of uninterrupted practice for the full time.

ORCHESTRA—An orchestra is organized each year for the purpose of training in ensemble playing. All students of orchestral instruments are required to join the orchestra, which meets twice a week throughout the year. The orchestra gives concerts during the year. A number of brass, wood-wind, and stringed instruments are owned by the College. Free use of these instruments is allowed to students who qualify for membership in the orchestra.

ORCHESTRAL INSTRUMENTS—Instruction is offered in all orchestral instruments. Advanced students are given the opportunity of studying with members of the St. Louis Symphony Orchestra.

CHOIR—The choir meets twice a week throughout the year and takes part in the Sunday evening vesper services. All students majoring in Public School Music, Voice or Organ are required to join the choir.

RECITALS—In addition to faculty and student recitals, concerts are given by the orchestra, choir and visiting artists.

RECORD LIBRARY—The facilities of an extensive library of records and scores are available to students.

CONCERTS AND OPERAS—The concerts and operas given in St. Louis during the winter offer students at Lindenwood the opportunity to hear and appreciate the best music. Many of the students are regular subscribers to the St. Louis Symphony Concerts and the Civic Music League Concerts.

Mu Phi Epsilon—This national sorority for recognition of outstanding ability in music is represented in Lindenwood College by Phi Theta chapter. To this chapter are elected annually those members of the upper classes whose excellence in performance and scholarship warrants this recognition.

Delta Phi Delta—The honorary sorority for Public School Music and Applied Music majors. Any student in this department is eligible for membership providing she has a superior grade in her major subject and an average grade in other subjects.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS OF MUSIC—Lindenwood College is a member of the National Association of Schools of Music. The requirements for entrance and for graduation as set forth in this catalog are in accordance with the published regulations of the National Association of Schools of Music.

#### DESCRIPTION OF COURSES

#### I 6a, 6b. CHOIR

Training in the singing of religious and secular music, accompanied and a cappella.

Credit: One hour each semester.

#### I 7a. 7b. ORCHESTRA

Training in ensemble playing on orchestral instruments. Credit: One hour each semester.

(Not more than four hours allowed for a degree.)

#### I 14. ELEMENTARY PUBLIC SCHOOL MUSIC

This course is arranged to meet the requirements in music for a sixty-hour Elementary Certificate granted by the State of Missouri.

Music in the Elementary Grades:

A course designed to acquaint the elementary teacher with the fundamentals of music and methods of teaching vocal music. A study of the child voice; rote singing; toy band; and methods of presentation and materials used in developing an appreciation of music. A consideration of the music problems in the rural and small school.

Credit: Three hours for the year.

## II 3a, 3b. Music Methods I and II

Music in the Primary Grades:

A study of child nature, child voice and song repertory; toy band; rhythmic activities; discriminative listening; first steps in music reading through eye and ear co-operation. Study of baton technique.

Credit: Two hours, first semester.

Music in the Intermediate Grades:

A detailed study of the materials and methods adapted to music reading in the fourth, fifth, and sixth grades. Practice in conducting.

Credit: One hour, second semester.

3b. Observation and practice teaching in the primary grades.

Credit: One hour, second semester.

### II 21a, 21b. RADIO MUSIC

Members of this section write, arrange, conduct and play music for the radio programs presented by the class in Radio Production. In addition, microphone technique, programming, copyright and clearance and other aspects of music in radio are studied. Music produced by the class is heard over St. Louis stations from time to time. See instructor for permission to register.

Credit: Two hours.

## II 22a, 22b. RADIO MUSIC

Meets with Radio Music 21a, 21b, once a week. This section is for students who wish to learn the problems of performance in radio but who are not primarily interested in actual composition and arranging. Phases of classical and popular music, problems of musical program building, microphone techniques and clearance are considered. Both sections meet with the Radio Production group to produce the programs. Freshmen admitted to both sections in exceptional cases.

Credit: One hour.

#### III 4 MUSIC METHODS III

Prerequisite: Music 3a, 3b.

Music in the Junior High School:

A study of the place of music in the general cultural education of the adolescent youth; materials and methods; the changing voice; voice testing part singing; methods of appreciation and practice teaching.

Music in the Senior High School:

This course deals with the methods and materials of organizing and developing high school vocal and instrumental ensembles.

Credit: One hour each semester.

Observation and Practice Teaching in the primary and intermediate grades.
 Credit: One hour each semester.

#### III 5a. Music Methods IV

Prerequisite: Music 4.

Music Education: A study of the supervisory and administrative problems of the music supervisor. Comparative study and analysis of the

most recently published texts. Methods and materials pertaining to vocal and instrumental music classes.

Credit: Two hours.

5a, 5b. Observation and Practice Teaching in the Junior and Senior High Schools. Credit: One hour each semester.

#### III 11. STUDENT TEACHING

This work includes observation of private insruction in the studio of a faculty member. This is followed by actual teaching experience outside the studio. Lectures on principles of technique, tone and phrasing. Required, in the senior year, of all students making applied music their major study.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

## III 12. CLASS INSTRUCTION IN THE PLAYING OF THE WIND INSTRUMENTS OF THE ORCHESTRA

Practical experience in both woodwind and brass instruments generally used in high school bands and orchestras. Instrument assignments are changed periodically so as to cover a wider range of fundamental knowledge. The College owns instruments which are available for practice without charge. Credit: One hour each semester.

# III 13. CLASS INSTRUCTION IN THE PLAYING OF STRINGED INSTRUMENTS OF THE ORCHESTRA

Practical experience in learning the tuning, fingering, and playing of scales and simple music. The College owns instruments which are available for practice without charge.

Credit: One hour each semester.

#### III 20b. PIANO PEDAGOGY

The study of elementary piano material for individual or class instruction. Credit: One hour.

For courses in History and Appreciation of Music, Harmony, etc., see Theory of Music in the College of Arts and Science, pages 74, 75, and 76.

#### ENSEMBLE COURSES

#### CHORAL AND ORCHESTRAL CONDUCTING

Practical experience in choral and orchestral conducting. Principles of beating time, the technique of the baton, interpretation, rehearsal methods, and program building.

Credit: One hour each semester.

#### PIANO AND STRING ENSEMBLE

String duets, trios, and quartets. Piano and violin ensemble; voice and violin; organ, piano, and violin. Excellent training in sight reading, develops rhythmic sense and increases general musicianship.

Credit: One hour each semester.

#### ORCHESTRA

Study and performance of symphonies, overtures and concert numbers. Formal concerts including concertos and arias with student soloists. Christmas concert with the college choir. Open to all students in the college.

Credit: One hour each semester. (Only four hours in ensemble work allowed toward degree.)

#### ORGAN ENSEMBLE

Training in the art of playing the organ in combination with other instruments. Composers in the past few years have added a great number of compositions in this field, and ensemble playing has become a real part of the professional organist's training. Ensemble of organ and piano; organ, piano, and violin; organ, piano, violin, and voice, etc., will be studied.

Credit: One hour each semester.

#### PIANO

(NOTE: It is understood that the preparatory training of a student is sufficient to permit her to take up the following studies.)

#### FIRST YEAR

Technique: Major and minor scales in similar and contrary motion; broken chords; arpeggios and technical exercises. Solo studies.

Bach.—Two-Part and Three-Part Inventions or Well-Tempered Clavichord.—Haydn, Mozart or Beethoven Sonatas. Compositions from the romantic and modern schools.

#### SECOND YEAR

Technique: Continuation of first-year technical studies. Solo studies. Bach Well-Tempered Clavichord, Suites, Partitas.

More difficult compositions of Haydn, Mozart or Beethoven. Compositions from the romantic and modern schools.

Thirty-minute public recital.

#### THIRD YEAR

Technique: Major and minor scales in intervals of thirds, sixths and tenths; arpeggios in all intervals.

Advanced solo studies.

Bach. Well-Tempered Clavichord, Suites, Partitas.

Larger compositions from the classic, romantic, and modern schools. One hour public recital.

#### FOURTH YEAR

Technique: Continuation of third-year technical studies.

Advanced solo studies.

Bach larger fugues or transcriptions.

More difficult compositions from the classic, romantic, and modern schools.

Public recital.

#### ORGAN

(Note: It is understood that the preparatory training of a student is sufficient to permit her to take up the following studies.)

#### FIRST YEAR

Preparatory manual exercises. Pedal exercises. Trios for manuals and pedals. Bach: The Eight Short Preludes and Fugues; Prelude and Fugue in C (Vol. II, Schirmer Edition); Prelude and Fugue in C Minor (Vol. I, Schirmer Edition). Modern Compositions.

#### SECOND YEAR

Continuation of manual and pedal exercises and scales. Bach: Fugue in G Minor (Vol. II, Schirmer Edition); Fantasia and Fugue in A Minor (Vol. I, Schirmer Edition); Prelude and Fugue in D Minor (Vol. II, Schirmer Edition); Chorale Preludes; First Sonata. Mendelssohn: Second Sonata. Modern Compositions.

Thirty minute public recital.

#### THIRD YEAR

Bach: Chorale Preludes; Toccata and Fugue in D Minor (Vol. II, Schirmer Edition); Prelude and Fugue in D Major (Vol. II, Schirmer Edition); Second Sonata; Prelude and Fugue in G (Vol. IV, Schirmer Edition). Franck: Choral in A Minor; Fantasie in C Major; Cantabile; Pastorale; Piece Heroique. Mendelssohn: Third Sonata.

One hour public recital.

#### FOURTH YEAR

Bach: Prelude and Fugue in E Flat (St. Ann's); Fantasie and Fugue in G Minor; Fantasie and Fugue in C Minor; Toccata, Adagio, and Fugue. Franck: Chorals in B Minor and E Major. Mendelssohn: Fifth and Sixth Sonatas. Selected movements from the Widor and Vierne Symphonies. Shorter compositions suitable for recitals. The student will be required to prepare, without the aid of the instructor, a composition of moderate difficulty. The student will also be examined in sight reading, modulation, and improvisation.

Public recital.

#### VOICE

(Note: It is understood that the preparatory training of a student is sufficient to permit her to take up the following studies.)

#### FIRST YEAR

Correct posture and breath control with emphasis on mental poise. A study of vowels as a basis of fundamental tone through the medium of selected vocalises and technical studies. Simple classic and English songs. Choir.

#### SECOND YEAR

More advanced technique for extension of range and flexibility: e. g. major, minor, and chromatic scales, arpeggios to the third and fifth above the octave, advanced vocalises. Recital consisting of opera arias, oratorio, aria, and songs which merge the classic and romantic periods. Choir.

Thirty minute public recital.

#### THIRD YEAR

Continuation of second year technique emphasizing agility and vocal line. Difficult repertoire both lyric and dramatic which develop expression appropriate to periods. Choir.

One hour public recital.

#### FOURTH YEAR

Recapitulation and amplification of work of previous years, leading to a comprehensive examination. Frequent public appearances. Sight reading and ensemble singing preparatory to practical experience in public performance.

Public recital.

#### VIOLIN

(Note: It is understood that the preparatory training of a student is sufficient to permit her to take up the following studies,)

## FIRST YEAR

Scales (three octaves) broken triads chords of the seventh chromatic scales. Etudes by Kreutzer, Fiorilli, Casorti bowing technique or similar material. Concertos: De Beriot 7 or 9, Viotti 23 or 19, Sophr No. 6 or similar material.

#### SECOND YEAR

Scales same as previous year also thirds and sixths. Etudes by Gavinies Matineis, Rode Caprices or similar material. Concertos: Mozart A major, Viotti 22, Vieuxtemps No. 4 or similar material.

Thirty minute public recital.

#### THIRD YEAR

Scales in thirds, sixths, octaves, and tenths. Etudes by Sauret, Dont op. 35, Wieniawski Caprices or similar material. Concertos: Mozart D Major, Bruch G Minor, Mendelssohn Lalo Symphonie Espagnole or similar material.

One hour public recital.

#### FOURTH YEAR

Work of previous grade continued intensively. Concertos by Bruch D Minor, Glazounow, Dvorak, Concert pieces and solo from modern composers. Public recital.

# Piano

# 00

# FOUR-YEAR COURSE LEADING TO THE DEGREE OF B. M.

| TOTAL COUNTY BENEFIT OF THE PEOR                       | O. D.      |          |
|--|------------|----------|
|  | First      | Second   |
| FIRST YEAR   | Semester   | Semester |
| Piano  | 3          | 3        |
| Secondary applied music (Organ, Violin, Voice, etc.)   |            | 1        |
| Theory I   |            | 4        |
| English Composition                                    |            | 3        |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times.         |            | 2        |
| Physical Education                                     |            | 1        |
| American Contemporary Civilization                     | 2          | 0.0      |
| Humanities   | 3          | 3        |
|  | _          | -        |
|  | 17         | 17       |
|  |            |          |
| Second Year  |            |          |
| Piano  | . 3        | 3        |
| Secondary applied music (Organ, Violin, Voice, etc.)   |            | 1        |
| Theory II  |            | 4        |
| History of Music I and II                              |            | . 2      |
| Introduction to English Literature                     |            | 3        |
| Physical Education                                     |            | 1        |
| General Science  |            | 3        |
|  | =          | _        |
|  | 17         | 17       |
| /St. d . t   | distance \ |          |
| (Students completing the two-year course may receive a | dipioma.)  |          |
|  |            |          |
| THIRD YEAR   |            |          |
| THIRD TEAR   |            |          |
| Piano  | . 5        | 5        |
| Secondary Applied Music                                | . 1        | 1        |
| Counterpoint   |            | 2        |
| Musical Form and Analysis                              |            | 2        |
| History of Music III and IV                            |            | 2        |
| Foreign Language (French or German)                    | . 5        | 5        |
|  | -          | = =      |
|  | 17         | 17       |
|  |            |          |

| Fourt                   | H YEAR | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|-------------------------|--------|-------------------|--------------------|
| Piano                   |        | . 5               | 5                  |
| Secondary Applied Music |        | . 1               | 1                  |
| Advanced Counterpoint   |        | . 2               |                    |
| Fugue                   |        |                   | 2                  |
|                         |        |                   | 2                  |
| Ensemble                |        | 1                 | 1                  |
| Student Teaching        |        | . 2               | 2                  |
|                         | ,      |                   |                    |
|                         |        |                   | 3                  |
|                         |        | -                 | -                  |
|                         |        | 18                | 16                 |

# Organ

# 019

# FOUR-YEAR COURSE LEADING TO THE DEGREE OF B. M.

| First Year  | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|
| Organ   | 3                 | 3                  |
| Piano   | W 3               | 1                  |
| Theory I  |                   | 4                  |
| English Composition                                       | 3                 | 3                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times             |                   | 2                  |
| Physical Education  | 1                 | 1                  |
| Choir   | 1                 | 1                  |
| Humanities  | . 3               | 3                  |
|   | -                 |                    |
|   | 16                | 18                 |
| SECOND YEAR   |                   |                    |
| Organ   | 3                 | 3                  |
| Piano   | 1                 | 1                  |
| Theory II   | 4                 | 4                  |
| History of Music I and II                                 | 2                 | 2                  |
| Introduction to English Literature                        | 3                 | 3                  |
| Physical Education  | 1                 | 1                  |
| General Science   | 3                 | 3                  |
| Choir   | 1                 | 1                  |
|   | 18                | 18                 |
| (Students completing the two-year course may receive a di | ploma.)           |                    |
| THIRD YEAR  |                   |                    |
| Organ   | 5                 | 5                  |

| Organ                               | 5  | 5   |
|-------------------------------------|----|-----|
| Secondary Applied Music             | 1  | 1   |
| Counterpoint                        | 2  | 2   |
| Musical Form and Analysis           | 2  | 2   |
| History of Music III and IV         | 2  | 2   |
| Foreign Language (French or German) | 5  | 5   |
| Choir                               | 1  | 1 - |
|                                     | -  | -   |
|                                     | 18 | 18  |

(It is possible to complete the requirements for a diploma in Piano this year.)

| Fourth Year             | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|-------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| Organ                   | . 5               | 5                  |
| Secondary Applied Music | . 1               | 1                  |
| Advanced Counterpoint   |                   |                    |
| Fugue                   |                   | 2                  |
| Instrumentation         |                   | 2                  |
| Ensemble                | . 1               | 1                  |
| Bible or Philosophy     |                   |                    |
| Student Teaching        |                   | 2                  |
| Academic Electives      |                   | 2                  |
| Choir                   |                   | 1                  |
|                         |                   | - Minne            |
|                         | 18                | 16                 |

# Voice

00

## FOUR-YEAR COURSE LEADING TO THE DEGREE OF B. M.

| First Year                                    | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|
| Voice.  | . 1               | 1                  |
| Piano   |                   | 1                  |
| Theory I                                      |                   | 4                  |
| Humanities                                    |                   | 3                  |
| Choir.  | 1000              | 1                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times |                   | 2                  |
| English Composition                           |                   | 3                  |
| Physical Education                            |                   | 1                  |
| American Contemporary Civilization            | . 2               | ) (# ( # V )       |
|   | -                 | -                  |
| SECOND YEAR                                   | 16                | 16                 |
|   |                   |                    |
| Voice   | . 3               | 3                  |
| Piano   |                   | 1                  |
| Theory II                                     |                   | 4                  |
| Choir   |                   | 1                  |
| Foreign Language                              |                   | 5                  |
| Physical Education                            |                   | 1                  |
| History of Music I and II.                    | . 2               | 2                  |
|   |                   |                    |
|   | 17                | 17                 |

(Students completing the two-year course may receive a diploma.)

## THIRD YEAR

| Voice                       | 3  | 3  |
|-----------------------------|----|----|
| Piano or Organ              | 1  | 1  |
| Counterpoint                | 2  | 2  |
| Musical Form and Analysis   | 2  | 2  |
| History of Music III and IV | 2  | 2  |
| Foreign Language            | 3  | 3  |
| Choir                       | 1  | 1  |
| General Science             | 3  | 3  |
|                             | -  | -  |
|                             | 17 | 17 |

(It is possible to complete the requirements for a diploma in Piano or Organ this year.)

| Fourth Year                      | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|----------------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| Voice                            | . 5               | 5                  |
| Piano or Organ                   | . 1               | 1                  |
| Advanced Counterpoint            | . 2               |                    |
| Fugue                            |                   | 2                  |
| Instrumentation                  | . 2               | 2                  |
| Student Teaching                 | . 2               | 2                  |
| Choral and Orchestral Conducting | . 1               | 1                  |
| Academic Electives               | . 2               | 2                  |
| Bible or Philosophy              |                   | 2                  |
| Choir                            | . 1               | 1                  |
|                                  | -                 | -                  |
|                                  | 16                | 18                 |

# Violin or 'Cello

610

This is the required course for any orchestral instrument accepted as a major.

## FOUR-YEAR COURSE LEADING TO THE DEGREE OF B. M.

| First Year   | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|--|-------------------|--------------------|
| Violin   | 3                 | 3                  |
| Piano  | 1                 | 1                  |
| Theory I   | 4                 | 4                  |
| Orchestra  | 1                 | 1                  |
| English Composition  | 3                 | 3                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times              |                   | 2                  |
| Physical Education   | 1                 | 1                  |
| American Contemporary Civilization                         | 2                 |                    |
| Humanities   | 3                 | 3                  |
|  | -                 | -                  |
|  | 18                | 18                 |
| SECOND YEAR  |                   |                    |
| Violin   | 3                 | 3                  |
| Piano  | 1                 | 1                  |
| Theory II  | 4                 | 4                  |
| History of Music I and II                                  | 2                 | 2                  |
| Orchestra  |                   | 1                  |
| Introduction to English Literature                         | 3                 | 3                  |
| Physical Education   |                   | 1                  |
| General Science  | 3                 | 3                  |
|  | -                 | -                  |
|  | 18                | 18                 |
| (Students completing the two-year course may receive a dip | loma )            |                    |
| (Students completing the two-year course may receive a dip | ioilia.)          |                    |
| THIRD YEAR   |                   |                    |
|  | 5                 |                    |
| Violin<br>Secondary Applied Music                          |                   | 5                  |
|  |                   | 170                |
| Counterpoint   |                   | 2 2                |
| Musical Form and Analysis                                  |                   | 2                  |
| History of Music III and IV                                |                   | 5                  |
| Foreign Language (French or German) Orchestra              | 1                 | 1                  |
| Ofchestra  | 1                 | 1                  |
|  | 18                | 10                 |
| 7  | 18                | 18                 |

(It is possible to complete the requirements for a diploma in Piano this year.)

| Fourth Year             | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|-------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| Violin                  | . 5               | 5                  |
| Secondary Applied Music | . 1               | 1                  |
| Advanced Counterpoint   | 2                 |                    |
| Fugue                   | 99                | 2                  |
| Instrumentation         | . 2               | 2                  |
| Ensemble                | 1                 | 1                  |
| Student Teaching        | 2                 | 2                  |
| Academic Electives.     |                   | 2                  |
| Bible or Philosophy     |                   |                    |
| Orchestra               |                   | 1                  |
|                         | ****              | _                  |
|                         | 16                | 16                 |

# Public School Music

# 010

# FOUR-YEAR COURSE LEADING TO THE DEGREE OF B. M.

| First Year  | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|
| Piano   |                   | 3                  |
| Voice or Orchestral Instrument                              | 100               | 1                  |
| Theory I  |                   | 4                  |
| Choir or Orchestra  |                   | 1                  |
| English Composition   |                   | 3                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times               |                   | 2                  |
| Physical Education  |                   | 1                  |
| American Contemporary Civilization                          |                   | 2                  |
| Humanities  | . 3               | 3                  |
|   | 18                | 18                 |
| SECOND YEAR   | 10                | 10                 |
| Applied Music   | . 3               | 3                  |
| Theory II   |                   | 4                  |
| History of Music I and II                                   | . 2               | 2                  |
| Choir or Orchestra  |                   | 1                  |
| Music Methods I and II.                                     |                   | 1                  |
| Practice Teaching, Primary Grades                           |                   | 1 3                |
| General Science. Physical Education.                        |                   | 1                  |
| Physical Education.   | . 1               |                    |
|   | 16                | 16                 |
| (Students completing the two-year course may receive a cert | ificate.)         |                    |
| THIRD YEAR  |                   |                    |
| Applied Music   |                   | 4                  |
| Music Methods III   |                   | 1                  |
| Practice Teaching, Primary and Intermediate Grades          |                   | 1                  |
| History of Music III and IV                                 |                   | 2                  |
| Educational Psychology                                      |                   | 3                  |
| Bible or Philosophy   |                   | 2                  |
| History and Principles of American Education                |                   | **                 |
| Choir or Orchestra  |                   | 1                  |
| Academic Electives  | . 3               | 3                  |
|   | 16                | 18                 |

(It is possible to complete the requirements for a diploma in Piano or Voice this year.)

| FOURTH YEAR  Applied Music  Music Methods IV  Practice Teaching, Junior and Senior High Schools  Class Instruction, Orchestral Instruments  Choral and Orchestral Conducting  Instrumentation  Methods of Teaching in High Schools  Principles of Secondary Education  Choir or Orchestra  Academic Electives | 2<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>2<br> | Second<br>Semester 3 1 1 2 3 1 3 |
|---|---------------------------|----------------------------------|
|   | 16                        | 15                               |
| BACHELOR OF ARTS DEGREE WITH MUSIC Rudiments of Music (First semester no credit) Theory I. Theory II. History of Music I and II. History of Music III and IV. Musical Form and Analysis. Applied Music (Choir or orchestra not included).   |                           | 8<br>8<br>4                      |
| A public recital of same requirements as for a diploma.  Must have minimum of four semester hours ensemble cred   | it.                       |                                  |
| PACHELOD OF ARTS DECREE WITH MUSIC  | MINOR                     |                                  |

#### BACHELOR OF ARTS DEGREE WITH MUSIC MINOR

| Rudiments of Music (First semester no credit)   |    |
|---|----|
| Theory I  | 8  |
| Theory II                                       | 8  |
| Musical Form and Analysis                       | 4  |
| History of Music III or IV                      | 2  |
| Applied Music (Choir or orchestra not included) | 6  |
|   |    |
|   | 28 |

Must have minimum of two semester hours ensemble credit.

# Art

## 610

The Art Department of Lindenwood College offers many opportunities both to students specializing in Art and to those enrolled in other departments. The College library contains books on Art that are used for reference reading in connection with the various courses offered. An excellent lantern and numerous slides are used in illustrated lectures. Moreover, students have the advantage afforded by visits to the St. Louis Museum of Fine Arts and other art galleries of St. Louis, where the works of both American and foreign artists are exhibited. All students in the Art Department are required to visit the Museum of Fine Arts and other art exhibitions in St. Louis.

All work done in the Art Department must remain in the studio until the close of the college year, unless special permission for its removal is granted by the head of the department.

The course in the Department of Art may be used toward the degree of Bachelor of Arts when the work for the certificate in this course has been completed. If desired, a major or a minor in Art may be obtained.

Since no student is qualified to enter upon specialized training until she has given evidence of satisfactory preparation in the basic subjects of art, the courses outlined on the following pages are planned in accordance with this.

The History of Art courses are planned to be of cultural value both to the student who intends to be a professional artist, and to the student who merely wishes to increase her enjoyment and understanding of art. These courses treat the periods, styles, and great personalities in painting, sculpture and architecture. They are amply illustrated with lantern slides and reproductions. Full credit may be received for each semester. Under the heading "Individual Instruction" students may receive one hour's credit for attendance with minimum requirements in preparation and tests.

KAPPA PI-Honorary Art Fraternity.

# REQUIREMENTS FOR CERTIFICATES

CERTIFICATE IN ART—A certificate will be granted to a regularly enrolled student who completed a two-year course in one of the following branches of Art:

Public School Art
Costume Design
Interior Decoration
Commercial and Industrial Art.

#### I. HISTORY AND APPRECIATION OF ART

#### I 13b. ART APPRECIATION

An elementary survey course, illustrated with lantern slides, and dealing with the periods, styles, and great personalities in painting, sculpture, architecture, and the minor arts. The course is cultural in character. Intended primarily for students not majoring in art.

Time: One lecture per week.

Credit: One hour

## II 5a, 5b. HISTORY AND APPRECIATION OF ART

A critical and historical survey of painting, sculpture, and architecture from the beginning of art in prehistoric times to art expression of the present day. It includes an analysis of the aesthetic qualities of the arts of Egypt, the Mesopotamian Valley, Greece and Rome, Christian art, the Renaissance in Italy, Spain, and Northern Europe, followed by a study of Baroque, Rococo, and Modern art. Great masters as Leonardo, Michelangelo, Raphael, Rubens, Rembrandt, and Picasso are discussed in detail.

Time: Two lectures each week.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### III 26a. MODERN ART

Prerequisite: 5a, 5b.

The history and criticism of art and architecture from 1800 to the present in Europe and America. Analysis of the art movements known as neoclassicism, romanticism, realism, impressionism, post-impressionism, cubism, surrealism, the development of the skyscraper, and the "International" or "Functional" style in architecture.

Time: Two lectures each week.

Credit: Two hours.

#### III 27b. RENAISSANCE ART

Prerequisite: 5a, 5b.

A critical and historical survey of painting, sculpture, and architecture in Italy, Spain, and Northern Europe from 1400 to 1800, with particular

emphasis on the great artists of the period as, Masaccio, Michelangelo, Leonardo, Raphael, Titian, Dürer, Rubens, El Greco, and Rembrandt.

Time: Two lectures each week.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II. STUDIO COURSES

#### I 13a. Introduction to Art

An introductory course emphasizing art principles.

Lectures designed to develop understanding and appreciation of art structure as found in drawing, painting, architecture, and the minor arts. Practical studio problems in a variety of media to give the student experience in creative work in drawing, color, and design.

Required of Home Economics and Art Majors.

Time: One lecture and two two-hour studio periods each week,

Credit: Three hours.

#### I 6b. COSTUME DESIGN

Prerequisite: Art 13a.

Selection of costume. Study of line and color.

Practice in design.

Time: One lecture and one two-hour laboratory period each week.

Credit: Two hours.

# I 9. DRAWING I, II

Study of art structure; principles of drawing and theory of pictorial design. Projects in line, form, tone, and color. Subject matter is varied, including a study of both abstractions and expressive representation. Mediums used are charcoal, pencil, pen and ink, and pastel.

Time: Drawing I, two two-hour studio periods each week and one

lecture.

Credit: Three hours.

Drawing II, two two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II 24. DRAWING III, IV

A continuation of Drawing I and II.

Time: Two two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### II 37b. ADVANCED COSTUME DESIGN

Prerequisites: Art 13a and 6b.

Study and design of costume for various types; adaptation of historic styles to modern dress. Some emphasis on fashion illustration.

Time: One lecture and one two-hour laboratory period a week.

Credit: Two hours.

#### I or II 4b. DESIGN

Elementary course in design. Problems in block-printing, stenciling, silk-screen, metalwork and other crafts. Recommended for students not majoring in art as well as for art majors.

Time: Two two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II 12b. METHODS OF TEACHING ART

Prerequisites: Art 13a and 9.

Study of objectives, content, courses of study, and methods of instruction for the elementary school.

Time: One lecture and one two-hour studio period each week.

Credit: Two hours.

Students working toward the Missouri two-year Elementary Certificate are not required to take the prerequisites.

### II 11a. INTERIOR DESIGN

Prerequisite: Art 13a.

Planning of interiors for homes and public buildings, including a study of architectural backgrounds, furnishings, and accessories. Development of creative ability in handling modern problems, based upon a study of accepted historic styles and contemporary functional design. Rendering of plans, elevations, details, and perspective drawings in line, wash, and color.

Time: One lecture and two two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Three hours.

#### II 17. COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL DESIGN

Prerequisites: Art 13a and 9.

Problems in layout for magazines, newspapers, and booklets, and drawings in full color for packages, posters, book jackets, display, etc. Consideration of principles of advertising and present trends in publicity. Experience in handling media used for reproduction as wash, charcoal, pen and ink, chalkboard, and flat color.

Also problems in the design of articles for mass production, such as furnishings and utensils, considering the interrelation of materials, function, and appearance.

Time: One lecture and two two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Three hours.

#### II 15. PAINTING

Prerequisites: Art 13a and 9.

Study of pictorial design, color theory, and technical methods of the past and present. Subject matter is unrestricted including still-life, abstractions, interiors, landscapes, draped figure, and portrait. Mediums: oil and water-color.

Time: Two two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### III 10. ADVANCED DESIGN

Prerequisites: Art 4b and 17.

Advanced problems in various fields of design, including advertising and industrial design, interior design, and crafts.

Time: Two two-hour studio periods each week, one lecture.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

(Not offered in 1948-49).

#### III 23. ADVANCED DRAWING

Head and figure drawing. This work may be related to lithography or other print media, or advanced painting. A variety of drawing media are used.

Time: Two two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

### III 21a, 21b. METHODS OF TEACHING ART II

Prerequisites: Art 13a, b or 5a and 5b, 9, 12a, b.

Designed for those who wish to teach or supervise art in the secondary school.

Time: One lecture and one two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

### III 19a, 19b. ADVANCED PAINTING

Prerequisite: Art 15.

Continuation of Painting, including more advanced problems in figure painting from the model.

Time: Two two-hour studio periods each week.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### I, II, III 16a, 16b. INDIVIDUAL INSTRUCTION

Under this heading any student in the college may register in the Department for Individual Instruction and elect to follow any course of study being offered or attend any of the scheduled lectures (upon permission of the instructor).

Time: Arranged.

Credit: One or two hours.

#### III STAGE DESIGN

Refer to Speech and Dramatics 13.

# FOUR YEAR PLAN LEADING TO B. A.

| FIRST YEAR                                    | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|
|   |                   |                    |
| English Composition                           |                   | 3                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times |                   | 2                  |
| Physical Education                            |                   | 1                  |
| Humanities                                    |                   | 3                  |
| Introduction to Art                           |                   |                    |
| Drawing I, II                                 | 100               | 2 2                |
| Design  | 3                 | -                  |
| *Electives                                    |                   | 3                  |
|   | 16                | 16                 |
|   | 10                | 10                 |
| SECOND YEAR                                   |                   |                    |
| Introduction to English Literature            | 3                 | 3                  |
| General Biology                               |                   | 3                  |
| Physical Education                            |                   | 1                  |
| Introduction to Psychology                    | 3                 |                    |
| Introduction to Sociology                     | 4.7               | 3                  |
| History and Appreciation of Art               | 2                 | 2                  |
| Drawing III, IV                               |                   | 2                  |
| *Electives                                    | 2                 | 2                  |
|   | _                 | _                  |
|   | 16                | 16                 |
| THIRD YEAR                                    |                   |                    |
| Painting.                                     | 2                 | 2                  |
| Commercial and Industrial Design              |                   | 3                  |
| Interior Design                               |                   |                    |
| Home Furnishings                              |                   | 2                  |
| Modern Art                                    |                   |                    |
| Renaissance Art                               |                   | 2                  |
| *Electives                                    |                   | 7                  |
| Dicetres                                      |                   |                    |
|   | 16                | 16                 |
|   |                   |                    |
| FOURTH YEAR                                   |                   |                    |
| Advanced Painting                             | 2                 | 2                  |
| Advanced Drawing                              | 2                 | 2                  |
| Advanced Design                               | 3                 | 3                  |
| *Electives                                    | g                 | 9                  |
|   | -                 | _                  |
|   | 16                | 16                 |

<sup>\*</sup>Should include courses to meet general requirements in language and science as well as work in major and minor fields.

# PUBLIC SCHOOL ART

| FUBLIC SCHOOL ART  | First    | Second   |
|--|----------|----------|
| FIRST YEAR   | Semester | Semester |
|  | 3        |          |
| English Composition  |          | 3        |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times  | **       | 2        |
| Physical Education   | 1        | 1        |
| Humanities   | 3        | 3        |
| Fundamentals of Speech   | 2        | 2        |
| Introduction to Art  | 3        |          |
| Drawing I, II  | 3        | 2        |
| Costume Design   |          | 2        |
| Design   |          | 2        |
|  |          | _        |
|  | 15       | 17       |
| SECOND YEAR  |          |          |
| American History   | 3        | 3        |
| General Biology  | 3        | 3        |
| Physical Education   | 1        | 1        |
|  |          | 3        |
| Introduction to Psychology   |          |          |
| History and Principles of American Education   | 3        | - 12     |
| History and Appreciation of Art  | 2        | 2        |
| Drawing III, IV  | 2        | 2        |
| Methods of Teaching Art  |          | 2        |
| Electives  | 2        | 9.4      |
|  | -        | -        |
|  | 16       | 16       |
| THIRD YEAR   |          |          |
| Methods of Teaching Art II   | 2        | 2        |
| Painting   | 2        | 2        |
| Advanced Drawing   | 2        | 2        |
| Introduction to Sociology  | 3        |          |
| Educational Psychology   | 3        |          |
| Mental Hygiene   |          | 3        |
| Introduction to English Literature   | 3        | 3        |
|  | 1        | 4        |
| Electives  | 1        | 4        |
|  | 4.6      |          |
| The state of the s | 16       | 16       |
| FOURTH YEAR  |          |          |
| Advanced Design  | 3        | 3        |
| Advanced Painting  | 2        | 2        |
| Modern Art,  | 2        | **       |
| Renaissance Art  |          | 2        |
| Principles of Secondary Education  | 3        | **       |
| Bible or Philosophy  |          | 3        |
| Applied Psychology   |          | 3        |
| Technique and Practice Teaching  | 5        |          |
| Electives  | 2        | 4        |
|  | _        | -        |
|  | 17       | 17       |
|  | 1.7      | 47       |

## INTERIOR DECORATION

| INTERIOR DECORATION                           |                   |                    |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|
| FIRST YEAR                                    | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
| English Composition                           | 3                 | 3                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times |                   | 2                  |
| Humanities                                    |                   | 3                  |
| Physical Education                            |                   | 1                  |
| Fundamentals of Speech                        |                   | 2                  |
| Introduction to Art                           |                   | :                  |
| Drawing I, II                                 |                   | 2 2                |
| Electives                                     | 14.4              |                    |
|   | 15                | 15                 |
|   | 10                | 10                 |
|   |                   |                    |
| SECOND YEAR                                   |                   |                    |
|   | -                 |                    |
| Introduction to English Literature            |                   | 3                  |
| General Biology                               |                   | 3                  |
| Introduction to Psychology                    |                   | i                  |
| History and Appreciation of Art               | 2                 | 2                  |
| Design  |                   | 2                  |
| Drawing III, IV                               | 2                 | 2                  |
| Interior Design                               | 3                 |                    |
| Home Furnishing                               | **                | 2                  |
| Electives                                     | * *               | 2                  |
|   | _                 |                    |
|   | 17                | 17                 |
|   |                   |                    |
|   |                   |                    |
| COSTUME DESIGN                                |                   |                    |
|   |                   |                    |
|   |                   |                    |
| FIRST YEAR                                    |                   |                    |
| Introduction to Art                           | 3                 |                    |
| Drawing I and II.                             | 3                 | 2                  |
| Costume Design                                |                   | 2                  |
| Clothing and Textiles I                       | 3                 | 3                  |
| English Composition                           | 3                 | 3                  |
| Humanities                                    | 3                 | 3                  |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times |                   | 2                  |
| American Contemporary Civilization            |                   | 2                  |
| Physical Education                            | 1                 | 1                  |
|   | 16                | 10                 |
|   | 16                | 18                 |

16

16

| BINDER WOOD COLLEGE                           |          | 110      |
|---|----------|----------|
|   | First    | Second   |
| SECOND YEAR                                   | Semester | Semester |
| Advanced Costume Design                       |          | 2        |
| History and Appreciation of Art               | . 2      | 2        |
| Drawing III and IV                            | . 2      | 2        |
| Costume History                               | . 3      |          |
| Clothing Design and Construction              | . 3      | 3        |
| Introduction to English Literature            | . 3      | 3        |
| Introduction to Psychology                    |          | 3        |
| Physical Education                            | . 1      | 1        |
| Electives                                     | . 2      |          |
|   | -        | -        |
|   | 16       | 16       |
| COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL DES                 | SIGN     |          |
| First Year                                    |          |          |
|   |          |          |
| English Composition                           |          | 3        |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times |          | 2        |
| Humanities                                    |          | 3        |
| Physical Education                            |          | 1        |
| General Biology                               |          | 3        |
| Introduction to Art                           |          | - 1      |
| Drawing I, II                                 |          | 2        |
| Design  |          | 2        |

### SECOND YEAR

| Introduction to English Literature | 3   | 3     |
|------------------------------------|-----|-------|
| Introduction to Economics          | 3   |       |
| Introduction to Psychology         | 4.1 | 3     |
| Physical Education                 | - 1 | 1     |
| History and Appreciation of Art    | 2   | 2     |
| Drawing III, IV                    | 2   | 2     |
| Commercial and Industrial design   | 3   | 3     |
| Interior Design                    | 3   |       |
| Electives                          |     | 2-3   |
|                                    | 17  | 16-17 |

## Speech and Dramatics

010

The work offered in the Department of Speech and Dramatics is both practical and broadly cultural. A thorough foundation is given to those who desire to specialize in speech, and varied opportunities are afforded to students enrolled in other departments. Students specializing in English have the opportunity to correlate the study of English with the study of the technique of oral expression. The courses taken in this department may be counted toward the degree of Bachelor of Arts when the work for the certificate in this course has been completed.

THE LITTLE THEATRE—The Little Theatre offers unusual advantages for students in Dramatic Art. The stage is fully equipped with the most recent facilities, and on it are presented several performances throughout the year by members of the Department. Attached to the theatre proper is a workshop where all the scenery is built and painted for these productions. To participate in these projects and share in their presentation before a real audience is a genuine opportunity.

RADIO—Regular radio programs are produced in professional studios. Fifteen of these programs are being seen over television programs of KSD in 1947-48 and other programs are carried to a great number of listeners over KFUO. These programs give the students practice in professional broadcasting and afford an opportunity to put into practice the theories of radio speech taught in the class room.

RECITALS—Frequent class recitals are given in which the students receive practice in platform work. Public recitals are also given, so that the students gain self-confidence and enjoy the experience of actually entertaining large audiences. Attendance at these recitals is required of all students enrolled in the Speech Department according to the regulations of the department.

REQUIREMENTS FOR CERTIFICATE IN SPEECH AND DRAMATICS—A certificate will be granted to a student who completes satisfactorily two years' study in this department and the course prescribed in the following schedule. She must make at least two creditable public appearances, one of which is a recital in her Sophomore year.

ALPHA PSI OMEGA—The honorary organization of the Speech and Dramatics department is a chapter of the national dramatic fraternity, Alpha Psi Omega. The purpose of this organization is to create and maintain interest in the drama and to centralize and make more efficient all dramatic activity on the college campus. Some of the more recent plays sponsored by this club have been "Little Women," "Letters to Lucerne," "You Can't Take it with You," "The Royal Family," "Moor Born," "Double Door," "The Piper," "Our Town," "Candida," "Ladies in Retirement," and "Heart of a City."

#### DESCRIPTION OF COURSES

#### I 22a, 22b ESSENTIALS OF SPEECH

This course is planned for those students who need the basic principles of good speaking and cannot devote more time than for a two hour course. Each individual will make a recording of her speech at the beginning and end of the semester. Attention will be given to individual problems in the use of the body and the voice. Elementary voice science is studied as a background for the improvement of voice quality and articulation. The principles are applied in classroom projects.

Credit: Two hours.

#### I 4. INTERPRETATION OF LITERATURE

An elementary course in the principles of oral interpretation which includes methods of understanding and appreciating literature as well as the techniques of presenting literature to an audience. An effort is made to have each student present as many forms of literature as possible for the class.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### I 11. STAGECRAFT

An elementary course in the design and construction of stage settings, and the general use of lights in the theatre. This class constructs all the settings used in the Little Theatre productions at Lindenwood College.

Time: Three laboratory periods of two hours each, per week.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### I 21. FUNDAMENTALS OF SPEECH

A full course in the basic principles of speech including the use of voice, control of body, coordination of thought and apparatus in a speaking situation so as to communicate more effectively through speech.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### I or II 3a, 3b. PUBLIC SPEAKING

Prerequisite: Fundamentals of Speech or Essentials of Speech.

This course is planned to give emphasis to the forms of public speaking needed by women in modern society both on the campus and in their communi-

ties. Special attention is given to persuasive speeches since this type is used so frequently. The principles governing the composition of public speeches are studied and supervised practice is given in the most useful forms. The radio speeches are recorded in order that the student may hear her speech as others hear it.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II 23a, 23b. VOICE AND DICTION

Prerequisite: Speech 21 or 22a or b.

A course designed to establish good habits of speech through (1) the analysis of each individual's voice articulation: (2) Class instruction in the development and care of the speaking voice: (3) drills for careful articulation: (4) the study of posture in connection with good breathing habits as related to speech: (5) The application and adaptation of this instruction to individual abilities and needs.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II 2a. STORY-TELLING

This course must be taken concurrently with Child Literature.

Emphasis is placed upon actual practice in preparing and telling stories studied in Child Literature. The course will include discussions of the purposes of story-telling, its value in education, and the selection and adaptation of materials.

Credit: One hour.

#### II 5. DRAMATIC ART

A general course covering selection of plays, casting, stage business, characterization, directing, and make-up, planned to serve those who go into institutions and communities where a knowledge of producing plays is essential.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### II or III 24b. Persuasion and Discussion

Many of the policies that govern us in our political, economic and social affairs are established through discussion. This course is planned to aid in more effective thinking and speaking on controversial issues. It should also help the student to evaluate propaganda. Opportunities will be offered for practice in general discussions, panels, symposia and forums. This course is recommended especially for majors in Sociology, History, Political Science and Economics.

Credit: Two hours.

#### II 7b. ADVANCED STORY-TELLING

Prerequisite: Story-Telling.

A laboratory course in which the student goes into a public school classroom and tells stories for children. An individual conference period is scheduled for the arrangement of the next program and evaluation of the last stories told.

Credit: One hour.

#### II 8. INTERPRETATIVE ANALYSIS

Prerequisite: Speech and Dramatics 4.

A critical study in the analysis of literature and the oral interpretation of it with emphasis on the use of the imagination and emotion.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### II 9. RADIO SPEECH

A course in radio speech techniques as applied to commercial radio problems. It is open not only to students planning to enter professional radio but also to those specializing in fields making an incidental use of radio. It is recommended for students in journalism, sociology, history, advertising, and home economics. Those entering this course must also elect Continuity Writing.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### II 10. RADIO PRODUCTION

Prerequisite: Speech and Dramatics 21.

A course designed to interest students in radio acting and broadcasting. A study in characterization and interpretation as related to radio drama. Sound effects and other production techniques are studied.

Students participate in regular broadcasts. Those entering this course must also elect Radio Writing.

Time: One two-hour laboratory period per week and two one-hour lectures.

Credit: Three hours each semester.

#### II 15. RADIO WRITING

Prerequisite: English 2.

This course is to be taken concurrently with Radio Production or Radio Speech. Radio plays, documentary scripts, and various kinds of continuity will be prepared for actual presentation on the air. There will be frequent individual conferences for the planning and criticism of each student's scripts.

Credit: One hour each semester.

#### II 16. CONTINUITY WRITING

Prerequisite: English 2.

A course to be taken in connection with Radio Speech. The basic principles of composition for oral presentation will be studied and applied in practice. There will be frequent individual conferences in which the student will receive constructive criticism of her scripts,

Credit: One hour each semester.

#### II 20. SPEECH CHOIR

Prerequisite: Speech and Dramatics 21.

Training in unison speech interpretation. Designed to develop speech abilities and to promote an understanding of speech values in different types of literature.

Credit: One-half hour each semester.

#### III 6. ADVANCED DRAMATIC ART

Prerequisite: Speech and Dramatics 5.

A course in the principles of directing and in their application as illustrated by student productions; a thorough consideration of pictorial values and group relationships on the stage; an intensive study of characterization and of acting in terms of stimulus and response; a survey of various styles and schools of acting, both past and present.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### III 12. ADVANCED RADIO TECHNIQUE

Prerequisite: Speech and Dramatics 10.

A continuation of the principles of radio technique and presentation of original scripts.

Time: Two two-hour laboratory periods each week.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### III 13. STAGE DESIGN

Prerequisite: Speech and Dramatics 11 or consent of instructor.

A study of the theories of design as exemplified in theatrical practice by scenery, lighting, and costume. The development of each is studied through the various periods of theatrical history and the artistic values of each are considered and evaluated.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### III 14. ADVANCED INTERPRETATION

Prerequisite: Speech and Dramatics 8.

An advanced course in the technique of platform reading and practice in building programmes and presenting them before an audience.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

#### III 19. HISTORY OF THE THEATRE

A survey course of the origin and development of the theatre from its inception to the present time. The main trends, principal events, and great personalities in theatrical history are studied and evaluated.

Credit: Two hours each semester.

### SUGGESTED CURRICULUM LEADING TO AN A. B. DEGREE IN SPEECH

This suggested course grants a certificate in speech on the completion of the first two years of work and an A. B. degree on the completion of the four years. This suggested curriculum suggests Dramatic Art as a major and English as a minor, but other subjects may be chosen. Those students planning to teach should arrange their courses accordingly.

| Proce Many  | First      | Second     |
|---|------------|------------|
| FIRST YEAR  | Semester 3 | Semester 3 |
| English Composition* *Foreign Language                    |            | 3 or 5     |
| Interpretation.   |            | 2          |
| Fundamentals of Speech.                                   |            | 2          |
| Private Speech  | -          | 1          |
| Physical Education  |            | 1          |
| American Contemporary Civilization                        |            |            |
| History of the Hebrews or New Testament Times             |            | 2          |
| Electives   | . 2-0      | 2-0        |
|   | -          | 100        |
|   | 16         | 16         |
| SECOND YEAR   |            |            |
| **Introduction to English Literature                      |            | 3          |
| Dramatic Art  |            | 2          |
| Interpretative Analysis                                   |            | 2          |
| Private Speech  |            | 1          |
| ***Story-Telling  | 7          |            |
| Advanced Story-Telling.                                   |            | 1          |
| Public Speaking   |            | 2          |
| Suggested Electives (Psychology, Humanities, Contemporary |            |            |
| Drama and Child Literature)                               | . 6        | 4          |
|   | -          | _          |
|   | 16         | 16         |
| (Suggestions for a major in Public Speaking elect Radio   | Speech and | d Debate.) |
|   |            |            |
| THIRD YEAR  |            |            |
| Advanced Dramatic Art                                     |            | 2          |
| Private Speech  |            | 1          |
| Bible or Philosophy                                       |            | • •        |
| History of Theatre  |            | 11         |
| Electives   | . 9        | - 11       |
|   | 16         | 16         |
| FOURTH YEAR   | 10         | - 10       |
| Advanced Interpretation                                   | . 2        | 2          |
| Stage Design  |            | 2          |
| Private Speech  |            | 1          |
| Shakespeare   |            | 3          |
| Electives   |            | 8          |
|   | -          | -          |
|   | 16         | 16         |

<sup>\*</sup>For students enrolling in second year foreign language, Stagecraft is suggested as an elective.

<sup>\*\*</sup>Survey or Masterpieces.

<sup>\*\*\*</sup>Stagecraft of Radio Production may be taken in the place of Story-Telling in the Sophomore year if so desired.

# Suggested Curriculum Leading to A. B. in English and Certificate in Speech and Dramatics

00

At the completion of the outlined course on page 150 a student may receive a Certificate in Speech and Dramatics. An A. B. degree will be granted with a major in English and a selected minor upon completion of the following suggested curriculum.

| THIRD YEAR                 | First<br>Semester | Second<br>Semester |
|----------------------------|-------------------|--------------------|
| American Literature        | . 3               | 3                  |
| Introduction to Sociology  |                   |                    |
| Creative Writing           |                   | 2                  |
| Greek Civilization         |                   |                    |
| Introduction to Psychology |                   | 3                  |
| Roman Civilization         |                   | 3                  |
| Electives                  | 6                 | 6                  |
|                            | 17                | 17                 |
| Fourth Year                |                   |                    |
| Shakespeare                | 3                 | 3                  |
| American History           | 3                 | 3                  |
| History of the Novel       | 3                 | 3                  |
| The Family                 |                   |                    |
| Electives                  |                   | 6                  |
| Bible or Philosophy        | **                | 2                  |
|                            | 17                | 17                 |

## Prizes, Honors, and Awards 1947

600

Fellowships, 1946-1947

Margaret McKinney, Baxter Springs, Kansas. Colleen Johnson, Caldwell, Kansas.

#### SCHOLARSHIP PRIZES

SIGMA IOTA CHI

(For Outstanding Ability and Traits of Character) Nancy Kern, Waterloo, Illinois.

ETA UPSILON GAMMA

(For Outstanding Ability and Traits of Character) Barbara Ann Little, West Liberty, Iowa.

FELLOWSHIP FOR GRADUATE STUDY IN SOCIOLOGY BY UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON Virginia Beazley, Salina, Kansas.

PROGRESS PRIZES IN MUSIC

Piano—Jean Shelton, Joplin, Missouri.
Voice—Grace Faucette, Bristol, Tennessee.
Violin—Mary Jo Sweeney, Overland, Missouri.
Organ—Armina Kolmer, Waterloo, Illinois.
Orchestral Instruments—Barbara Wade, Galesburg, Illinois.

ORIGINAL COMPOSITION IN MUSIC THEORY

Upperclassmen—Barbara Ann Little, West Liberty, Iowa. Underclassmen—Lucette Stumberg, Austin, Texas.

Mu PHI EPSILON PRIZE

(For Outstanding Freshman music major)
Irma McCormac, Kansas City, Missouri.

POSTER PRIZE-ART DEPARTMENT

Divided by: Jane Foust, Owensboro, Kentucky. Sally Young, Petersburg, Indiana.

SPECIAL PRIZE—ART DEPARTMENT

(For Distinguished Work in Art)
Marilyn Mangum, Greenville, Tennessee.

#### St. Louis Evening Lindenwood Club

(For Distintive work in the field of Creative Writing, for untiring and unobtrusive contributions to various campus activities, and for a general commendable attitude toward the College and the purpose of education)

Jane Morrissey, Joliet, Illinois.

#### St. Louis Afternoon Lindenwood Club

(For contributions in the field of Social Sciences) Virginia Beazley, Salina, Kansas.

#### RICHARD SPAHMER PRIZES

(For Outstanding Literary Work)

First Prize—Janet Miller, Indianapolis, Indiana.

For Contributions in the Fields of English and Social Sciences.

Second Prize-Marie Mount, Chicago, Illinois.

For Contributions in the Fields of English (Creative Writing) and French.

Third Prize—Marianne Metzger, Marceline, Missouri. For Contributions in the field of English.

#### DEPARTMENT OF BIOLOGICAL SCIENCE PRIZE

(For Outstanding Work in Biological Science) Beverly Cochran, Metropolis, Illinois.

#### SOCIAL SCIENCE PRIZE

First Prize—Rosalie Cheney, Ferguson, Missouri. Honorable Mention—Nancy Kern, Waterloo, Illinois.

#### FRESHMAN BIBLE MEMORY CONTEST

First Award—Joan Miller, Kansas City, Missouri. Second Award—Barbara Lloyd, Mitchell, South Dakota. Third Award—Charlotte Nolan, Harlan, Kentucky. Fourth Award—Amelia Hooks, Itasca, Texas.

#### SIGMA TAU DELTA PRIZES

First Prize—Marianne Metzger, Marceline, Missouri.
Second Prize—Elise Rannells, Dexter, Missouri.
Third Prize—Lorraine Peck, Troy, Ohio.
First Honorable Mention—Denyse Stigler, Stigler, Oklahoma.

Joan Hierholzer, San Antonio, Texas.
Second Honorable Mention—Emily Heine, Hooper, Nebraska.

BETA PI THETA—Freshman French Prize

Dorothy Walker, Grand Island, Nebraska.

#### NELLY DON COSTUME DESIGN PRIZES

Awarded by Mrs. James Reed of the Donnelly Garment Company, Kansas City, Missouri.

#### Nelly Don Completed Dress Prizes

#### First Year Class-

First Prize—Marilyn Mathis, Cotton Plant, Arkansas. Second Prize—Betty Casey, Potosi, Missouri. Third Prize—Louise Lewis, North Kansas City, Missouri. Honorable Mention—Betty Hardy, Texarkana, Texas.

#### Advanced Class-

First Prize—Margaret Burton, Wichita, Kansas. Second Prize—Billie McDonald, Neligh, Nebraska. Third Prize—Carolyn Mertz, Marion, Illinois. Honorable Mention—Dolores Thomas, Centralia, Illinois.

#### Nelly Don Prizes for Costume Design

First Year Class—(Sketches and Toiles)
First Prize—Amelia Hooks, Itasca, Texas.
Second Prize—Essilee Playter, Mexico, Missouri.
Third Prize—Jean Richter, Des Moines, Iowa.
Honorable Mention—Marilyn Mathis, Cotton Plant, Arkansas.

#### Advanced Class-(Sketches and Toiles)

First Prize—Betty Pacatte, Fulton, Missouri. Second Prize—Margaret Burton, Wichita, Kansas. Third Prize—Nell Province, Paducah, Kentucky. Honorable Mention—Carolyn Mertz, Marion, Illinois.

### Special Prizes on Sketches

Diana Lee DeRusha, Highwood, Illinois.

#### AWARDS

#### Pi Gamma Mu Award

First Award—Rosalie Cheney, Ferguson, Missouri. Honorable Mention—Nancy Kern, Waterloo, Illinois.

#### GREGG SHORTHAND EXPERT AWARD

(Awarded to students passing the 140 words per minute test)
Frances Bauer, Webster Groves, Missouri.
Mary Jo Callaway, Monett, Missouri.

#### SPECIAL MERIT AWARDS

Conferred by the National Education Association.
Janice Lowe, Paola, Kansas.
Marguerite Little, West Liberty, Iowa.
Burnice Ross, Portland, Oregon.

#### PRESS CLUB AWARD

(For the Best Piece of Writing by Students in Lindenwood Publications) Mary Jane Horton, Kansas City, Missouri.

#### HONORS

President, College Student Association—Jean Sebastian, Cuba, Missouri. Editors of Linden Leaves for 1947-1948—

Editor-in-Chief—Janet Brown, Ferguson, Missouri.
Advertising Manager—Coy Payne, Council Bluffs, Iowa.
Business Manager—Esther Parker, St. Charles, Missouri.
Literary Editor—Jane Morrisey, Joliet, Illinois.
Art Editor—Jane Foust, Owensboro, Kentucky.
Organization Manager—Audrey Mount, Chicago, Illinois.

Officers of the Student Christian Association, 1947-1948—
President—Audrey Mount, Chicago, Illinois.
Vice-President—Jane Morrisey, Joilet, Illinois.
Secretary—Joyce Heldt, Evansville, Indiana.
Treasurer—Emily Heine, Hooper, Nebraska.

## Degrees, Diplomas, and Certificates

June, 1947

019

BACHELOR OF MUSIC Johnson, D. Colleen

#### BACHELOR OF SCIENCE

HUNTER, BETTY L.
LOWE, JANICE GWYNNE
LUMPKINS, BONNIE GEE
LYNN, ANNA LOUISE
RIEDEL, SHIRLEY A.
ROSS, BURNICE MAY
WAYE, RUTH

#### BACHELOR OF ARTS

Bass, Erle Dean
Beazley, Virginia Elizabeth
Brown, Laura Jo-An
Dron, Rosemary
Foreman, Jacolyn
Hachtmeyer, Lois Elizabeth
Hardy, Betty
Hawkins, Betty Lou
Hedrick, Eleanor Anne
Horvath, Helen Elizabeth
Kendall, Margaret Ann
Kinkade, Margaret
Liebermann, Joann

LITTLE, JULIA MARGUERITE
LONG, KELTAH COFER
MCGRAW, ELIZABETH LOUISE
MCKINNEY, MARGARET
MANGUM, MARILYN PATTON
MARSHALL, MARGARET RUTH
\*MILLER, JANET
MOUNT, MARIE CHRISTINE
OAE, BETTY BELLE
PENDARVIS, MARIAN LOUISE
PLATT, MARY RUTH
SHRODER, JOANNE LOUISE
SWILLEY, MARY MEDORA

DIPLOMA IN PIANO GORDON, LOUISE

#### CERTIFICATE IN COSTUME DESIGN

Burton, Margaret M. Province, Nell H.

<sup>\*</sup>Degree to be conferred in September.

#### CERTIFICATE IN INTERIOR DECORATION

CALLAWAY, BOBBIE LOUISE Inglis, Jean Ray, Helen

#### CERTIFICATE IN ELEMENTARY EDUCATION

CARNEY, DARLEAN FODNESS, MARJORIE E.

#### CERTIFICATE IN SECRETARIAL SCIENCE

BAUER, FRANCES BELLE GRIFFITHS, SHIRLEY IRENE LEDNICK, JANET MARIAN OVERAKER, JANICE STICKLER, PATSY JEAN

## CERTIFICATE IN PUBLIC SCHOOL MUSIC DEVRIES, MARY ELIZABETH

#### CERTIFICATE IN SPEECH AND DRAMATICS

Coons, Carolyn
Dron, Rosemary
Frew, Gail Kingsley
McNail, Mary Lou
Rosier, Gwendolyn J.
Stull, Patricia Louise
Williams, Joerene

#### CERTIFICATE OF ASSOCIATE IN ARTS

Brunelle, Beverley Ellen Crawford, Marjorie Ruth Creamer, Joyce Yvonne Drake, Dorothy Jean Errington, Janet Hencke, Barbara Gene Horton, Mary Jane Jargo, Donna Jean Mertz, Mary Carolyn Neubert, Mary Louise Plowman, Amelia Rindsig, Imogene Sloan, Carolyn Baber Temple, Jean Hope Tuttle, Patricia Hope Verploeg, Arlyn Joyce Wagner, Shirlee Margaret

## Board of Directors

9

Lindenwood College is under the jurisdiction of the Presbyterian Synod of Missouri. The present board of Directors with standing committees follows:

#### OFFICERS OF THE BOARD

| JAMES W. CLARKE, D. D | . President                 |
|-----------------------|-----------------------------|
| THOMAS H. COBBS       | .Vice-President and Counsel |
| JOHN T. GARRETT       | . Vice-President            |
| WILLIAM H. ARMSTRONG  | . Secretary                 |
| ARTHUR A. BLUMEYER    | . Treasurer                 |
| ETHEL B. COOK         | .Assistant Treasurer        |

#### MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

#### Class of 1943-1949

| THOMAS H. COBBS (1917)          | t. Louis   |
|---------------------------------|------------|
| ELMER B. WHITCOMB, D. D. (1937) | st. Joseph |
| R. Wesley Mellow (1943)         | Clayton    |
| RUSSELL L. DEARMONT (1943)      | St. Louis  |

#### CLASS OF 1944-1950

| ARTHUR A. BLUMEYER (1938)   | .St. Louis |
|-----------------------------|------------|
| JOHN T. GARRETT (1919)      | .St. Louis |
| WILLIAM H. ARMSTRONG (1944) |            |
| PHILIP J. HICKEY            | .St. Louis |

#### CLASS OF 1945-1951

| JAMES W. CLARKE, D. D. (1945)  | St. Louis      |
|--------------------------------|----------------|
| ARTHUR S. GOODALL (1937)       | St. Louis      |
| WALTER W. HEAD (1942)          |                |
| Howard I. Young (1942)         |                |
| HARRY T. SCHERER, D. D. (1943) | Webster Groves |
|                                |                |

| DAVID M. SKILLING (1902), Honorary MemberWebster Groves    |
|--|
| George B. Cummings (1915), Honorary MemberWebster Groves   |
| JOHN W. MACIVOR, D. D. (1916), President EmeritusSt. Louis |

#### STANDING COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

#### EXECUTIVE

James W. Clarke, D. D. Thomas H. Cobbs William H. Armstrong John T. Garrett Russell Dearmont

#### FACULTY

JAMES W. CLARKE, D. D.
ARTHUR A. BLUMEYER
ELMER B. WHITCOMB, D. D.
WALTER W. HEAD
R. WESLEY MELLOW
HARRY T. SCHERER, D. D.
RUSSELL DEARMONT

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS

JOHN T. GARRETT ARTHUR S. GOODALL R. WESLEY MELLOW

#### FINANCES

ARTHUR A. BLUMEYER
THOMAS H. COBBS
WILLIAM H. ARMSTRONG
JOHN T. GARRETT
WALTER W. HEAD

#### AUDITING

THOMAS H. COBBS ARTHUR S. GOODALL ARTHUR A. BLUMEYER HOWARD I. YOUNG

## The Administration and the Faculty

610

| FRANC L. McCluer   |
|--|
| GUY C. MOTLEY Secretary of the College and Assistant to the President A.B., William Jewell College.                            |
| ALICE E. GIPSON  |
| ETHEL B. COOKBursar  |
| FLORENCE W. SCHAPER Director of Student Guidance and Personnel B.S., M.A., University of Missouri; Ph.D., New York University. |
| ROBERT C. COLSON   |
| MILDRED D. KOHLSTEDTLibrarian A.B., Northwestern University; M.A., University of Illinois.                                     |
| HORTENSE F. EGGMANN  |

- MARY E. POTTORF...... Assistant Director of Student Guidance and Personnel A.B., M.A., Ohio University.

#### THE FACULTY

- GIPSON, ALICE E., Dean, English, 1924.

  A. B., University of Idaho; Ph. D., Yale University.
- AHRENS, MARGUERITE TAINTER, Home Economics, 1946. B. S., Lindenwood College.
- ALBRECHT, GRACE G., Secretarial Science, 1943.

  A. B., Bluffton College; The Gregg College; M. C. S., Indiana University.
- BAUER, HUGO JOHN, Modern Languages, 1947.

  A. B., Elmhurst College; M. A., Northwestern University.
- Betz, Siegmund A. E., English, 1935.

  A. B., M. A., Ph. D., University of Cincinnati; Graduate work, Harvard University and University of Chicago.

BOYER, MARTHA MAY, Speech, 1946.

B. A., Maryville College, M. A., University of Wisconsin, Graduate work, Ohio State University.

BURKITT, LOIS MANNING, Public School Music, 1932.

B. M., Public School Music Diploma, Simpson Conservatory, Indianola, Iowa; Graduate work, Cosmopolitan School of Music, Chicago; MacPhail School of Music, Minneapolis; University of Wisconsin.

CLAYTON, CHARLES C., Journalism, 1940.

B. J., University of Missouri; City Editor and Literary Editor of the St. Louis Globe-Democrat.

CLEVENGER, HOMER, History and Government, 1941

B. S. in Ed., Central Missouri State Teachers College; M. A., George Peabody College for Teachers; Ph. D., University of Missouri.

DAWSON, ELIZABETH, English, 1927.

A. B., Cornell College; M. A., Columbia University; Ph. D., University of Iowa.

DAWSON, MARION LUCILE, Biological Science, 1936.

A. B., University of Wisconsin; M. S., Northwestern University; Ph. D., Cornell University.

EGELHOFF, HELEN, Riding, 1946.

FRIESS, PAUL, Organ, 1931.

F. T. C. L., F. A. G. O. Organ and Theoretical subjects with Charles Galloway and Dr. Norman Coke-Jephcott. Piano with Ottmar Moll and Rudolf Ganz. Organist and Choir-Master, Church of St. Michael and St. George, and Temple Shaare Emeth.

GARNETT, RAYMOND L., Education, 1936. Ph. D., University of Missouri.

GRAY, CAROLYN S., Chemistry, 1942.

A. B., B. S., M. A., University of Missouri.

GREGG, KATE L., English, 1924.—Professor Emeritus, 1946
A. B., Ph. D., University of Washington.

GRIFFIN, ANNA MARGARET, Home Economics, 1947.

B. S. Home Ec., University of Missouri; B. S. Vocational Home Ec., Northeast Missouri State Teachers College; M. S. in Educ., University of Missouri.

GRUNDHAUSER, J. WALTER, Biological Science, 1946.

B. S., B. A., Southeast Missouri State College, Graduate work toward doctorate, St. Louis University.

HANKINS, KATHRYN, Classical Languages and Literature, 1920.

A. B., B. S., M. A., University of Missouri; Graduate work, University of Michigan, Harvard University, University of Colorado, Columbia University; University of Minnesota.

Hume, Robert Douglas, Speech, 1947.

A. B., University of California; M.A., University of North Carolina; Graduate, Maria Ouspenskaya Studio of Dramatic Art.

ISAACS, ELIZABETH, English, 1943.

B. A., Cornell College; M. A., Columbia University; Graduate work, University of Chicago; University of Washington, Seattle, Washington.

ISIDOR, GERTRUDE, Violin and Theory, 1925.

Artist Diploma, Post Graduate Diploma with distinction, Cincinnati Conservatory of Music; Pupil of Tirindelli, Albert Stoessel, Robert Perutz, George Leighton, Edgar Stillman-Kelly; Violin and Theory, American Conservatory, Fountainebleau, France; Musicology, Marion Bauer, Cincinnati Conservatory of Music.

KAREL, LEON, Music, 1947.

B. M., M. A., Ph. D., State University of Iowa.

KARR, LOIS, Mathematics and Physics, 1921.

A. B., Simpson College; M. A., University of Wisconsin.

KOHLSTEDT, MILDRED D., Library Science, 1931.

A. B., Northwestern University; M. A., University of Illinois.

KRAUTHEIM, VIRGINIA, Physical Education, 1947.

B. S., Washington University.

LEAR, MARY E., Chemistry, 1916.

A. B., B. S., M. A., University of Missouri.

LINNEMANN, ALICE ANNA, Art, 1901; Professor Emeritus, 1941. B. L., Litt. D.

LONG, HAZEL TUTT, History, 1947.

A. A., William Woods College; B. S., M. A., University of Missouri; Harvard University; New York University; Graduate Work, University of Missouri.

LYOLENE, MADAME HELENE, Visiting Consultant in Design.

Educated in Russia, Switzerland and Germany; Taught in Columbia University, 1940; Critic, Parson School of Design, 1936-1944; Lecturer, Cooper Union, 1942-1944.

McCrory, Juliet Key, Speech, 1943.

B. S., University of Alabama; Ph. M., University of Wisconsin.

MITZIT, MARGARET S., Art. 1947.

B. S., Bradley Polytechnic Institute; M. A., Escuela Universitaria de Bellas Artes, Mexico; Chicago Art Institute.

MORRIS, RACHEL M., Psychology, 1927.

A. B., University of Illinois; M. A., Northwestern University; Graduate work, University of Chicago.

NELSON, ILSE E., Sociology, 1947.

Certificate at Cambridge University; B. S., Anderson College; M. A., Butler University; completed all requirements for Ph.D. except thesis at the University of Chicago; U. of C. Departmental Fellowship; Political Science, 1945-46; Edward Hillman Foundation Fellowship.

PARKER, ALICE, English, 1928.

B. S., M. A., University of Missouri; Honorary Fellow Graduate School, Yale University, 1937-1938; Ph. D., Yale University; Certificate in Radio Dramatic Writing, Radio Institute, NBC—Northwestern University.

PARKINSON, WILLIAM W., Bible and Philosophy, 1946.

B. A., Ohio State University, B. D., Union Theological Seminary, D. Ed., Columbia University.

REHG, MILTON F., Voice, 1946.

B. M., Eureka College, B. A., M. A., Columbia University; Pupil of Fraser Gunge and Frank LaForge; Piano with Oscar Wagner of Juilliard School of Music; student at University of Munich; operatic repertoire with Gerhard Husch of the Berlin State Opera in 1939.

Ross, Dorothy, Physical Education, 1946.

B. S., Central Missouri State College; M. A., Colorado State College.

RUGAARD, KAREN, Home Economics, 1947.

A. B., Coe College; Graduate Work, Iowa State College.

SCHAPER, FLORENCE W., Sociology and Economics, 1922.

B. S., M. A., University of Missouri; Ph. D., New York University.

SHULTZ, MARY P., Secretarial Science, 1947.

B. S. in Ed., Central Missouri State Teachers College; M. in Ed., University of Missouri; The Gregg College.

SIBLEY, AGNES, English, 1943.

B. A., M. A., University of Oklahoma; Graduate work, Columbia University.

SISK, LILLIAN, Chemistry, 1947.

B. S., Western Kentucky Teachers College; M. S., Indiana State Teachers College; Graduate Work, University of Kentucky, Indiana University.

SWINGEN, ALLEGRA, Piano, 1946.

B. M., M. M., Chicago Musical College.

TALBOT, MARY, Biological Science, 1936.

B. S., Denison University; M. A., Ohio State University; Ph. D., University of Chicago; Stone Biological Laboratory; Michigan Biological Laboratory.

TERHUNE, MARY, Modern Languages, 1926.

A. B., Western College; M. A., Columbia University; D. M. L., Middlebury College; Diploma de Suficiencia, Centro de Estudios Historicos, Madrid; Graduate work, Universite de Grenoble, France, and Buenos Aires, Argentina.

THOMAS, JOHN, Piano, 1920.

Mus. B., Mus. M., Pd. D., Cincinnati Conservatory of Music; Pupil of Theodor Bohlmann, Dr. Edgar Stillman-Kelly, Marcian Thalberg.

VER KRUZEN, MARGUERITE L., Physical Education, 1943. A. B., Barnard College; M. S., Wellesley College.

WALKER, PEARL, Voice, 1934.

A. B., University of Illinois; M. M., Chicago Musical College; M. A., Columbia University; Pupil of Herbert Witherspoon, Bernard Taylor, Conrad von Bos; European Study (1929-1933); Juilliard School of Music; Soloist at Second Presbyterian Church of St. Louis since 1934.

WATTS, ELIZABETH, Art, 1945.

A. B., Central College; M. A., University of Iowa.

WERNDLE, LILLIAN, Biological Science, 1943.

A. B., M. S., Washington University.

WINHAM, VIRGINIA LEE, Piano, 1946.

B. M., Nashville Conservatory of Music, M. N., Cincinnati Conservatory, Study with Adolph Weiser.

WURSTER, ANNA, French, 1924.

B. S., M. S., Purdue University; Diplome, Sorbonne, Paris; Certificat, Universite de L'Alliance Française, Paris; Medaille, Alliance Française; Graduate Work, Washington University, University of Chicago.

#### RESIDENCE HALLS

| HOLT, MABEL CLAIRE    | . Head Resident, Niccolls Hall |
|-----------------------|--------------------------------|
| Mottinger, Anna L     |                                |
| O'REAR, GEORGE (Mrs.) |                                |
| POTTORF, MARY E       |                                |
| WILLIAMS, LEAH MAE    |                                |

#### DEPARTMENT OF THE HEALTH CENTER

| E. J. CANTY, M. D              |
|--------------------------------|
| St. Charles, Mo.               |
| Frank J. Tainter, M. D         |
| St. Charles and St. Louis, Mo. |
| Mrs. Agretha M. Hall, R. N     |
| LAURA A. HORNBACK, R. N        |

#### DIETITIANS

| ARABELLE FOSTER, B. S., Graduate work, Missouri University Dietitian |
|--|
| LEOLA BURFORD, B. S., University of Missouri; Graduate work,         |
| University of Minnesota, Iowa State College Dietitian                |

### **BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS**

| HARRY P. ORDELHEIDE      | Superintendent |
|--------------------------|----------------|
| LABEAUME, ABBITT & UNLAN | Architects     |

#### ENROLLMENT COUNSELLORS

| B. B. Branstetter, B. S., Ph. D 1103 West Church, Marshalltown, Iov | wa  |
|---|-----|
| ALMA HICKMAN  | lo. |
| CARBY MOTLEY, A. B., M. ALiberty, M.                                | lo. |

| SECRETAR   | IAL ASSISTANTS   |
|--|--|
| Adele Kansteiner Belding   | Assistant Secretary of the College                             |
| CORA WAYE  | Assistant Bursar   |
| AGNES CAVANAGH ZEISLER   | Secretary to the Bursar  |
| YONKER, MARY E   | Secretary to the President                                     |
|  | Secretary to the Dean of the College                           |
| DOROTHY KEITHLY BARKLAGE   | Secretary to the Director of Student<br>Guidance and Personnel |
| LILLIAN SIEDHOFF   | In College Secretary's Office                                  |
|  | Secretary in the Offices of the Dean and the Registrar         |
| AMY MUTERT WAGNER CATHERINE WITTE, Assistant HOLLANDER, ANALE, Assistant | In Charge of College Post Office and<br>Bookstore              |

## Student Roster, 1947-1948

00

| ADAMS, SARAH MARGARETADAMS, SHIRLEY  | Higginsville, Missouri              |
|--|-------------------------------------|
| ADAMS, SHIRLEY AGEE, ANNE A ALLEN, BARBARA ALLEN, POLLY MAURINE ANDERSON, ANNABEL E ANDERSON, JANET ISABELLE ANDERSON, JOELLA IRENE ARBOGAST, JOAN ARMITAGE, NANCY LOU ARNOLD, PATRICIA LEE ASHINHURST, MARTHA   | Chicago, Illinois                   |
| ALLEN BARBARA  | Prestonsburg, Kentucky              |
| ALLEN, POLLY MAURINE   | Prestonsburg, Kentucky              |
| ANDERSON, ANNABEL E  | Spencer, Iowa                       |
| ANDERSON, JANET ISABELLE   | Overland Park, Kansas               |
| ADDOCAST JOAN  | Casper, Wyoming                     |
| ARMITACE NANCY LOU   | Lawrenceville Illinois              |
| ARNOLD, PATRICIA LEE   | Canton, Ohio                        |
| ASHINHURST, MARTHA   | Henrietta, Texas                    |
| ASHINHURST, MARTHA  BABER, ALICE BAILEY, FOLSTA SARA BAILEY, NANCY J BAKER, GLORIA LAVONNE BAKER, GLORIA LAVONNE BAKER, MARGHERITA LOIS BALL, RUTH ANN BALLARD, AUDREY BARNES, VIRGINIA BASSETT, BETSIE MAY BATES, ELIZABETH BATTS, ELOISE BAUER, FRANCES BELLE BEALL, JACQUELINE T BEBB, ANNA MARION BECKER, ELIZABETH BELL, JEANETTE L BELLROSE, GENOLA J BELLROSE, GENOLA J BEMIS, MARY ELLA BERRY, DOROTHY M BILLS, BARBARA SUZANNE BISHOP, MARY ELIZABETH BIVINS, BETTY BIVINS, BETTY BIVINS, BETTY BIVINS, PEGGY JANE BJORNDAHL, HELAINE BLAKEY, LINDA BLANKENBAKER, NORMA JEAN  | Manage Wilesto                      |
| BABER, ALICE.  | Kansas, Illinois<br>Edinburgh Towns |
| BAILEY NANCY I   | Boise, Idaho                        |
| BAKER, GLORIA LAVONNE  | Ottumwa, Iowa                       |
| BAKER, MARGHERITA LOIS   | Leavenworth, Kansas                 |
| BALL, RUTH ANN   | Payette, Idaho                      |
| BADNES VIDCINIA  | Oakland Nabraska                    |
| BASSETT, BETSIE MAV  | Washington, D. C.                   |
| BATES, ELIZABETH   | Omaha 11, Nebraska                  |
| BATTS, ELOISE  | East Grand Rapids, Michigan         |
| BAUER, FRANCES BELLE.  | Webster Groves, Missouri            |
| BERL ANNA MARION   | Muskogee Oklahama                   |
| BECKER ELIZABETH   | Cameron, Missouri                   |
| BELL, JEANETTE L   | Columbus, Ohio                      |
| BELLROSE, GENOLA J   | Ottawa, Illinois                    |
| BEMIS, MARY ELLA   | Cornell, Illinois                   |
| BILLS BADRADA DIANA  | Platte City Missouri                |
| BIRD, BARBARA SUZANNE  | Stafford, Kansas                    |
| BISHOP, MARY ELIZABETH   | St. Charles, Missouri               |
| BIVINS, BETTY  | Pawhuska, Oklahoma                  |
| BIVINS, PEGGY JANE   | Longview, Texas                     |
| BIAKEV LINDA   | Paris Missouri                      |
| BLANKENBAKER, NORMA JEAN   | Kirkwood, Missouri                  |
| BLOESS, SELMA  | Sedalia, Missouri                   |
| BODEMANN, JOAN   | Chicago, Illinois                   |
| BOGUE, PRISCILLA JANE.   | Britton, Oklahoma                   |
| BOSS, MARY CATHERINE   | Magnelia Arkaneae                   |
| BOYD, NANCY CAROLINE   | Minden, Louisiana                   |
| BRANDON, MARY E  | Clarksdale, Mississippi             |
| BREEN, DIANE.  | Fort Dodge, Iowa                    |
| BRIGGS, LULEIA A   | Plint, Michigan                     |
| BROWN, EDITH CLAIRE.   | Richmond Heights, Missouri          |
| BROWN, JANET PAISLEY   | Ferguson, Missouri                  |
| BRUBAKER, VIVIAN   | Huntington, Indiana                 |
| BRUNELLE, JEANNE CAROL   | Chicago, Illinois                   |
| BRUNN, NANCY   | Lawrence Kansas                     |
| BUFORD, NANCY JANE.  | Forest City, Arkansas               |
| BURBA. JANE  | Hodgenville, Kentucky               |
| BIVINS, PEGGY JANE BJORNDAHL, HELAINE. BLAKEY, LINDA BLANKENBAKER, NORMA JEAN BLOESS, SELMA BODEMANN, JOAN BOGUE, PRISCILLA JANE. BOSS, MARY CATHERINE. BOYD, ALVIN ANN BOYD, NANCY CAROLINE BRANDON, MARY E. BREEN, DIANE. BRIGGS, LOLETA A. BROWER, CAROL. BROWN, EDITH CLAIRE. BROWN, JANET PAISLEY BROWN, JANET PAISLEY BRUNALE, JEANNE CAROL. BRUNN, NANCY BRUNALE, JEANNE CAROL. BRUNN, NANCY BRYAN, JANEICE. BUFORD, NANCY JANE. BURDA, JANE. BURDA, JANE. BURTON, MARGARET BUSH, JEAN BABETTE. BUTLER, JANET ELAINE.   | Wichita, Kansas                     |
| BUSH, JEAN BABELLE   | Winston Salam North Corolleg        |
| BUILDER, JANET BUAINE  | winston-Salem, North Caronna        |
| CALLIS, JEAN   | Sedalia, Missouri                   |
| CAMPBELL, NANCY  | Galveston, Texas                    |
| CAMPBELL, SUZANNE  | Lawrenceville, Illinois             |
| CARCILL MARY BRADSHAW  | Tewisylle Arkaneae                  |
| CALLIS, JEAN. CAMPBELL, NANCY. CAMPBELL, SUZANNE. CANNON, JOYCE. CARGILL, MARY BRADSHAW. CARLSON, N. MARGARET (PEGGY). CAPPENTER, EVELYN. CARR, MOLLIE.  | Chicago, Illinois                   |
| CARPENTER, EVELYN  | Moberly, Missouri                   |
| CARR MOLLIE  | Rerbeley California                 |
| CHANGE SECOND CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR OF TH | Derkeley, Camorina                  |

| CARROLL, BARBARA JANE CARTWRIGHT, CAROL CHANDLER, SANDRA CHEHAK, SHERYL LOUISE CHENEY, ROSALEE R CHING, GAELIC L CHOISSER, JOANNE CHUN, BERTHA J CLOWE, SOPHIA JANE CLUNY, GLORIA COBLE, JO ANN COLAHAN, JANE COLLINS, JAYNE COLLINS, JAYNE COOK, MARY A. COOKE, RAMONA L COONS, CAROLYN MAE COYLE, MARTHA ANN CRAWFORD, JO CANN C |  |
|--|--|
|  | Independence Missouri  |
| CAD THE CAROL  | Ashama Tanasauri   |
| CARTWRIGHT, CAROL  | Athens, Tennessee  |
| CHANDLER, SANDRA   | . Kansas City, Missouri  |
| CHEHAK SHERVI, LOUISE  | Cedar Ranida Lows  |
| CHENEY BOSALEE B   | Forgunon Missouri  |
| CHENEY, ROSALES A  | . Ferguson, Missouri   |
| CHING, GAELIC L  | . Honolulu, T. H.  |
| CHOISSER, IOANNE   | Benton, Illinois   |
| CHUN REPTHA I  | Honoluly T H   |
| or our contra Table  | Hanna Desert   |
| CLOWE, SOPHIA JANE   | Hanover, Pennsylvania  |
| CLUNY, GLORIA  | . St. Charles, Missouri  |
| COBLE TO ANN   | Eureka, Kansas   |
| COLAHAN JANE   | Woodstook Illinote   |
| COLARAN, JANES, C.   | . Woodstock, Illinois  |
| COLDIRON, JUANITA JEAN   | . Hazard, Kentucky   |
| COLLINS, IAYNE   | . Tiller, Arkansas   |
| COOK MARY A  | Bloomfield Lowe  |
| COOR BANGAL  | Wahara Carra Maria   |
| COOKE, RAMONA L.   | . Webster Groves, Missouri   |
| COONS CAROLYN MAE.   | Sioux City, Iowa   |
| COY TOANNE   | Jackson Mississippi  |
| CONTRACTOR AND   | Con Antendary  |
| COYLE, MARTHA ANN  | . San Antonio, Texas   |
| CRAWFORD, JO ANN   | . Oklahoma City, Oklahoma  |
| CRAWFORD VIRGINIA DEANE  | Pleasant Plains Illinois   |
| CREET NANCY CITE   | Porsone Forses   |
| CREEL NANCI SUB.   | Larsons, Kansas  |
| CRON, CHARLOTTE ANN  | . Rockport, Texas  |
| CROSS, ALYCE ROBERTA.  | Scio, Ohio   |
| DANA, NANCY JEAN DARNALL, CORNELIA M DARNALL, MARILEE L. DARST, MARY LOU DAVIES, VIRGINIA DAY, MARJORY DEARING, BETTY BELL DELISLE, BETTY JEAN DEPHY, BARBARA DESMOND, RETTA DEVRIES, MARY ELIZABETH DIXON, AMIE MARGARET DORAN, NANCY KATHRYN DORRIS, ELIZABETH DORSEY, BILLIE JEAN DOWDL, PEGGY LÖUISE DOWELL, HELEN FRANCES DROHER, BETTY J DUMOND, JEANNE ELLEN DUSCH, MARTHAN   | CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE  |
| DANIA MANCOV TRAN  | Wahland Dort vin   |
| DANA, NAMEX JEAN   | . riiginand Park, Illinois   |
| DARNALL, CORNELIA M.   | . Illiopolis, Illinois   |
| DARNALL MARILEE L  | . Illiopolis, Illinois   |
| DARST MARY LOU   | Honnibal Missouri  |
| DARST, MARI LOOKE  | Tianimoat, Misgouri  |
| DAVIES, VIRGINIA   | . Spencer, Iowa  |
| DAY, MARIORY   | . Missouri Valley, Iowa  |
| DEARING BETTY BELL   | Cadet Missouri   |
| PARTICIPATE TO EXPENSE FEMALE  | Donton Miles   |
| DELISLE, BEILY JEAN  | . Fortageville, Missouri   |
| DEPUY, BARBARA   | Rockford, Michigan   |
| DESMOND RETTA  | Independence Missouri  |
| DOUBLES MARY ELIZABETH   | Dalla Tome   |
| DEVRIES, MARY EDIZABETH  | Fena, Iowa   |
| DIXON, AMIE MARGARET.  | . Sac City, Iowa   |
| DORAN NANCY KATHRYN  | Eagle, Colorado  |
| DOPPIS FI IZABETH  | Harrichurg Illinois  |
| DORRIO, BULGADE H.   | Tiatrisourg, minors  |
| DORSEY, BILLIE JEAN  | Little Rock, Arkansas  |
| DOWD, PEGGY LOUISE   | . Galveston, Texas   |
| DOWELL HELEN ERANCES   | Horse Cave Kentucky  |
| DOOLED DETENT  | Ct Torock Milesons   |
| DROHER, BELLY J  | St. Joseph, Missouri   |
| DUMOND, JEANNE ELLEN.  | . Waterloo, Iowa   |
| DUSCH, MARTHAN   | Golconda, Illinois   |
|  | The second secon |
| PORTHORP POSPMARY I  | Cr. Charles Arrange  |
| EGELHOFF, ROSEMARY   | ot, Charles Missouri   |
| EIEL, JEAN HELEN   | Osage, Iowa  |
| ELAM, SALLY ANNE   | Plainwell, Michigan  |
| THE PROPERTY OF A PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF  | New Landon Lowe  |
|  |  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE)  | To street to constitute with the   |
| EMMONS, SHIRLEY  | Lawrenceville, Illinois  |
| EMMONS, SHIRLEY. ERDMAN, BILLIE JO.  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE)<br>EMMONS, SHIRLEY<br>ERDMAN, BILLIE JO<br>ERDMAN, VIOLA IEAN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO. ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS ROSALUE ANN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO. ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W.   | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee   |
| EGELHOFF, ROSEMARY J. EIEL, JEAN HELEN. ELAM, SALLY ANNE. ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY. ERDMAN, BILLIE JO. ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN. EVANS, ROSALIE ANN. EZELL, HELEN W.  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO. ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W. FAERBER, MARY ANN   | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE   | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Jowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Jowa  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W.  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALKENHAINER, DIANE   | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE   | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Jowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Jowa<br>Norborne, Missouri   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO. ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W.  FAERBER, MARY ANN. FALKENHAINER, DIANE. FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE. FANSHIER, NANCY.  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Jowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Jowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALKE, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI BETTY A  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A.  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A. FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN   | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri<br>Oak Park, Illinois  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri<br>Oak Park, Illinois<br>Dallas, Texas   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE   | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri<br>Oak Park, Illinois<br>Dallas, Texas<br>Morley, Missouri   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A. FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE. FISH, IACQUELINE LEE.   | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Jowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Jowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri<br>Oak Park, Illinois<br>Dallas, Texas<br>Morley, Missouri   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri<br>Oak Park, Illinois<br>Dallas, Texas<br>Morley, Missouri<br>Waterlook Iowa   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FARSUORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE. FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Jowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Jowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri<br>Oak Park, Illinois<br>Dallas, Texas<br>Morley, Missouri<br>Waterlook Iowa<br>Kansas City, Missouri  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Kingman, Kansas<br>Emerson, Iowa<br>Lewisburg, Tennessee<br>St. Charles, Missouri<br>Red Oak, Iowa<br>Norborne, Missouri<br>Lake Bluff, Illinois<br>San Antonio, Texas<br>Kansas City, Missouri<br>Oak Park, Illinois<br>Dallas, Texas<br>Morley, Missouri<br>Waterlook Iowa<br>Kansas City, Missouri<br>Waterlook Iowa<br>Kansas City, Missouri   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FARSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FOEGEDING, AUDREY JEAN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FOOGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FOOGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FOOGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUME COLLEEN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FARNEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FORTUNE, COLLEEN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI BETTY A FAWLEY MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FOOGGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE COLLEEN FORTUNE COLLEEN FOUST, JANE  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FARNEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FOEGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUST, JANE FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUST, JANE FOUTCH, DONNA LOU  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FOOTUNG, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUTCH, DONNA LOU FOX JEAN ELLANDE  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A. FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FORGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUTTH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH EREEBESEN EVELVN   | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUB FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FOOGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUTCH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FOX, EAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Jowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Jowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Jowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Jowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Jowa  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FOEGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUST, JANE FOUTCH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHILLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A. FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FOOGBOING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUTCH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE FRITSCHEL, CAROLINE LOUISE   | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia Oak Park, Illinois   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A. FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FOOGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FOUST, JANE FOUTCH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE FRITSCHEL, CAROLINE LOUISE WILL RESSON PHYLLIS ANN  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia Oak Park, Illinois Defance Missouri   |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHILLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A. FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUTCH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE FRITSCHEL, CAROLINE LOUISE FULKERSON, PHYLLIS ANN   | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia Oak Park, Illinois Defiance, Missouri  |
| ELLIOTT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A. FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FOEGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FOUST, JANE FOUTCH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE FRITSCHEL, CAROLINE LOUISE FULKERSON, PHYLLIS ANN FURNISH, CAROLYN L  | Lawrenceville, Illinois Kingman, Kansas Kingman, Kansas Emerson, Iowa Lewisburg, Tennessee St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Mersouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia Oak Park, Illinois Defiance, Missouri Kansas City, Missouri  |
| FAERBER MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FOEGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUST, JANE FOUTTH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE FRITSCHEL, CAROLINE LOUISE FULKERSON, PHYLLIS ANN FURNISH, CAROLYN L   | St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia Oak Park, Illinois Defiance, Missouri Kansas City, Missouri  |
| FAERBER MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FOEGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUST, JANE FOUTTH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE FRITSCHEL, CAROLINE LOUISE FULKERSON, PHYLLIS ANN FURNISH, CAROLYN L   | St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia Oak Park, Illinois Defiance, Missouri Kansas City, Missouri  |
| FAERBER MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FLOURNOY, MARY JOAN FOEGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUST, JANE FOUTTH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE FRITSCHEL, CAROLINE LOUISE FULKERSON, PHYLLIS ANN FURNISH, CAROLYN L   | St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia Oak Park, Illinois Defiance, Missouri Kansas City, Missouri  |
| ELLIOT, ROBERTA (REVEBRIE) EMMONS, SHIRLEY ERDMAN, BILLIE JO ERDMAN, VIOLA JEAN EVANS, ROSALIE ANN EZELL, HELEN W  FAERBER, MARY ANN FALKENHAINER, DIANE FALLS, SHIRLEY JEANETTE FANSHIER, NANCY FARNSWORTH, SALLY FASCI, BETTY A. FAWLEY, MARILYN JEAN FIELDING, SALLY FINNEY, MARY SUE FISH, JACQUELINE LEE FLETCHER, MAXINE ELANOR FOEGEDING, AUDREY JEAN FORTUNE, COLLEEN FOUTCH, DONNA LOU FOX, JEAN ELIZABETH FREERKSEN, EVELYN FRIEDMAN, HELEN GERTRUDE FRITSCHEL, CAROLINE LOUISE FULKERSON, PHYLLIS ANN FURNISH, CAROLYN L  GARNER, ANNE LITTLE GARRISON, JOYCE L   | St. Charles, Missouri Red Oak, Iowa Norborne, Missouri Lake Bluff, Illinois San Antonio, Texas Kansas City, Missouri Oak Park, Illinois Dallas, Texas Morley, Missouri Waterlook Iowa Kansas City, Missouri Webb City, Missouri St. Louis, Missouri Newport, Arkansas Owensboro, Kentucky, Missouri Valley, Iowa Gashland, Missouri Marshalltown, Iowa Newport News, Virginia Oak Park, Illinois Defiance, Missouri Kansas City, Missouri  |

| GEARY, TEANNINE   | Centralia Illinois       |
|---|--------------------------|
| GEARY, JEANNINE   | Stoutland Missouri       |
| CIRSON IOAN   | Amarillo Tayas           |
| GIBSON, JOAN  | Chicago Illinola         |
| GILMER, ELIZABETH ROSE  | Chicago, Innois          |
| GILMER, ELIZABETH ROSE  | Winchester, Kentucky     |
| GLASSON, BARBARA  | Waterloo, Iowa           |
| GOAL, GENEVIEVE ELLEN   | Hinsdale, Illinois       |
| GODFREY, CORDELIA   | Ottawa, Illinois         |
| GOODMAN, DOROTHY LEE  | . Springfield, Missouri  |
| GOODWIN, MARY CAROLINE  | Indianapolis, Indiana    |
| GORDON, LOUISE  | Coleman, Texas           |
| GOW, DONNA JEANNE   | . Fairfield, Iowa        |
| GRAY, VIRGINIA  |                          |
| GREER, CAROL V  | St Louis Missouri        |
| CREV TACOURI INF TRAN   | Auburn Lowe              |
| GREY, JACQUELINE JEAN.<br>GROCE, MARGARET LEE.                      | St Charles Missaul       |
| GROSS, JEAN   | Ct Charles Missouri      |
| GROSS, JEAN.  | St. Charles, Missouri    |
| GROVE, PATRICIA JEAN  | . St. Joseph, Missouri   |
| GRUNDMAN, SUSAN   | . Pella, Iowa            |
| GULLION, ELIZABETH ANN  | St. Louis, Missouri      |
|   |                          |
| HAAS, BETTY JOY   | . Neosho, Missouri       |
| HACHTMEYER, CAROL JEAN  | . St. Charles, Missouri  |
| HADDAD, MARGARETHAIR, SHIRLEY MASON                                 | . Munford, Tennessee     |
| HAIR, SHIRLEY MASON   | . Liberty, Missouri      |
| HAKE, JOAN  | Lincoln, Illinois        |
| HALE, PEGGY WHITE   | Russellville, Tennessee  |
| HALL, DOROTHY LEE   | Centralia Illinois       |
| HALL, MARIAN  | Elint Michigan           |
| HAMLIN, PATRICIA N  | Romanarta Tomo           |
| HANSEN, JANE STUART   | Wiehite Warren           |
| HANDEN, JANE STUARI   | County Kansas            |
| HANSEN, SHERRY  | Grand Island, Nebraska   |
| HARLAN, BARBARA RAE   | Enid, Okianoma           |
| HARTZOG, HELEN Z<br>HECKMAN, ARLINE                                 | . St. Louis, Missouri    |
| HECKMAN, ARLINE   | . St. Louis, Missouri    |
| HEINE, EMILY  | Hooper, Nebraska         |
| HERZIGER, BETTY JANE<br>HEYE, JEAN                                  | Sheboygan, Wisconsin     |
| HEYE, JEAN  | St. Charles, Missouri    |
| HICKS, IANE MARIE   | Marshalltown, Iowa       |
| HICKS, VIRGINIA RUTH<br>HILLIARD, SARAH KATHRYN                     | . Chattanooga, Tennessee |
| HILLIARD, SARAH KATHRYN   | . Miami, Oklahoma        |
| HITE BETTY IO   | Centralia, Illinois      |
| HOLLAN, MARGIE R.<br>HOLT, JOYCE ELIZABETH.                         | St. Louis, Missouri      |
| HOLT TOYCE ELIZABETH  | Mt. Vernon Illinois      |
| HORSLUND, DORIA,  | Waterloo Iowa            |
| HORSTMEIER, GENEVA MAE  | Oklahoma City, Oblahoma  |
| HORTON, ALBY PLANT.   | Wahrter Crowse Misser    |
| HOUGHTON, JEAN IRENE  | Columbus Obio            |
| HUDSON, ANN   | Polestine Torse          |
| HUDSON, ANN.  | Kalestine, 1 exas        |
| HUDSON, MARY JO   | . Stanberry, Missouri    |
| HUDSON, SUSAN JANE  | . Pocahontas, Iowa       |
| HUGHES, CAROLYN   | Benton, Arkansas         |
|   |                          |
| HUNNICUTT, MARY SUE   | Rockville, Indiana       |
| HUGHES, CAROLYN. HUNNICUTT, MARY SUE HUNSUCKER, ELIZABETH           | . Dallas, Texas          |
| HUNSICUTT, MARY SUE.<br>HUNSICKER, ELIZABETH.<br>HUNTER, PALMA JEAN | . Dallas, Texas          |

#### 

JACKSON, KATHRYN LUCILLE

JACKSON, MARY BARBARA

JACOBSON, MURIEL RUTH

JOHNSON, MISSURIEL RUTH

JOHNSON, FRAE

JOHNSON, FRAE

JOHNSON, JEANNINE

JOHNSON, JOHNSON, JOHNSON

JOH

KAHRE, PAMELIA Peru, Indiana
KAWAHARA, RUTH H St. Charles, Missouri
KANE, CONSTANCE St. Paul, Minnesota
KEENAN, ROSEMARY Baxter Springs, Kansas
KEIGHLEY, ELIZABETH JEAN Gary, Indiana
KENDRICK, FRANCES LOUISE Carterville, Illinois
KENNEDY, JANET NELL Neosho, Missouri

| KENT, MARY LOU KERN, NANCY HARDY. KIMMEL, VIRGINIA. KING, DOROTHY JEAN. KIRALFY, JEAN. KISSICK, ETHEL CLARA. KISTLER, JANET KLAMET, ALICE JEAN. KLUMPP, MARY KATHERINE. KNEEN, LOTITIA JANE. KNOWLES, FLORENCE ANNE KOCH, MARIE ANNA KOEHLER, SARA GEORGE. KOLMER, ARMINA KRAUSE, SALLY.   |   |
|--|---|
| TOTAL MANON HARDY  | . Fallon, Nevada  |
|  | Waterloo Illinois   |
| REALT, INDICATE AND ALL CONTROL OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERT | Midlathian Tarra  |
| KIMMEL, VIRGINIA   | . Middothian, 1 caas  |
| KING, DOROTHY JEAN   | Midland, Texas  |
| KIRALEV TEAN   | Columbus, Georgia   |
| FISCICE ETHEL CLAPA  | Worland Wyoming   |
| RISSICK, BITTED CHARACTER TO THE CHARACT | Manhattan Vanan   |
| KISTLER, JANET   | Mannattan, Nansas   |
| KLAMET, ALICE JEAN   | Kansas City, Missouri   |
| KILIMPP MARY KATHERINE   | . Rich Hill, Missouri   |
| UNIDER I COUNTY TANK   | Mt Union Iowa   |
| KNEEN, LOTTIA JANE.  | Calanda Cadasa Calanda  |
| KNOWLES, FLORENCE ANNE   | Colorado Springs, Colorado  |
| KOCH, MARIE ANNA   | Oak Park, Illinois  |
| KOEHLER SARA GEORGE  | Aurora, Illinois  |
| FOLMED ARMINA  | Waterloo Illinois   |
| ROLLINGE, ARMITAL COLORS   | Albian Mahmala  |
| KRAUSE, SALLY  | Aibion, Nebraska  |
|  | Marin Market Cold Co. and Color Co. Co. Co.   |
| LANDBERG, MARY LOU.  | Ft. Thomas, Kentucky  |
| LADD MARCARET SARAH  | Shaker Heights, Ohio  |
| TANIDO DADDADA D   | Colvecton Toyos   |
| LAWES, BARBARA P   | AY A THE TO   |
| LECHLIETER, BETTYE   | Nashville, Tennessee  |
| LEEBY, GAYLE LAURAL  | Fargo, N. D.  |
| I FWIS FIIZABETH I FF  | Windsor, Missouri   |
| FOUND TOTTON TAILOR  | North Vonese City Missouri  |
| LEWIS, LOUISE INEZ.  | Worth Kansas City, Missouri   |
| LANDBERG, MARY LOU. LAPP, MARGARET SARAH. LAWES, BARBARA F LECHLIETER, BETTVE LEEBY, GAYLE LAURAL. LEWIS, ELIZABETH LEE LEWIS, LOUISE INEZ LIGGETT, MARY ANN LINDE, (MABEL) LOIS LITTLE BARBARA ANN LITTLETON, BETTY JACK LITTRELL, BETTY EARLE, LONG, JESSIE ANN LOO, JEAN LAI YUEN LOVE, SUZANNE   | Frankin, Tennessee  |
| LINDE, (MABEL) LOIS  | Centralia, Missouri   |
| LITTLE BARBARA ANN   | West Liberty, Missouri  |
| LITTLETON DETTY TACK   | Miami Oklahoma  |
| LITTLETON, BELLT JACK  | Ct Charles Missouri   |
| LITTRELL, BEITY EARLE,   | St. Charles, Missouri   |
| LONG, JESSIE ANN   | University City, Missouri   |
| LOO TEAN LAI VIIEN   | Honolulu, Hawaii  |
| LOUP OFFICE AND TO DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY | Novada Missouri   |
| LOVE, SUZANNE  | Ivevada, aviiosouri   |
| The Control of the Co | The property of the second  |
| McCARROLL, (HARRIETT) JOAN   | Ottumwa, Iowa   |
| MCCLUER LUCY ANN   | Cottleville, Missouri   |
| M-CODMAC IBMA  | Kanese City Missouri  |
| MCCORMAC, IRMA   | Et Worth Towns  |
| MCCORSIIN, MARIHA  | Attion Today  |
| McCRACKEN, GWENDOLYN   | Attica, Indiana   |
| McCULLOUGH, IUNE   | Webster Groves, Missouri  |
| McCUSKEV SHIRLEV IEAN  | Miami, Oklahoma   |
| MCCUTCHEON PATRICIA ANNE   | Beckley, West Virginia  |
| M-DONALD HIMP CAMILLE  | Ionlin Missouri   |
| McCARROLL, (HARRIETT) JOAN McCUER, LUCY ANN McCORMAC, IRMA McCORSTIN, MARTHA. McCRACKEN, GWENDOLYN. McCULLOUGH, JUNE. McCUSKEY, SHIRLEY JEAN. McCUTCHEON, PATRICIA ANNE McDONALD, JUNE CAMILLE. McGEHEE, PATRICIA SALLY McKAHAN, JEAN MARGARET McKIBBIN, BONNIE JEAN. McNAIL, MARY LU  | Chicago Walkers Illinois  |
| MCGEHEE, PAIRICIA SALLY  | Chicago rieniges, minois  |
| McKAHAN, JEAN MARGARET   | Wilmette, Illinois  |
| McKIBBIN, BONNIE IEAN  | Worland, Wyoming  |
| MCNAIL MARY LII  | Zeigler, Illinois   |
| AUCTIVIAN, MICHAEL SOCIALIST   |   |
| A COULT OCH THE PART OTHER   | Little Rock Arkoness  |
| MACCULLOCH, HELEN LOUISE.  | A I TIV   |
| MACE, PHYLLIS  | . Arcola, Illinois  |
| MACFARLANE, DARLENE MAE  | Sioux City, Iowa  |
| MACK, ALICE MAE  | Springfield, Illinois   |
| MACNAUGHTON DONA FAE   | Eagle Grove, Iowa   |
| MACY DIOLE TOAN  |   |
|  | Sully Iowa  |
| MACH ELOUIS JUNIO  | Sully, Iowa   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E  | Sully, Iowa<br>Springfield, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E  | Sully, Iowa<br>Springfield, Missouri<br>Bonne Terre, Missouri   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE.   | . Sully, Iowa<br>. Springfield, Missouri<br>. Bonne Terre, Missouri<br>. Beckley, West Virginia   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM GLORIA   | . Sully, Iowa<br>. Springfield, Missouri<br>. Bonne Terre, Missouri<br>. Beckley, West Virginia<br>. Greenville, Tennessee  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARGERY LOUISE  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. Lames, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX VIOLET  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK PATRICIA   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Crand Jaland Mahanaka  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARV BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA MAURER, KATHERINE ANN  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAVHALL, MARTHELLA   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA MERTEN, MARY ANNE.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERX, MERLYN. METZGER, MARIANNE.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marcelline, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERX, MERLYN. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYGER, JEAN DORIS.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZGER, MARIANNE. MEYERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYLERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILLER, BETTY JANE.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, ELERANOR.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARLIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BELBANOR. MULLER, LORINE.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILER, BOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, ELEANOR.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Et Smith Arkansas  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZ, MERLYN. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, JOANN DENISE. MILLER, FEGGY JEAN.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Mario, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZGER, MARIANNE. MEYERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, IOANN DENISE. MILLER, IOANN DENISE. MILLER, IOANN DENISE. MILLER, JOANN JEANNE.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARLIN, SUZANNE. MARY, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZ, MERLYN. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELTREE, JONNO MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELTREE, JORNOUIL.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Ft. Smith, Missouri Spencer, Iowa  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BEETTY JANE. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELL DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELL JORIS JEANNE.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa   |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARLIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAUSAK, PATRICIA. MAUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN. MARY ANNE. MERZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELTREE, JONNOUIL. MOE, JEAN.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, JOANN DENISE. MILLER, JOANN DENISE. MILLER, JOHN | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kaneas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri St. Charles, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARLIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZ, MERLYN. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MILER, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BELBANOR. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MILCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELTREE, JONQUIL. MOE, JEAN. MOEJLENKAMP, MARJORIE. MONTGOMERY, WILDA LOU.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri Sc. Charles, Missouri Sumner, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. METEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYERHOFF, JEAN DORIS. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BLETTY JANE. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELLTREE, JONQUIL. MOOE, JEAN. MOEHLENKAMP, MARJORIE. MONTGOMERY, WILDA LOU. MONTGOMERY, WILDA LOU.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kaneas St. Charles, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri Sumner, Missouri Sumner, Missouri Sumner, Missouri  |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARLIN, SUZANNE. MARX, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERZ, MERLYN. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MILER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELTREE, JONQUIL. MOE, JEAN. MOE, JEAN. MOEHLENKAMP, MARJORIE. MONTGOMERY, WILDA LOU. MOORE, DOLORES ALICE. MONTGOMERY, WILDA LOU. MOORE, MARY NELL.  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri Sumner, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Duncan, Oklahoma |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARY, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN. MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BEETTY JANE. MILLER, BEETTY JANE. MILLER, PEGGY JEAN. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELL, MOOR, JEAN. MOOR, JEAN. MOORE, DOLORES ALICE. MOORE, MARY NELL MOORE, MARY NELL  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kaneas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri Sumner, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Duncan, Oklahoma Spencer, Iowa                         |
| MADDUX, MARYLIN E. MALONE, LOIS MARIE. MALONE, SARA CATHERINE. MANGUM, GLORIA. MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER. MARLIN, SUZANNE. MARTIN, SUZANNE. MARY, VIOLET. MATUSAK, PATRICIA. MAURER, KATHERINE ANN MAYHALL, MARTHELLA. MERTEN, MARY ANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. METZGER, MARIANNE. MEYZGER, MARIANNE. MILES, JOYCE ELAINE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BETTY JANE. MILLER, BELEANOR. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILLER, ELEANOR. MILTCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE. MITCHELTREE, JONQUIL. MOE, JEAN MOEHLENKAMP, MARJORIE. MONTGOMERY, WILDA LOU MOORE, MARY NELL MOORE, MARY NELL MOORON, JEAN  | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kansas St. Charles, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri Sumner, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Duncan, Oklahoma Spencer, Iowa Lima, Ohio                            |
| McKIBBIN, BONNIE JEAN McNAIL, MARY LU  MacCULLOCH, HELEN LOUISE MACE, PHYLLIS. MACFARLANE, DARLENE MAE MACK, ALICE MAE MACK, ALICE MAE MACNAUGHTON, DONA FAE MACNAUGHTON, DONA FAE MALONE, LOISE JOAN MADDUX, MARYLIN E MALONE, LOIS MARIE MALONE, SARA CATHERINE MANGUM, GLORIA MARCELLUS, MARGERY LOUISE. MARLIN, MARY BUTLER MARTIN, SUZANNE MARTIN, SUZANNE MARY, VIOLET MATUSAK, PATRICIA MAURER, KATHERINE ANN MAYHALL, MARTHELLA MERTEN, MARY ANNE MERTEN, MARY ANNE MERZGER, MARIANNE MEYZGER, MARIANNE MEYZGER, MARIANNE MEYZGER, MARIANNE MEYZGER, MARIANNE MEYZGER, MARIANNE MEYZGER, MARIANNE MILLER, BETTY JANE MILLER, BETTY JANE MILLER, BETTY JANE MILLER, BELBANOR MILLER, BEANOR MILLER, BEANOR MILLER, PEGGY JEAN MITCHELL, DORIS JEANNE MITCHELTREE, JONQUIL MOE, JEAN MOEHLENKAMP, MARJORIE MONTGOMERY, WILDA LOU MOORE, MARY NELL MORONY, JEAN MORNIS, MARY FRANCES.   | Sully, Iowa Springfield, Missouri Bonne Terre, Missouri Beckley, West Virginia Greenville, Tennessee St. James, Missouri El Dorado, Arkansas Peoria, Illinois Upper Montclair, New Jersey Peoria, Illinois Grand Island, Nebraska Harlan, Kentucky Great Bend, Kaneas St. Charles, Missouri Marceline, Missouri Highland Park, Illinois Saginaw, Michigan Marion, Illinois Piqua, Ohio Kansas City, Missouri Ft. Smith, Arkansas Madison, Missouri Spencer, Iowa Mason City, Iowa St. Charles, Missouri Sumner, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Lemay, Missouri Duncan, Oklahoma Spencer, Iowa Lima, Ohio                              |

| CONTROL OF THE CONTRO | 25 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12  |
|--|--|
| MORRISON, JACQUELINE ANNE  | Marion, Illinois   |
| MORRISEV. TANE BARBARA   | Ioliet. Illinois   |
| MORROW VIRGINIA MARGARET   | Tyler Toras  |
| MORRISEY, JANE BARBARA<br>MORROW, VIRGINIA MARGARET<br>MOSES, ROSEMARY   | Disco Disco Astronom   |
| MOSES, ROSEMARY.   | Pine Blun, Arkansas  |
| MOSS, DOROTHY LEE  | Kansas City, Missouri  |
| MOSS, PATRICIA L   | Greensburg, Kentucky   |
| MOUNT, AUDREY ELOISE   | . Chicago Illinois   |
| MURFEY, ROSE MARIE   | Chicago Illinois   |
| MUNIFEL, ROSE MARIE,   | Cincago, Inthois   |
| Widom population   | C. T   |
| NAGEL, DORIS LEE   | St. Louis, Missouri  |
| NATHAN, CHARLOTTE ELAINE   | Norfolk, Virginia  |
| NREF, NANCY IRAN   | . Omaha, Nebraska  |
| NELSON TOYCE   | Moss Point Mississippi   |
| NELSON, JOVCÉ<br>NICHOLS, ANN<br>NICHOLS, ARMINTA JANE   | Conneil Distr. Land  |
| NICHOLS, ANN   | Council bluits, lowa   |
| NICHOLS, ARMINTA JANE  | Little Rock, Arkansas  |
| NOELKE, CAROLYN  | Burlington, Iowa   |
| NOLAN, CHARLOTTE   | . Harlan, Kentucky   |
| ***************************************  | The state of the s |
| OAKES, RUBY MAURINE  | Dustin Misseud   |
|  |  |
| O'FLYNN, JO ANN  | Owensboro, Kentucky  |
| ORR, BETTY JEAN  | . Steelville, Illinois   |
| OSTMANN, LADEEN  | St. Charles, Missouri  |
| OSTMANN, LOMA  | St Charles Missauri  |
| OSTATION OF THE STATE OF THE ST | Charles, Missouri  |
| OWEN, CAROLYN  | Paducan, Kentucky  |
| OWEN, FRANCES C  | Jackson, Tennessee   |
|  |  |
| PANNELL, BEVERLY JEAN  | Aurora Missouri  |
| PARK, SHERLEY LOUISE   | Chicago Illinois   |
| PARK, SHERLET LOUISE   | Chicago, Illinois  |
| PARK, WANDA  | Kunnells, Iowa   |
| PARKER, ANN  | New York, New York   |
| PARKER, ESTHER MAE   | St. Charles, Missouri  |
| PARKS, HELEN MARIE   |  |
| DATE CHIDI BY MAY  | Aurora Minnerel  |
| PATE, SHIRLEY MAY<br>PATERSON, BETTY JUNE.   | Murota, Milosouri  |
| PATERSON, BEITY JUNE.  | Nevada, Missouri   |
| PATTON, GERTRUDE   |  |
| PAYNE, BARBARA   | Hamburg, Iowa  |
| PAYNE, CORA FRANCES  | Pine Bluff Arkaneae  |
| PAYNE, COY ELIZABETH   | Council Dieffe Lowe  |
| PAINE, COI BLIZABEIN.  | Council Diulis, 10wa   |
| PAYTON, SHIRLEY LOUISE   | Miami, Oklahoma  |
| PECK, JEANNE (DORIS)   | Anderson, Indiana  |
| PECK, LORRAINE ANN   | . Troy, Ohio   |
| PEMBERTON, KATHERINE   | Hot Springs, Arkansas  |
| PERRY, PATRICIA ANN  | Fort Worth Toros   |
| BUILT THE CONTEST B  | Ch Charles Misses  |
| PHILLIPS, GENELLE  | St. Charles, Missouri  |
| PHILLIPS, HELEN REBECCA  | . Pine Bluff, Arkansas   |
| PIGG, EVELYN JEAN  | Osceola, Arkansas  |
| PITTS. DOLORES   |  |
| PLAYTER, ESSILEE.  | Merico Missouri  |
| DOLLER ADAM  | Claus 1 Manuatain Tonna  |
| POLLEY, JEAN. POLLOCK, SHIRLEY MAY.  | Signai Mountain, Tennessee   |
| POLLOCK, SHIRLEY MAY   | I ulsa, Oklahoma   |
| POPE. ADA ANNE   | University City, Missouri  |
| POWELL, JOYCE ARLENE   | Kansas City. Missouri  |
| POWERS, LILLIAN  | Incheon Tonnessee  |
| DRIVERS OF AUDIA ANN   | Marsana Oldshama   |
| PRIVETT, CLAUDIA ANN   | . Meramac, Okianoma  |
| PUTNEY, DORA JEAN  | Gladbrook, Iowa  |
|  |  |

#### 

QUAIL, DOROTHY LOIS. Port Huron, Michigan

RAMSEY, BETTY LYNN
RANNELLS, ELINOR ELISE. Dexter, Missouri
REAGAN, GUSSIE) EVELYN
REAGAN, GUSSIE) EVELYN
REECE, MARY LOUISE. Pollock, Missouri
REED, GEORGIA LEE. Van Nuys, California
REED, JOAN. Lomas, Mexico D. F.
REID, MARTHA ANNE. Carrollton, Missouri
REILLY, MIRIAM LAVINIA. Pachuca, Hidalgo, Mexico
REINHAUS, MARGARET. Santa Ana, California
RICE, MARY JEAN. Paris, Missouri
RICHARDS, BARBARA. Clarksburg, West Virginia
RICHARDS, BARBARA. Clarksburg, West Virginia
RICHER, KATHRYN JEANNE. Des Moines, Jowa
RITTER, LOUISE J. St. Charles, Missouri
ROBBERTS, DOROTHY GAILE. Chester, Illinois
ROBERTS, DOROTHY GAILE. Chester, Illinois
ROBERTS, PATRICIA LOUISE. San Antonio, Texas
ROBINSON, LILA LEE. Winchester, Virginia
ROBERDR, BARBARA JEAN. Manhattan, Kansas
ROWE, RENA MARY. Keokuk, Iowa
ROWE, RENA MARY. Keokuk, Iowa
ROWTON, DONNA FAYE. Ada, Oklahoma
RUSHING, MARYLEE. Ames, Iowa

| SAMMELMANN MARILYN SAMFORD, JULIA ANNE. SANDERS MARY ALICE. SAYER, MARY DELL. SCHAEFER, RUTH LOUISE SCHATZMAN, LOIS SCHALS, PATRICIA LEE. SCHNEEBERGER, JOAN SCHROEDER, PATRICIA JANE SCHNURR, GRETCHEN SCHWARTING, JOHANNA. SCHWARTING, JOHANNA. SCHWARTZ, MARY ELIZABETH SCHWEIGER, CONSTANCE SEAMAN, JOAN SEBASTIAN, JEANNE ELIZABETH SEE, MARY JEAN JANET. SERKES, ELEANOR FAITH SHADDOCK, KATHRYN SHELTON, JEAN SHELTON, MIRIAM CLAIRE. SHERMAN, BETTE LOU. SHERWIN, HELEN L SHERWOOD, ANN. SHERWOOD, DIANA. SHOEMAKER, JOYCE. SHOOT, PATRICIA. SIVALLS, MARY MARTHA SMITH, ALICE IRENE. SMITH, ALICE IRENE. SMITH, MARY ANN. SNYDER, JEANNE. SOLDWEDEL, MARTHA ANN. SOMMER, DOROTHY. SPEARMAN, CAROLYN ELIZABETH SPITZER, ELIZABETH ANNE. SPRENKLE, BARBARA G. STAHLHUT, MELVA. STANLEY, CLARA STAUFFER, GAYLE FRANCES S | St. Charles, Missouri                      |
|--|--|
| SANDERS MARY ALICE   | Holland, Missouri<br>Perryville, Missouri  |
| SAYER, MARY DELL   | St. Louis, Missouri                        |
| SCHAEFER, RUTH LOUISE  | St. Charles, Missouri                      |
| SCHILB PATRICIA LEE  | . Pilot Grove, Missouri                    |
| SCHNEEBERGER, JOAN   | St. Louis, Missouri                        |
| SCHROEDER, PATRICIA JANE   | Oak Park, Illinois                         |
| SCHWARTING JOHANNA   | . Webster Groves, Missouri                 |
| SCHWARTZ, MARY ELIZABETH   | . Des Moines, Iowa                         |
| SCHWEIGER, CONSTANCE   | Kansas City, Missouri                      |
| SEBASTIAN, JEANNE ELIZABETH  | . Cuba. Missouri                           |
| SEE, MARY JEAN JANET   | Chrisman, Illinois                         |
| SERKES, ELEANOR FAITH.   | . St. Louis, Missouri                      |
| SHELTON, IEAN  | Ioplin. Missouri                           |
| SHELTON, MIRIAM CLAIRE   | Kennett, Missouri                          |
| SHERMAN, BETTE LOU   | Chicago, Illinois                          |
| SHERWOOD, ANN  | . St. Ioseph. Missouri                     |
| SHERWOOD, DIANA  | Great Bend, Kansas                         |
| SHOEMAKER, JOYCE.  | Charleston Illinois                        |
| SILER, AMELIA  | . Springfield, Tennessee                   |
| SIVALLS, MARY MARTHA   | Midland, Texas                             |
| SMITH, ALICE IRENE   | Webster Groves, Missouri                   |
| SMITH, MARY ANN  | . Bonne Terre, Missouri                    |
| SNYDER, JEANNE   | Chicago, Illinois                          |
| SOLDWEDEL, MARTHA ANN  | Oragon Missouri                            |
| SPEARMAN, CAROLYN ELIZABETH  | . San Antonio, Texas                       |
| SPITZER, ELIZABETH ANNE  | Parma, Missouri                            |
| SPRENKLE, BARBARA G  | St Charles Missouri                        |
| STANLEY, CLARA   | . Alva, Oklahoma                           |
| STAUFFER, GAYLE FRANCES  | Joplin, Missouri                           |
| STEGALL VIRGINIA SUE   | Hannibal Missouri                          |
| STEIERT, MARIE   | O'Fallon, Missouri                         |
| STEINER, DOROTHY FORMAN  | Birmingham, Alabama                        |
| STOTLAR EMILY LOU  | Marion Illinois                            |
| STUMBERG, LUCETTE  | Austin, Texas                              |
| SULLIVAN, JENNIFER   | Wichita, Kansas                            |
| SWALLEY, JO ANN  | Baxter Springs, Kansas                     |
| SWEARINGEN, KATHRYN LEE  | St. Louis, Missouri                        |
| SWEENEY, MARY JOSEPHINE  | . Overland, Missouri                       |
| TAPP. PATSY TERRY. EMILY THEOFANOPOULOS, EUGENIA C. THOMAS, DOLORES ELAINE TIPTON, DONNA JEAN TISE, BARBARA L. TOM. BETTY KUULEI. TOMLINSON, MARCIA ALDEN TREFZ, ERMAMARIE   | Sulphur Springs, Texas                     |
| TERRY, EMILY   | . El Dorado Arkansas<br>Fairfield Illinois |
| THOMAS, DOLORES ELAINE   | . Centralia, Illinois                      |
| TIPTON, DONNA JEAN   | . McPherson, Kansas                        |
| TOM RETTY KINDER   | Honolulu Hawaii                            |
| TOMLINSON, MARCIA ALDEN.   | Topeka, Kansas                             |
| TREFZ, ERMAMARIE   | . Beatrice, Nebraska                       |
| UNDERWOOD, PATRICIA  | Knox. Pennsylvania                         |
|  |  |
| VERBIN, IANICE LOU.  | St. Joseph, Missouri                       |
| VIERTEL, JO ANITA  | . LaMine, Missouri                         |
| VIERTEL, WILLIE MAE.   | . LaMine, Missouri                         |
| VANBERGH, NYLENE. VERBIN, JANICE LOU. VIERTEL, JO ANITA. VIERTEL, WILLIE MAE. VIRDEN, RUTH ANN VONACHEN, MOLLY ANN   | . Peoria, Illinois                         |
| WADE BADDADA IDAN  | Colosburg Illinois                         |
| WADSWORTH, HOPE  | . El Dorado, Arkansas                      |
| WALKER, DOROTHY  | Grand Island, Nebraska                     |
| WALTERS, ROBERTA LEE   | . St. Louis, Missouri                      |
| WALTNER, BARBARA ADAMS   | . Mamaroneck, New York                     |
| WALTNER, BEVERLY R   | . Mamaroneck, New York                     |
| WADE, BARBARA JEAN WADSWORTH, HOPE. WALKER, DOROTHY WALTERS, ROBERTA LEE. WALTHALL, DOROTHY ANN WALTNER, BARBARA ADAMS WALTNER, BEVERLY R. WALTON, ELEANOR LOUISE WASHINGTON, NANCY ANN.   | Hannibal Missouri                          |
|  | ) a a manufacti pariony are                |
|  |  |

| WATKINS, BARBARA JEAN  | Oklahoma City, Oklahoma |
|--|-------------------------|
| WATT, ANNE MARGARET  |                         |
| WEINKAUF, RUTH MARIE   | LaCrossa Indiana        |
| WELLED CODINGE D   | Classes Land            |
| WELLER, CORINNE R<br>WETZEL, ELIZABETH ANN   | Sigourney, Iowa         |
| WEIZEL, ELIZABETH ANN  | Springheld, Missouri    |
| WHITAKER, GEORGIA W  |                         |
| WHITE, WILMA L   |                         |
| WHITSELL, SHIRLEY JEAN   | St. Joseph, Missouri    |
| WILDER, JOSEPHINE  |                         |
| WILKE, RUTH ADEL   | Orchard Form Missouri   |
| WILKEN, CLAIRE D   |                         |
| WILKERSON, DOROTHY JEAN  |                         |
| WILLIAMS TO STATE OF THE STATE  | Domesti Manaas          |
| WILLIAMS, JOANNA   | Roswell, New Mexico     |
| WILLIAMS, MARY ELIZABETH   | Marysville, Kansas      |
| WILLIAMS, PHYLLIS  | Story City, Iowa        |
| WILLIAMS, ELVA YVONNE  | Terrell, Texas          |
| WIMBERLY, BETTIE B   | Morrill, Nebraska       |
| WOOLPY, JEAN<br>WRIGHT, DONNA MAE  | Chicago, Illinois       |
| WRIGHT DONNA MAE   | Vincennes Indiana       |
| Tractionary and traction of the control of the cont |                         |
| YARBROUGH, BEVERLY KAY   | Panyrick Town           |
| YORK, BOBBY JEAN   | Coord Wood Wontroley    |
| IURE, DUDDI JEAN   | Grays Knob, Kentucky    |
| CANADA TOUTHER STAT AS Y   | 771-1- YY!!             |
| ZANE, EVELYN M. L  |                         |
| ZEMPEL JANE  | Lewistown, Illinois     |

# Lindenwood College Alumnae Association and Lindenwood College Clubs

60

Lindenwood continues its interest in its students after they leave the College. Each month a news bulletin goes to every former student. The alumnae are welcome to every other service the College can give them.

Lindenwood College Clubs have been formed in several cities. Anyone who has been a student at Lindenwood is eligible for membership.

Young women who are interested in going to college are encouraged to talk with someone who has been a student at Lindenwood.

#### LINDENWOOD COLLEGE ALUMNAE ASSOCIATION—OFFICERS

President-Mrs. Kriete Stumberg, 407 S. Sixth St., St. Charles, Mo.

Vice-President—Miss Gladys Campbell, 6915 Westminster Place, St. Louis, Missouri.

Secretary—Mrs. Robt. Wright (Ruth Steedman), 7400 University, St. Louis, Missouri.

Treasurer—Mrs. John Lammers (Elnor Ritter), 439 Kingshighway, St. Charles, Missouri.

#### LINDENWOOD COLLEGE INTER-CLUB FEDERATION

President—Mrs. T. W. Overall (Fanny Gill), 3405 Paseo, Kansas City, Missouri.
Vice-President—Mrs. George B. Lown (Jean E. Vincent), 648 Wellington Ave.,
Chicago, Illinois.

Secretary-Dr. Alice A. Linnemann, 305 Jefferson, St. Charles, Missouri.

Treasurer-Helene Strumberg, 106 South Third, St. Charles, Missouri.

Recording Secretary—Janet Stine, 44 South Gore Avenue, Webster Groves, Missouri.

#### BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA, CLUB

President—Mrs. Ray Lee Althouse (Elizabeth A. Limbird), 1426 Osage, Bartlesville, Oklahoma.

Vice-President—Mrs. Lloyd A. Lynd (Lois Margaret Hanna), Bartlesville, Oklahoma.

Secretary—Mrs. Monroe Landers (Agnes Grover), 1734 Jennings, Bartlesville, Oklahoma.

#### CENTRAL ILLINOIS CLUB

President—Mrs. Lewis Schwartz (Marian Meyerstein), Fox Mill Lane, R. R. 3, Springfield, Illinois.

Vice-President-June Calloway, Taylorville, Illinois.

Corresponding Secretary-Evelyn Watson, Paris, Illinois.

Secretary-Treasurer-Mrs. G. G. Lesemann (Mary Dobson), Moweaqua, Illinois.

Historian—Mrs. Lawrence Flinn, Jr. (Christine Young), 2010 Willamore, Springfield, Illinois.

#### CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

President—Mrs. A. La Masters (Arlene Ewing), 705 W. Clark, Champaign, Illinois.

Vice-President-Mrs. Herman Reinsch (Faye Pratt), 6230 Kenmore Ave., Chicago, Illinois.

Recording Secretary—Mrs. Frank Balthis (Margaret Skoglund), 620 N. Seventh Street, DeKalb, Illinois.

Treasurer—Mrs. Lyman Huff (Elizabeth Baird), 1377 Asbury Avenue, Winnetka, Illinois.

Corresponding Secretary—Mrs. William Owen Davis (Genevieve Wild), 602 Lake St., Evanston, Illinois.

#### DALLAS, TEXAS, CLUB

President-Mrs. A. D. Fraser, Jr. (Juanita Tholl), 5323 Swiss, Dallas.

Vice-President-Marie Arthur, 1024 W. Martin, Dallas.

Secretary-Mrs. Chester T. Aspelmeier (Dorothy Gee), 6046 Richmond, Dallas.

#### DES MOINES, IOWA, CLUB

President-Mrs. C. C. Doerrie (Harriet Dalton), 4201 Urbandale Ave., Des Moines.

Vice-President—Mrs. R. L. Geist (Belva Goff), 1914 37th St., Des Moines, Secretary—Mrs. L. F. Kurtz (Betty Laird), 3215 47th St., Des Moines.

#### FT. SMITH, ARKANSAS, CLUB

President—Mrs. James Wilson (Nannie Ruth Hunt), 615 North 21st, Ft. Smith. Secretary—Mrs. Seth T. Adams, Jr. (Hortense Marie Bass), 221 North 20th, Ft. Smith

Publicity-Ruth Southard, 215 North Sixth, Ft. Smith.

#### INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA, CLUB

President—Mrs. Paul Simpson (Maude Jordan), 7 Hampton Court, Indianapolis, Secretary-Treasurer—Mrs. Karl D. Weaver (Georgett Howard), 3701 North La Salle, Indianapolis.

#### KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI, CLUB

President—Mrs. Adele (Herman) Dalgleish, 510 W. 74th Street, Kansas City, Missouri.

Vice-President-Mrs. Virginia (Myers) Callison.

Secretary—Mrs. Ruth (Laitner) Waltner, 3844 McGee Street, Kansas City, Missouri.

Treasurer—Mrs. Jean (Bair) McKee, 5037 Wyandotte, Kansas City, Missouri. Historian—Mrs. T. W. (Fannie Gill) Overall, 3405 Paseo, Kansas City, Missouri. Sergeant-at-Arms—Miss Lenore Anthony, 3000 Campbell, Kansas City, Missouri.

#### KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI, EVENING CLUB

President-Jane Montgomery, 3616 Charlotte, Kansas City, Missouri

Secretary-Treasurer—Mary Louise Wetzel, 6541 Edgevale Road, Kansas City, Missouri.

Telephone Committee: Betty Hughes, chairman, 3418 Gillham, Kansas City, Missouri; Mrs. W. E. Shannon (Betty Hunter), 6040 Rockhill Road, Kansas City, Missouri.

Sunshine Committee—Mrs. R. Lloyd Ketcham (Margaret Hoover), Greenbauer Addition, North Kansas City, Missouri.

#### LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS, CLUB

President—Mrs. W. H. Burns (Gladys Deane), 1711 Summit, Little Rock. Secretary—Mrs. M. M. Murphey (Elizabeth Wherry), R. R. No. 3, Little Rock.

Treasurer-Jeanne C. Berry, 508 Ridgeway, Little Rock.

#### Los Angeles, California, Club

President—Mrs. Robert P. Conklin, 4171 Garthwaite, Los Angeles, California. Vice-President—Mrs. C. H. Baker (Nellie Ingram), 1753 N. Fairoaks Ave., Pasadena, California.

Secretary-Treasurer—Mrs. James S. Steiner (Deolores Baim), 1266 Burnside Ave., Los Angeles, California.

#### MOBERLY, MISSOURI, CLUB

President—Mrs. William McHugh (Martha Martin), 807½ West Reed, Moberly.

Vice-President—Mrs. Frank Myers (Nina Fiorita), 200 South Clark, Moberly.
Auditor—Mrs. M. F. Homan (Juanita Ormiston), 923 Third Street, Chillicothe,
Missouri.

#### MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA, CLUB

President—Mrs. John Fay Wright (Dorothy Ellen Holcomb), 2405 Court, Muskogee.

Vice-President—Mrs. McElroy Palmer (Kathleen Redburn), Fort Gibson, Oklahoma.

Secretary-Treasurer-Helen VonUnwerth, 402 South 13th Street, Muskogee.

#### NEW YORK CITY CLUB

President—Mrs. George Pegram (Jessie Crawford), 223 Vose Avenue, South Orange, New Jersey.

Secretary—Mrs. Leslie A. Burritt (Susan Anderson), 750 Riverside Drive, New York City.

Treasurer—Mrs. Isaac B. Gardner (Ann Brown), 930 Riverside Drive, New York City.

#### OHIO LINDENWOOD CLUB

President—Mrs. O. Porter Stark, Jr. (Helen Roper), 2012 Andover Road, Columbus, Ohio.

Vice-President-Ruth Foster, Ironton, Ohio.

Secretary-Treasurer—Mrs. J. O. Jenkins (Eloise McCauslen), 1636 Wyandotte, Columbus, Ohio.

#### OMAHA, NEBRASKA, CLUB

President-Miss Janet Thomas, 5020 Nicholas, Omaha, Nebraska.

Vice-President-Miss Barbara Steberg, 3560 Poppleton, Omaha, Nebraska.

Secretary-Miss Marjorie Kruse, 1302 South 44th Street, Omaha, Nebraska.

Treasurer-Miss Adele Cheek, 527 South 58th Street, Omaha, Nebraska.

#### OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA, CLUB

President—Mrs. Winston V. Cruzan (Mary Cowan), 2435 N. W. 21st Street, Oklahoma City.

Vice-President—Mrs. Kenneth P. Wilson (Mary Nelle Patterson), 2916 N. W. 11th Street, Oklahoma City.

Secretary—Mrs. Roger V. Pearce (Thelma McCoy), 15 Carey Place, Oklahoma City.

Social Secretary—Mrs. John H. Putney (Jerry Curreathers), 221 N. W. 22nd Street, Oklahoma City.

Treasurer—Mrs. Howard B. Moffitt (Harriet Gum), 900 West 41st Street, Oklahoma City.

#### PHOENIX, ARIZONA, CLUB

President-Mrs. Mary L. Johnson (Mary Lindsay), R. F. D. No. 1, Mesa, Arizona.

#### PINE BLUFF, ARKANSAS, CLUB

President-Dorothy Seabrook, 1213 Main, Pine Bluff.

Secretary-Treasurer—Mrs. W. W. Phillips (Helen Bradford), 709 West 15th, Pine Bluff.

#### St. Charles, Missouri, Club

President-Miss Lenore Schierding, 731 Washington, St. Charles.

Vice-President—Mrs. E. J. Canty (Dorothy Emmons), West Elm Street, St. Charles.

Secretary-Mrs. Earl Kohlhepp (J. Madeline Chandler).

Treasurer-Mrs. Francis Ochs (Evelyn Fox), S. 2nd Street, St. Charles.

#### St. Joseph, Missouri, Club

President—Mrs. Maynard Amos Carter (Katherine Ann Disque), 2706 Folsom, St. Joseph.

Vice-President—Mrs. G. A. Lau (Virginia Hund), 2106 Lovers Lane, St. Joseph.
Secretary—Mrs. E. C. Schroers, Jr. (Hazelle Moran), 1064 North Noyes, St. Joseph.

Treasurer—Mrs. Verne P. Meyer (Lena Gordon), 428 North 23rd Street, St. Joseph.

#### St. Louis, Missouri, Evening Club

President—Mrs. Philip H. Sullivan (Marjorie Hammer), 7486 Kingsbury, University City, Missouri.

Vice-President-Virginia Dell, 5121 Enright Ave., St. Louis, Missouri

Corresponding Secretary—Mrs. Wm. Schiermier, 4539 Red Bud Ave., St. Louis, Missouri.

Treasurer-Ruth Dolan, 7705 Stanford Ave., St. Louis, Missouri.

Auditor—Mrs. Ted. R. Rea (Gale B. Huddleston), 5620 Minnesota Ave., St. Louis, Missouri.

#### St. Louis, Missouri, Club

President—Mrs. Norman Neuhoff (Ethel Wiese), 560 Warren, University City, Missouri.

Vice-President-Mrs. Edwin Foster (Rose Parmelee), 856 Greeley, Webster Groves, Missouri.

Secretary-Mrs. Tonina C. Vogt (Tonina Carr), 3679 Lafayette St., St. Louis, Missouri.

Treasurer—Mrs. Louise N. Keeter (Louise Nicholson), 7300 Melrose, University City, Missouri.

#### SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA, CLUB

President—Mrs. W. S. Heller (Huddie Stookey), 706 Zanzibar Court, Mission Beach, California.

Vice-President-Mrs. B. C. Harrison (Nellie Crumb), National City, California.

Corresponding Secretary—Mrs. H. W. Clark (Ann Steed), 4648 Jewel, Pacific Beach, California.

Recording Secretary-Edith Noon, 2931 30th Street, San Diego.

Treasurer-Alice Nathine Talbot, 3104 Freeman, San Diego.

#### SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA, CLUB

President-Mrs. L. R. Hain (Eva Meek), 1382 Plymouth, Westwood Park, San Francisco.

Vice-President—Mrs. J. C. Craven (Ethel Spence), 900 Monterey Boulevard, San Francisco.

Secretary-Treasurer-Mrs. John W. Mason (Rosanna Maguire), 2931 Avalon, Berkeley, California.

#### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA CLUB

President—Mrs. Lloyd Langworthy (Betty Foster), 2937 Graceland Way, Glendale 6, California.

Vice-President—Mrs. C. H. Baker (Nellie Ingram), 1753 N. Fair Oaks, Pasadena, California.

Corresponding Secretary—Mrs. Mildred Chapman, 559 N. Cahuenga Blvd., Los Angeles, California.

Secretary and Treasurer—Mrs. Vernon D. Beehler (Marguerite Bruere), 216 Spencer, Glendale, California.

#### SOUTHERN ILLINOIS CLUB

President—Mrs. Rayhill O. Hagist (Kathryn Leibrock), Mascoutah, Illinois. Vice-President—Eleanor Richardson, 200 North 12th Street, Mt. Vernon, Illinois.

Secretary-Treasurer—Mrs. R. A. Fabreau (Audre Johnson), 3232 Lincoln Place, East St. Louis, Illihois.

#### SOUTHEAST MISSOURI CLUB

President—Mrs. F. D. Bacon (Lucille Greason), 649 N. Main, Poplar Bluff, Missouri.

Secretary-Virginia Liles, Dexter, Missouri.

Treasurer—Mrs. J. O. Adams (Nellie Lucy Garretson), 3232 Lincoln Ave., Poplar Bluff, Missouri.

#### TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS, CLUB

President-Mrs. John W. Holman (Marguerite Whitmarsh), 1023 Hickory, Texarkana.

Treasurer—Mrs. Henry Lewis (Catharine Brennan), 1422 County Ave., Texarkana.

#### TRI-STATE CLUB

President—Mrs. Mark Dale Henderson (Mildred Alice Kennedy, 1620 Bird, Joplin, Missouri,

Vice-President-Mary Louise Stevison, Webb City, Missouri.

#### TULSA, OKLAHOMA, CLUB

President-Barbara Lundy, 1395 East 27th Place, Tulsa.

Vice-President-Virginia Getman, 1830 South Cheyenne, Tulsa.

Secretary-Treasurer-Mrs. R. C. Merson (Marion Gibson), 227 East 27th Place, Tulsa.

#### WASHINGTON, D. C., CLUB

President-Mrs. Keith A. Freseman (Phyllis Boyes), 4124 Edmunds, Washington.

Secretary—Mrs. Jesse M. Jones (Mary Alice Lange), 2611 South Lynn, Oakcrest, Arlington, Virginia.

Treasurer—Mrs. Robert E. Forcum (Elsie Rahl), 2000 Connecticut Ave., Washington.

#### WICHITA, KANSAS, CLUB

President-Mrs. Eric C. Moore (Evelyn Curran), 130 South Bleekley Drive, Wichita.

Secretary—Mrs. John Lindas (Reta Willis), 135 North Pershing, Wichita. Treasurer—Ruth Teter, 201 South Washington, Eldorado, Kansas.

#### Wisconsin Club

President—Mrs. J. A. Fitschen (Josephine Elizabeth Lupfer), Briar Road, Madison, Wisconsin.

Secretary-Mary Hart, Madison, Wisconsin.

## To Our Friends

600

Lindenwood College has entered upon a new era of its history. Generous friends have been contributing largely to its support. The beginning of New Lindenwood has fairly started. Greater things are yet to come and greater things yet to be done. To reach the goal of a great woman's college, well equipped and heavily endowed, will require the enlisting of all our friends in doing according to their means. If you have not remembered Lindenwood College in your will, do so at once. A form of bequest is appended for your guidance.

The Board of Directors has established an Annuity Fund which will enable donors, unable to do without an income, to receive a life annuity according to age. This is a safe and secure form of investment and gift to the college.

Opportunity is also given for endowment of chairs in the college. Fifty thousand dollars has been given to endow the Bible chair.

## My Will

60

| I give, bequeath a   | nd devise unto Lindenwood Female College, a   |
|--|---|
| corporation, of St. Cha  | rles, State of Missouri, the sum of   |
| paid to the Board of I<br>the improvement of a<br>said college or as an end<br>judgment of said direct<br>authority to hold, man | Dollars (\$) to be Directors of said college, and by them used in a additions to the buildings and property of downent, fund, according to the discretion and ctors. I give to said directors full power and mage, and control said trust fund and to sell, it invest and reinvest the same, according to the it of said directors. |
| Dated  | Signed  |
|  | Witness   |

